Public Document Pack

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ
www.southlakeland.gov.uk

You are summoned to attend a meeting of
the Council
on Thursday, 11 November 2021, at 6.30 p.m.
in the Assembly Room, Kendal Town Hall
Note – For those who wish to attend, Prayers will be said
in the Assembly Room at 6.20 p.m.

Membership
Councillors
Caroline Airey
Giles Archibald
Robin Ashcroft
Rupert Audland
Pat Bell
Ben Berry
Roger Bingham
Jonathan Brook
Helen Chaffey
Stephen Coleman
Ben Cooper
Brian Cooper
Michael Cornah
Jonathan Cornthwaite
Tracy Coward
Philip Dixon
Pete Endsor

Judy Filmore
Alvin Finch
Gill Gardner
Fiona Hanlon
Tom Harvey
Eamonn Hennessy
Hazel Hodgson
Chris Hogg
Rachael Hogg
John Holmes
Kevin Holmes
Vicky Hughes
Helen Irving
Ali Jama
Andrew Jarvis
Janette Jenkinson
Dyan Jones

Helen Ladhams
Malcolm Lamb
Kevin Lancaster
Susanne Long
Pete McSweeney (Chairman)
Ian Mitchell
Suzie Pye
Doug Rathbone
Brian Rendell
Matt Severn (Vice-Chairman)
Peter Thornton
Heather Troughton
David Webster
Ian Wharton
Janet Willis
Mark Wilson
Shirley-Anne Wilson

Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and contain
exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted within Agendas
labelled “Public Document Pack”.
Note - Due to the ongoing Covid-19 Pandemic, any members of the public who wish to attend to
observe the meeting are required to contact committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk at least
24 hours before the meeting.

Wednesday, 3 November 2021

Linda Fisher, Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer)
For all enquiries, please contact:Committee Administrator:
Inge Booth
Telephone:
01539 793190
e-mail:
committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk

Roll Call : Apologies
AGENDA

Page Nos.
PART I

1

MINUTES

7 - 20

To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the
meeting of the Council held on 27 July 2021.

2

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations
or present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no
later than 0:01am (one minute past midnight) two working days before the
meeting. Information on how to make the application can be obtained by
viewing the Council’s Website www.southlakeland.gov.uk or by contacting the
Committee Services Team on 01539 733333.
(1)

Questions and Representations
To receive any questions or representations which have been received
from members of the public.

(2)

Deputations and Petitions
To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from
members of the public.

3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISPENSATIONS
To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this
Agenda and to consider any dispensations.
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct,
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s
Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.)
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as
any other registrable or other interests.
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

4

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS
To consider whether the items in Part II of the Agenda should be considered in
the presence of the press and public.

5

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
To receive announcements by the Chairman.

21 - 22

6

POLITICAL BALANCE AND CHANGES TO COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS
Further to the two recent by-elections and in accordance with the provisions of
the Local Government and Housing Act 1989:(1)

to note the political balance of the Council:Liberal Democrat – 33 Members;
Conservative – 14 Members;
Labour – 3 Members; and
Green Party – 1 Member;

(2)
to note that the allocation of committee places is as that on 19 May 2021
(Minute C/10 (2021/22) refers); and
(3)

to receive the following proposed changes in Committee Membership:(a)
Councillor Pete Endsor to replace Councillor Giles Archibald on
the Audit Committee; and
(b)
Councillor Fiona Hanlon to take up the Liberal Democrat vacancy
on the Licensing and Licensing Regulatory Committees.

7

CORPORATE FINANCIAL UPDATE QUARTERS 1 AND 2, 2021/22

23 - 50

To consider the projected year end position based on performance to the end of
Quarter 2 2021/22 and officers’ planned actions to ensure a balanced budget by
the end of the financial year (the report includes key issues from the Quarter 1
2021/22 report which was due to be considered by Council at the scheduled
meeting on 5 October 2021 that was cancelled).

8

ANNUAL PROCUREMENT UPDATE 2021/22

51 - 70

To consider an update on progress across the procurement function and a
review of activity in financial year 2020/21.

9

UPDATE TO THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION - CONTRACT PROCEDURE
RULES AND PROCUREMENT SCHEDULE

71 - 104

To consider amendments to the Constitution to provide further delegation and
clarity relating to procurement and contracting processes.

10

PLANNING COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

105 - 110

To review the reduction in size of the Membership of the Planning Committee
following the 12 month trial period which commenced in September 2020.

11

LOCAL GOVERNMENT REORGANISATION - STRUCTURAL CHANGES
ORDER
To update Members with regard to the Structural Changes Order for Local
Government Reorganisation.

12

URGENT ITEMS
To consider any urgent items, if necessary.

111 - 114

13

LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
(30 MINUTES)

AND

CABINET

QUESTION

TIME

To receive announcements from the Leader and, in accordance with
Paragraphs 10.2 and 10.3 of the Council’s Rules of Procedure, to deal with any
questions to the Leader and/or Portfolio Holders on any topic which is within the
jurisdiction or influence of the Council and is relevant to their Portfolio. Any
Member who poses a question will be entitled to ask one supplementary
question on the same topic.
Members are encouraged to give 24 hours’ written notice of questions to the
Monitoring Officer of questions to be raised under the Agenda Item. If no notice
is received, then the Portfolio Holder can reserve the right to give a written
answer. Where written notice of questions has been given, these will be taken
first. Should a Member wish to ask more than one question, questions should
be listed in order of priority. If more than one Member sends in a question,
these will be taken in alphabetical order of Members’ names, alternated from
meeting to meeting. Each question and each response is restricted to three
minutes.

14

MINUTES OF MEETINGS
To receive Chairmen’s comments (if any notified) in respect of the minutes of
the Committee meetings held between 3 May and 20 August 2021.

15

QUESTIONS TO CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL OR CHAIRMAN OF ANY
COMMITTEE OR SUB-COMMITTEE
To deal with any questions under Rule 10.6 of the Council’s Rules of Procedure,
of which due notice has been given and/or the Chairman allows as a matter of
urgent business and which are in relation to any matter over which the Council
has powers or duties or which affect the area.

16

URGENT DECISIONS

115 - 116

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, to receive details of any urgent
executive or non-executive decisions taken since 21 July 2021.
PART II
Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information)
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number)

17

A590 CROSS A MOOR JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT
- Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information)
- Paragraph 5 - Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional
privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings.
To consider the development of Cross a Moor Roundabout.

18

JUDICIAL REVIEW - LOCAL GOVERNMENT REORGANISATION
- Paragraph 5 - Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional
privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings.
To receive a verbal update from the Monitoring Officer.

117 - 144

This page is intentionally left blank

Item No.1
13
27.07.2021

Council
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Council held in the Assembly Room,
Kendal Town Hall, Kendal, on Tuesday, 27 July 2021, at 6.30 p.m.
Present
Councillors
Pete McSweeney (Chairman)
Giles Archibald
Rupert Audland
Pat Bell
Roger Bingham
Jonathan Brook
Helen Chaffey
Brian Cooper
Tracy Coward
Pete Endsor

Judy Filmore
Tom Harvey
Hazel Hodgson
John Holmes
Kevin Holmes
Vicky Hughes
Andrew Jarvis
Dyan Jones
Helen Ladhams

Kevin Lancaster
Ian Mitchell
Doug Rathbone
Peter Thornton
Heather Troughton
David Webster
Mark Wilson

Those Members not shown on the attendance list had an agreed non-attendance as
detailed in Minute C/30 below.
Officers
Inge Booth
Lawrence Conway
Linda Fisher
Simon McVey
David Nicholson
Claire Read
Fraser Robertson
Simon Rowley
Helen Smith
David Sykes
Sion Thomas

C/24

Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist
Chief Executive
Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring
Officer)
Operational Lead Support Services
HR Lead Specialist
Finance Specialist
Communications Specialist
Director of Customer and Commercial Services
Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer)
Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources
Operational Lead Delivery and Commercial Services

MINUTES
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the
minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 19 May 2021.

C/25

EMERGENCY NON-EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
RESOLVED – That
(1)
the following Emergency Non-Executive Decisions taken by the Chief Executive
in accordance with Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution 3.(B 1) (1.1) be received:-

Page 7

14
27.07.2021

(2)

C/26

Council

(a)

019 18-01-21 Business Support Grants (National Restrictions January);

(b)

020 10-03-21 Extension to Statement of Licensing Policy;

(c)

021 08-04-21 Business Support Grants; and

(d)

022 13-04-21 Encroachment Application; and

any spending outside any budgetary provision be noted.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
No questions, representations, deputations or petitions had been received from
members of the public in respect of this meeting.

C/27

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) referred to
Agenda Item No.17 (Change in Policy for New Lake Encroachments) which had been
considered by both the Lake Administration and Overview and Scrutiny Committees.
RESOLVED – That the following be noted:(1)

that no declarations of interest were raised; and

(2)
with regard to Agenda Item No.17 (Change in Policy for New Lake
Encroachments), it be noted for the purpose of transparency that those Members of the
Lake Administration and Overview and Scrutiny Committees present have previously
considered the matter, however, remain open-minded.

C/28

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS
There were no items in Part II of the Agenda.

C/29

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Chairman drew attention to his list of formal engagements which was attached to
the Agenda.

C/30

S.85 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - DISPENSATIONS
Note – The Chairman of the Council had been consulted and had agreed that,
due to the circumstances outlined within the report and set out below, this item
should be considered at this meeting of Council as an urgent matter.
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) referred to
the report, hard copies of which had been circulated to Members at the start of the
meeting and which would be published on the Council's Website following the meeting.
The report sought Council’s approval for a blanket dispensation for Members for nonattendance at this Council meeting for Covid-19 safety reasons and due to concerns
that the number of Covid-19 cases in Cumbria continued to rise. This had already
been discussed by Group Leaders, with an attendance of 50% having been agreed.
The proposed dispensation would, therefore, provide that, for such Members the six
month period of non-attendance under S.85 of the Local Government Act 1972 would
commence on the day after this Council meeting, i.e. on 28 July 2021.

Page 8

15
27.07.2021

Council

Councillor Jonathan Brook, Leader and Promoting South Lakeland and Innovation
Portfolio Holder moved, was seconded by Councillor Tom Harvey, and it was
unanimously
RESOLVED – That approval be given for a blanket dispensation for the Members listed
below for whom it has been agreed will not be in attendance at the Council meeting on
27 July 2021 for Covid-19 safety reasons and due to concerns that the number of
Covid-19 cases in Cumbria continue to rise, the six month period for those Councillors
for whom it has been agreed are not attending the Council meeting on 27 July 2021 to
have a new six month period calculation for attendance purposes commencing on
28 July 2021:Councillors Caroline Airey, Robin Ashcroft, Ben Berry, Stephen Coleman,
Ben Cooper, Michael Cornah, Phillip Dixon, Alvin Finch, Gill Gardner,
Eamonn Hennessy, Chris Hogg, Rachael Hogg, Helen Irving, Ali Jama,
Janette Jenkinson, Malcolm Lamb, Susanne Long, Jon Owen, Suzie Pye,
Brian Rendell, Matt Severn, Ian Wharton, Janet Willis and Shirley-Anne Wilson.

C/31

LOCAL GOVERNMENT REORGANISATION
The Secretary of State’s decision with regard to Local Government Reorganisation in
Cumbria having been received following the despatch of the Agenda, all Members had
subsequently been emailed an electronic copy of the report which had also been
published on the Council’s Website. The Secretary of State’s decision was for the
implementation of two unitary councils on an East-West geography for the whole of the
administrative county of Cumbria. This decision would mean the replacement of the
County Council and all District/Borough Councils with a new Unitary Council for the
area comprising Barrow, South Lakeland and Eden and one for the area comprising
Copeland, Allerdale and Carlisle. The Secretary of State now intended to seek
Parliamentary approval for the necessary secondary legislation to implement this
proposal. It was intended that a draft Structural Changes Order would be laid in
Parliament around the turn of the year and that it would include provision for the
appropriate transitional arrangements, including for elections in May 2022 for the future
unitary councils, and for those councils to assume the full range of local authority
responsibilities on 1 April 2023. Elections to existing councils scheduled for May 2022,
including those postponed from May 2021, would be cancelled. The focus was now for
the Chief Executives and Senior Officers in Cumbria to discuss with Government
officials the scope of matters to be included in the Structural Changes Order and how
the programme of transition would be managed.
The Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder, Councillor
Jonathan Brook, introduced the report and expressed thanks for the opportunity to
update Council on this important and historic item. He pointed out that the Council had
now entered a fluid and fast moving period of change that would affect everyone,
whether as councillors across all tiers of local government, or as officers, or as local
residents, businesses or other organisations. It would lead to the dissolution of South
Lakeland District Council and others across Cumbria and lead to the establishment of a
new unitary authority. Councillor Brook, on behalf of Members, took the opportunity to
again thank officers for their hard work over many months in helping to prepare the
Council’s submission to the Secretary of State and for their consideration of the next
steps. He thanked Members for their input and particularly the Deputy Leader and
Finance and Assets Portfolio Holder, Councillor Andrew Jarvis, who had done an
excellent job throughout, but particularly during Councillor Brook’s absence on holiday
over the last two weeks, when the announcements and reactions had been made.

Page 9

16
27.07.2021

Council

Councillor Brook did not wish to provide a detailed analysis of the Secretary of State’s
decision or his analysis of the submitted proposals, although he felt that there were
several points that could legitimately be made on the contents of his response and the
flawed process by which the information had been cascaded down to those most
affected by it in local government. He instead reiterated that the Council was firmly
focussed on making these proposals work. Cabinet and officers would together seek
to work closely with local authority colleagues across Cumbria to ensure that excellent
local services and support continued to be delivered throughout the transitional period
and that the foundations for an effective and efficient unitary structure fit for the future
were put in place. The appetite and ambition to engage with the transformative agenda
was undiminished, albeit on a different geographic footprint to that which had been
hoped for.
Councillor Brook stressed the intent of engaging in a radical transformational agenda
which would deliver enhanced and improved services for residents. He pointed out
that South Lakeland District Council was well placed to take a leading role in this
agenda, having embarked on its Customer Connect transformation programme and
having real practical experience to bring to the table as the process progressed. He
informed Members that conversations had already commenced between the three
authorities of Eden, South Lakeland and Barrow, and that all were committed to work
together to achieve the best possible outcomes for residents.
Councillor Brook explained that Members from across all parties would be kept both
informed and involved. Although it was too early in the process to say exactly how this
would be achieved, he pointed out that it was in the Council’s organisational DNA to
work collaboratively across boundaries, so the Authority was well placed to deliver on
its aspirations.
Councillor Brook stressed that this was an exciting opportunity and that the Council
would work tirelessly to deliver the best outcomes for its communities. He moved the
recommendations contained within the report and was seconded by Councillor
Andrew Jarvis.
Members expressed support for the proposals, referring to the exciting opportunity and
pointing out the need for cross party collaboration and engagement with businesses
and residents.
Appreciation was shown for the tremendous work which had been put into the Bay
proposal by the former Leader, Councillor Giles Archibald. Attention was drawn to the
fact that two of the authorities which had formed part of that original proposal would
now form part of the new authority, with some of that earlier work being visible.
Councillor Archibald wished to thank officers and Members for their support for the
original and solid proposal, however, he pointed out that it would not be appropriate to
contest the Secretary of State’s decision and stressed the need to look forward to the
implementation of the new authority. He referred to the strong economic and cultural
ties with Lancaster and hoped that the new authority would link with other councils and
look to the east and south as well as to the west and north.
During conversation, an amendment was proposed for the strengthening of
Recommendation 2.1(3) to include for further reports to be brought not only to Cabinet
and/or Council, but also to all Members, with the value that could be added by local
members being highlighted. Both Councillor Brook, as proposer, and Councillor Jarvis,
as seconder, were content to take this on board within the motion.

Page 10

17
27.07.2021

Council

The Chairman thanked officers for the work and the Director of Strategy, Innovation
and Resources who had prepared the report.
It was subsequently unanimously
RESOLVED – That
(1)
the Secretary of State’s decision with regards to Local Government
Reorganisation as it impacts this Council be noted;
(2)
the Chief Executive and appropriate officers be authorised, in consultation with
the Leader and Deputy Leader, to commence work with Cumbrian authorities in
readiness for the implementation of reorganisation; and
(3)
it be noted that further reports will be brought to Cabinet and/or Council, and all
Members, as appropriate, once there is further detail on the Order and how
reorganisation is to be implemented (the timetable of implementation may require
meetings of Cabinet and Council to be held outside of the approved schedule of
meetings).

C/32

REVENUE AND CAPITAL OUTTURN 2020/21
The Deputy Leader and Finance and Assets Portfolio Holder, Councillor Andrew Jarvis,
presented the Revenue and Capital Outturn 2020/21 report which set out the Council’s
financial performance for 2020/21 and the impact on reserves. He highlighted the
extraordinary period with the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic and praised the hard
work of the Finance Team, thanking them for their work during a challenging time. He
drew attention to the fact that, despite the complex situation, the Council was in a much
better financial positon than had been anticipated earlier in the year.
Councillor Jarvis went on to speak in detail about the Revenue Budget and Capital
Expenditure, as outlined within the report.
In conclusion, Councillor Jarvis reiterated that this year end presented a very much
smaller deficit in 2020/21 than had been expected. He drew attention to the impact on
the Council’s reserves, particularly in the carry-forward. He drew attention to Appendix
1a to the report showing the detailed movement of reserves. Compared to budget, the
main changes related to timing adjustments, including carry-forwards and the impact of
Covid-19 grants, as well as a large technical item on the National Non-Domestic Rate
Adjustment Reserve. As highlighted, however, he explained that there was no longer a
need to draw down £2m from the General Fund as had been previously expected.
Overall, this meant that the Council continued to be in a strong position with its
reserves at the end of the year.
The report had been through both Cabinet on 23 June 2021 and the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee on 9 July 2021.
Councillor Jarvis asked Council to approve the contributions to and from reserves
detailed in Appendix 1a to the report and was seconded by Councillor Giles Archibald.
Discussion took place, with reference being made to the transition to a Unitary
Authority and a question raised as to the state of Barrow’s and Eden’s reserves.
Councillor Jarvis explained that it was the County’s financial element that would have
the biggest impact in this regard, with around 90% of the expenditure falling within their

Page 11

18
27.07.2021

Council

budget. In response to a question regarding legacy funds, Councillor Jarvis pointed out
that the Government was wise to the profligacy of councils facing extinction and that
there would be rules put in place on any spending. Councillor Jarvis addressed
another query regarding the future of assets for which the Council acted as trustee,
some having been inherited from former urban and rural councils and which, it was felt,
would be more suited to being held by town or parish councils. He explained that there
would be rules on what assets the Council could transfer although acknowledged that
there may be assets which would be best managed locally. He stressed, however, that
it was the Council’s aim to do what was best for the residents of South Lakeland. The
importance of communication between the authorities involved once the Structural
Changes Order was made was raised and attention drawn to the establishment of a
Shadow Authority which would discuss the finer detail of reorganisation.
It was unanimously
RESOLVED – That the contributions to and from reserves detailed in Appendix 1a be
approved.

C/33

2020/21 ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT
Councillor Andrew Jarvis, Deputy Leader and Finance and Assets Portfolio Holder,
presented the 2020/21 Annual Treasury Management Report. The report reviewed the
treasury activities and the actual prudential and treasury indicators for the 2020/21
financial year, meeting the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the CIPFA
Code of Practice on Treasury Management and the CIPFA Code for Capital Finance in
Local Authorities.
Councillor Jarvis highlighted a number of key features within the report. At the end of
the financial year the level of external debt had remained at £12.8m, showing that the
Council had not funded revenue activity through borrowing, a key prudential indicator.
At the end of the year, the Council had financial investments of nearly £29m, as
outlined in Table 7 of the Appendix to the report. The Council’s non-treasury
investments had a fair market value of £3.847m and had generated £214,000 income
last year and Councillor Jarvis pointed out that this was below the previous year’s
figure due to the pandemic.
Councillor Jarvis thanked officers for their work in this area, pointing out that their
careful management of borrowing and cash balances was critical to minimise the risk
that the Council faced, whilst achieving the best possible returns to support the broader
work of the Authority.
The Chairman pointed out that the report had been through both Cabinet on 23 June
2021 and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 9 July 2021 and had been
recommended to Council for approval.
Councillor Jarvis moved the recommendation contained within the report and was
seconded by Councillor Doug Rathbone.
It was unanimously
RESOLVED – That the 2020/21 Annual Treasury Management Report be approved.

Page 12

19
27.07.2021

C/34

Council

DRAFT MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2021/22 - 2026/27
Councillor Andrew Jarvis, Deputy Leader and Finance and Assets Portfolio Holder,
provided a highly detailed presentation on the draft Medium Term Financial Plan. The
Plan was a key element of the Council’s corporate planning framework to ensure that
the Council had sufficient financial resources in the short to medium-term to deliver its
statutory responsibilities and its Council Plan priorities.
Due to the impact of Covid-19, the report included high-level projections based on the
information as at early July 2021. The projections would be regularly reviewed and
reported during the 2022/23 budget preparation process. The Council was required by
statute to set a balanced budget in February/March 2022.
The Plan ensured that the Council had a sound basis for allocating resources and
effective financial management over the medium term.
The report had been through Cabinet on 21 July 2021 and had been recommended to
Council for approval.
Councillor Jarvis drew attention to the actions that the Council had already taken to cut
costs with the Customer Connect Programme which left the Council in a very strong
financial position for the next few years and he thanked officers for their work. He
moved the recommendation contained within the report and was seconded by
Councillor Dyan Jones, Climate Action and Biodiversity Portfolio Holder.
It was unanimously
RESOLVED – That the following be approved:(1)

the draft Medium Term Financial Plan as attached at Appendix 1 to the report;

(2)
the request for £250,000 to fund work associated with Local Government
Reorganisation; and
(3)

C/35

the budgets of £217,000 associated with the Welcome Back Fund.

PROCUREMENT STRATEGY 2021-2026
Councillor Andrew Jarvis, Deputy Leader and Finance and Assets Portfolio Holder,
reported that the Council’s previous Procurement Strategy had been a combined
Sustainable Commissioning and Procurement Strategy which has since been
separated into two separate documents, the Commissioning Strategy having been
approved by Council in 2020, with the Procurement Strategy as a companion piece.
The pressure of the Covid-19 pandemic had reinforced the requirement for the Council
to seek Value for Money from their procurement process as well as accountability over
being fair and transparent with any invitations to tender. Furthermore, the Strategic
Council Plan Priorities meant that there was a shift toward a holistic view of the
outcomes of procurement, taking into account sustainability, net carbon neutrality and
localism.
Councillor Jarvis informed Members that the Strategy had been reviewed by the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 9 July 2021. The Committee had asked for a
report on progress in twelve months’ time, particularly around the need for

Page 13

20
27.07.2021

Council

understanding on what success looked like in terms of Social Value and how this would
be measured. The report had also been through Cabinet on 21 July 2021 and
recommended to Council for approval.
Councillor Jarvis expressed thanks to the Procurement Specialist for her work on the
Strategy and moved the recommendation contained within the report. He was
seconded by Councillor Dyan Jones, Climate Action and Biodiversity Portfolio Holder.
Support was expressed for the Strategy and the encouragement of consideration of
environmental and social values in procurement, although a desire for strengthening of
this aspect was raised. Councillor Jarvis explained that whilst the Council was only
able to encourage addressing of these aspects within submissions, the important thing
was how they were taken into consideration by the Authority in the tendering process.
Councillor Jarvis confirmed that carbon impact was also addressed within the Strategy.
It was unanimously
RESOLVED – That the Procurement Strategy 2021-2026 attached at Appendix 1 to the
report be approved.

C/36

MEMBER DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2021-26
On behalf of Councillor Philip Dixon, Customer and Locality Services Portfolio Holder,
Councillor Jonathan Brook, Leader and Promoting South Lakeland and Innovation
Portfolio Holder, presented the Member Development Strategy 2021-26 which set out
how Members would be supported by ensuring that they had the skills and knowledge
to fulfil their roles as effectively as possible in the fast paced world of the 21st Century.
The report drew particular attention to the mandatory training list and the addition of
Introduction to Public Sector Finance training for all Member. Due to the streamlined
nature of the new Strategy, the timeframe for a further review was five years, however,
it was pointed out that the Member Support Steering Group would carry out an annual
review to ensure that it continued to remain fit for purpose.
Councillor Brook moved the recommendation contained within the report and was
seconded by Councillor Giles Archibald.
It was unanimously
RESOLVED – That the updated Member Development Strategy 2021-26 be approved.

C/37

2023 REVIEW OF PARLIAMENTARY CONSTITUENCIES
An updated copy of the report had been circulated prior to the meeting, including a
revision to Recommendation No.(3) changing the word “finalise” to “submit”.
Councillor Jonathan Brook presented the report informing Council of the proposals of
the Boundary Commission for England (BCE) in relation to the 2023 Review of
Parliamentary Constituencies and how they would affect South Lakeland. Members
were being asked to determine the Council’s response to the consultation.
The aim of the review was to make constituencies more equal in terms of the numbers
of electors each contained as, due to population changes since the last review, the
number of electors in some constituencies was much higher than in others. The BCE
was required by legislation to equalise the number of electors in each constituency
and, in the North West of England, was proposing 73 constituencies, a reduction of two
from the current number.

Page 14

21
27.07.2021

Council

The report provided information on the consultation process, following the conclusion of
which, the BCE would look at all the evidence received and form its final
recommendations, to be presented to Parliament by July 2023 for approval, with the
new constituencies taking effect at the next General Election.
The report included detailed information regarding the statutory electorate range as
well as other statutory factors.
The report further outlined the proposals for Cumbria. There were currently six
constituencies in Cumbria, none of which had electorates that were within the statutory
electorate range and therefore none were able to remain unchanged. Only five
constituencies could be wholly allocated within the county boundary, necessitating one
cross-county boundary constituency to be constructed, the larger part of which was
within Lancashire.
Currently, there were two parliamentary constituencies within the boundaries of South
Lakeland District Council – Westmorland & Lonsdale and part of Barrow & Furness.
The initial proposals from the BCE made some significant changes to parliamentary
constituencies within the boundaries of South Lakeland District Council, with no single
constituency existing completely within the boundary of the Council area. These were
shown in the maps of the proposed constituency boundaries which could be found in
Appendices 1-4 of the report. The BCE had stated that the options for pairing Cumbria
with another county were limited by the Irish Sea to the west, and the border with
Scotland to the north. It was not proposed that any regional boundaries should be
crossed unless unavoidable, so the option of Cumbria being paired with
Northumberland or County Durham in the North East region, or North Yorkshire in the
Yorkshire and the Humber region was not being suggested. As a result, the BCE was
proposing to pair Cumbria with Lancashire to the south and a constituency that crosses
the county boundary between Cumbria and Lancashire. The BCE was proposing a
Westmorland and Eden constituency, which contained the entirety of Eden district, and
extended into South Lakeland District. The wards from South Lakeland which were
proposed to be included were the Sedbergh & Kirkby Lonsdale ward, the Kendal Rural
ward, and the five wards which constituted the town of Kendal itself. The BCE consider
the A6 and M6 provided strong transport links between Kendal and Penrith, which
formed the two major population centres within the proposed Westmorland and Eden
constituency. This configuration avoided the arbitrary division of either town. The
South Lakeland district ward of Broughton & Coniston had been extensively
reconfigured by the Local Government Boundary Commission for England. The
inclusion of this reconfigured ward within the existing Barrow and Furness constituency
would result in significant disruption across Cumbria. To avoid this, the BCE was
proposing that the Barrow and Furness constituency be extended eastwards, across
the Leven Estuary. The BCE acknowledged that the direct transport links eastwards
were not ideal. There was a railway line across the estuary, but no direct east-west
road link wholly contained within the constituency. However, the A590 was the key
road in this area of south western Cumbria, and connected both sections of the
constituency, so no part was inaccessible. The proposed Barrow and Furness
constituency was, therefore, largely the same as the existing constituency, but now
included the Cartmel and Grange wards, and no longer included the Broughton &
Coniston ward. The BCE considered this arrangement allowed for a more practicable
configuration of constituencies across Cumbria, without fundamentally altering the
nature of the existing Barrow and Furness constituency. The proposed Copeland and
the Western Lakes constituency was similar to the existing Copeland constituency with
an extension eastwards into the South Lakeland District. The proposed constituency
would, therefore, include the Broughton & Coniston, Ambleside and Grasmere, and

Page 15

22
27.07.2021

Council

Windermere wards. In order to maintain the entirety of Lake Windermere within a
single constituency, and to avoid dividing the communities of Windermere and
Bowness-on-Windermere, BCE propose dividing the Bowness & Levens ward between
constituencies. The BCE proposed that the westernmost part of this ward, which
contains Bowness-on-Windermere and covered the southern expanse of Lake
Windermere itself, be included within the Copeland and the Western Lakes
constituency. The BCE considered that the division of this ward enabled them to better
reflect the community ties between the settlements on Lake Windermere, and resulted
in Lake Windermere not being divided between constituencies. This allowed one of the
most iconic lakes of the Lake District to not only be included in a constituency which
covers the majority of the UNESCO World Heritage Site, but also which was wholly
contained within Cumbria. The BCE proposed that the remainder of the divided
Bowness & Levens ward be included with the Burton & Crooklands, and Arnside &
Milnthorpe wards in the proposed Cumbria and Lancashire cross-county boundary
constituency. They considered the existing Morecambe and Lunesdale constituency to
be the most suitable for extension across the county boundary as its existing northern
boundary lay along the entirety of the Cumbria-Lancashire boundary and there were
effective transport links along the M6, A6 and A6070 roads. Aside from the addition of
the Cumbrian wards, the bulk of the constituency remained largely unchanged. The
BCE proposed that this constituency be called Morecambe and South Lakeland and
considered that this name acknowledged both the county crossing, and was an
accurate description of the constituency.
Councillor Brook referred to Appendix 5 to the report, which was a proposed response
to the Boundary Commission which had been prepared by officers and so, he stressed,
formed a non-political view. He moved the revised recommendations which he
suggested would carry more weight if endorsed by the Council and was seconded by
Councillor Giles Archibald.
A lengthy discussion ensued.
Some spoke in support of the Boundary Commission’s proposals. It was pointed out
that the Commission had a duty to periodically review Parliamentary constituencies and
that this work was carried out by independent people. Reference was drawn to Local
Government Reorganisation and to the recent proposal for the Bay and the
relationships of some of the areas included within that bid. Further, reference was
drawn to the fact that that particular submission had also not been aligned with regard
to NHS and Further Education structures. As regards concerns regarding distance and
travel, attention was drawn to the use of digital communication. It was suggested that
residents were not concerned as to where lines were drawn but simply wanted
Members of Parliament that would work hard on their behalf. It was pointed out that
the BCE had done the best job possible and that there would be a problem with
whatever was proposed.
In order to achieve similar sized Parliamentary
constituencies, there would always be an unusual geography, and it was stressed that
equal sized constituencies formed a fundamental part of democracy.
Strong criticism was raised, however, with regards to the Boundary Commission’s
proposals in relation to the proposed Copeland and the Western Lakes constituency
and the inclusion of the Wards of Broughton & Coniston, Ambleside & Grasmere and
Windermere wards therein.
Concerns raised were around, for example, the
impracticalities of the fact that the areas were separated by both England’s highest
mountain range and largest lake, the vast distances and travel time and the differences
in local industry. In addition, it was pointed out that there was little affinity between
residents, with no community linkages, and it was pointed out that not only were the
residents of Broughton & Coniston, Ambleside & Grasmere and Windermere against
the proposals but so were the residents of Whitehaven and Workington.

Page 16

23
27.07.2021

Council

A vote was taken and it was
RESOLVED – That
(1)
the initial proposals of the Boundary Commission for England in relation to the
Parliamentary Constituencies in South Lakeland be noted;
(2)

the consultation responses as outlined in Appendix 5 be endorsed; and

(3)
the Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources be authorised to submit the
response to the consultation for submission to the Boundary Commission for England
by the 2 August 2021 deadline.

C/38

CHANGES TO COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP
On behalf of Councillor Philip Dixon, Customer and Locality Services Portfolio Holder,
Councillor Jonathan Brook, Leader and Promoting South Lakeland and Innovation
Portfolio Holder, reported that, following the appointment of Committee Memberships at
the Annual Meeting of the Council in May 2021, Councillor Peter Endsor had requested
that he be replaced on the Planning Committee. It had subsequently been proposed
by the Liberal Democrat Group that Councillor Giles Archibald would take the place of
Councillor Endsor on the Planning Committee for the remainder of 2021/22.
Councillor Brook moved the recommendation contained within the report and was
seconded by Councillor Dyan Jones, Climate Action and Biodiversity Portfolio Holder.
It was unanimously
RESOLVED – That the changes to the Planning Committee Membership as proposed
be received.

C/39

UPDATE TO THE CONSTITUTION
On behalf of Councillor Philip Dixon, Customer and Locality Services Portfolio Holder,
Councillor Jonathan Brook, Leader and Promoting South Lakeland and Innovation
Portfolio Holder, informed Council that one of the duties of the Monitoring Officer was
to monitor and review, on an annual basis, the operation of the Constitution to ensure
that its aims and objectives were given full effect. It was considered, however, more
appropriate to treat the Constitution as a living document and for in year amendments
to be encouraged to ensure that it was kept up-to-date and met the needs of the
business.
Approval was being sought to amendments under Section E(2) (2.1) to include the
wording, “including changes to job titles” and authorisation for the Monitoring Officer to
make these changes. The Human Resources Committee had been consulted and had
expressed support.
Councillor Brook moved the recommendation contained within the report and was
seconded by Councillor Giles Archibald.
It was unanimously

Page 17

24
27.07.2021

Council

RESOLVED – That approval be given for the addition of the wording, “including
changes to job titles” to delegation E(2) 2.1 and for the Monitoring Officer to make the
necessary changes to the Constitution.

C/40

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT, ARRANGEMENTS
AND GUIDANCE REVISION
On behalf of Councillor Philip Dixon, Customer and Locality Services Portfolio Holder,
Councillor Jonathan Brook, Leader and Promoting South Lakeland and Innovation
Portfolio Holder, presented a report informing Members that in December 2020, the
Local Government Association had published its Model Code of Conduct for Local
Authority Members. The report recommended adopting the said Code, with suitable
local revisions, together with revisions to the Council’s Arrangements in Dealing with
Code of Conduct Matters and Guidance so as to implement the Committee for
Standards in Public Life’s Best Practice recommendations.
Councillor Brook moved the recommendation contained within the report and was
seconded by Councillor Peter Thornton.
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) referred to
an oversight in the proposed Code, explaining that when considered by the Standards
Committee, it had been proposed to alter the definition of harassment as conduct that
causes alarm or distress or puts people in fear of violence and must involve such
conduct on at least two occasions. It had been felt that two occasions should be
altered to one single incident.
It was unanimously
RESOLVED – That
(1)
the best practice recommendations be noted and the LGA Code of Conduct (as
amended), the Arrangements for Dealing with Standards Matters and the Code of
Conduct Guidance, as attached at Appendices 2 , 3 and 4 to the report be adopted;
and
(2)

C/41

the Gifts and Hospitality declaration threshold will remain at £50.

CHANGE IN POLICY FOR NEW LAKE ENCROACHMENTS
On behalf of Councillor Philip Dixon, Customer and Locality Services Portfolio Holder,
Councillor Andrew Jarvis, Deputy Leader and Finance and Assets Portfolio Holder and
Member of the Lake Administration Committee presented a report seeking Council’s
approval for a change in policy for new Lake encroachments to provide officers and
applicants with clarity around encroachment applications where applicants had
outstanding debts or were failing to meet with lease conditions. The proposed change
in policy had been considered by both the Lake Administration and the Overview and
Scrutiny Committees on 2 and 9 July 2021 respectively and had been recommended to
Council for approval, although concern had been expressed at the “like for like”
description in the Policy which, it had been felt, required clarification and amendment.
Councillor Jarvis explained that this description was, therefore, being altered to
“identical”. He moved the recommendations contained within the report and was
seconded by Councillor Doug Rathbone.
It was unanimously

Page 18

25
27.07.2021

Council

RESOLVED – That
(1)
approval be given to change the policy in accordance with the Agreement dated
21 April 1975 between South Lakeland District Council, Windermere Parish Council
and Lakes Parish Council;
(2)
the Monitoring Officer be delegated authority to make the required amendments
to the Council’s Constitution and Scheme of Delegation to implement the decision;
(3)
the Director for Customer and Commercial Services be delegated authority, in
conjunction with the Lead Specialist for Legal, Governance and Democracy and Lead
Specialist for Finance, to review all encroachment applications to consider them
against the Policy to determine which applications can be taken to the Lake
Administration Committee for consideration and, in cases considered to not meet the
policy requirements, to reject them.

C/42

ADJOURNMENT
A vote having been taken, the meeting adjourned for a break at 8.30 p.m. and
reconvened at 8.40 p.m., when the same Members were present.

C/43

LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CABINET QUESTION TIME, INCLUDING THE
COMPOSITE REPORT OF THE CABINET (1 HOUR MAXIMUM)
The Chairman suggested that, on this occasion, written responses be provided to those
written questions which had been received in accordance with paragraphs 10.2 and
10.3 of the Council’s Rules of Procedure, copies of which had been distributed to
Members present at the start of the meeting.
Although a desire to pursue verbal responses was raised, the majority of Members felt
the suggestion of written responses to be a sensible approach on the condition of
timely distribution of the responses. The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead
Specialist (Monitoring Officer) undertook to ensure that the written responses to written
questions were circulated to all Members and published, together with the questions,
on the Council’s Website within 24 hours of the meeting.
Councillor David Webster further sought information on progress on the Ulverston
Leisure Scheme and sought confirmation that the Leisure Centre in Ulverston would
not be put on the back burner due to the transition to a Unitary Authority.
Councillor Tom Harvey proposed, was seconded by Councillor Andrew Jarvis, and it
was unanimously
RESOLVED – That on this occasion, approval be given for written responses to those
written questions received in accordance with paragraphs 10.2 and 10.3 of the
Council’s Rules of Procedure to be circulated to all Members and published on the
Council’s Website within 24 hours of the meeting.

C/44

MINUTES OF MEETINGS
No comments or questions had been received in respect of the minutes of committee
meetings held between 23 and 30 April 2021.

Page 19

26
27.07.2021

C/45

Council

QUESTIONS TO CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL OR CHAIRMAN OF ANY
COMMITTEE OR SUB-COMMITTEE
No questions had been received under Rule 10.6 of the Council’s Rules of Procedure.

C/46

URGENT DECISIONS
RESOLVED – That the details relating to an urgent Executive Decision taken since the
last scheduled ordinary meeting of the Council held on 23 March 2021, namely
CEX/164 (2020/21), be received.

C/47

EMERGENCY DELEGATED EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
RESOLVED – That the following Emergency Delegated Executive Decisions taken by
the Chief Executive, in accordance with the Leader’s decision noted by Cabinet at
CEX/04 (2019/20), be noted:(1)

016 08-034-21 Business Support Grants; and

(2)
017 02-07-21 Use of Powers under Section 23 of the Local Government Act
1976.

The meeting ended at 8.50 p.m.

Page 20

Item No.5

28 July to 11 November 2021
Official engagements undertaken by the Chairman

Date

Engagement

5 September 2021

Civic Sunday Service, Coronation Hall, Ulverston

8 September 2021

Westmorland County Show, Lane Farm, Crooklands

25 September 2021

Kendal Torchlight Parade

Official engagements undertaken by the Vice-Chairman

Date

Engagement

14 August 2021

The Lake District Holocaust Project, The Lakes School, Cumbria. An
event to mark the 76th anniversary of the arrival of the Windermere
Boys in Cumbria

16 September 2021

Mayor Making Ceremony, Kendal Town Hall

19 September 2021

Mayor of Allerdale’s Civic Service of Celebration, All Saints Church,
Wigton

7 November 2021

Royal British Legion Annual Service of Remembrance, St Paul’s
Church, Rusland.

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22

Item No.7
South Lakeland District Council
Council
Thursday 11th November 2021

Corporate Financial Update Quarters 1 and 2,
2021/22
Portfolio:

Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder

Report from:

Section 151 Officer

Report Author:

Claire Read – Finance Specialist, Claire Chouchoulas – Finance
Specialist

Wards:

All Wards

Forward Plan:

N/A

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

It is expected that Members note the projected year end position based on
performance to the end of Quarter 2 2021/22 and officers planned actions to ensure
a balanced budget by the end of the financial year.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that Council;
(1) Note the contents of the report and Appendices 1-3;
(2) Approve the re-profiling of the Capital Programme as shown in 3.2.3 and
create the relevant Revenue Budget for the Next Steps Programme;
(3) Approve the revenue virements listed in 3.1.2 and delegate authority to the
Lead Specialist Legal Governance and Democratic Services in conjunction
with the relevant Operational Lead to enter into the relevant grant
agreements accordingly;
(4) Approve the use of the reserves as per 3.1.3.; and
(5) Approve the increase in the Interest Rate Exposure Limit for Variable Rate
Investments to £30m from £20m as shown in paragraph 3.3.4.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.0.1

This report combines the Q2 Finance Update report considered by Cabinet on 20th
October 2021 with key issues from the Q1 Finance Update report considered by
Cabinet on 1st September 2021 that were due to be considered by Council at the
meeting on 5th October 2021 that was then cancelled.

3.0.2 Revenue – Appendix 1 sets out the revenue variances to date.
a)

Covid-19 - As part of the 2021/22 Budget report approved at Council in February
2021, a Covid-19 Contingency budget of £697k was approved.

b)

Currently the best estimate of additional costs and loss of income from Covid-19
for 2021/22 are £377k, further work is being undertaken to firm up these

Page 23

estimates. While this currently suggests a saving against the contingency budget
of £320k, it is too early to declare this as the situation continues to develop and
with winter still to come this could change.
c)

Under the Government Sales Fees and Charges Support Scheme we are able
to submit one final claim for the period of April to July 2021. The claim will be
submitted after the finalised of this report but it is expected that the claim will be
in the region of the income budget in 2021/22 for this scheme which assumes
£65k of grant.

d)

Business as Usual (BAU) – in order to fully understand the underlying position
the business as usual position has been separately identified–excluding the
impact of Covid-19. The approved net revenue budget for 2020/21 set by
Council in February 2021 was £11.9m which included a vacancy factor savings
target of £478.4k. Additionally, carry forward requests of £469.8k were approved
by Cabinet on 23 June 2021. Expenditure budgets have been increased in
accordance with those approved carry forwards along with the matching funding
from reserves.

e)

The MTFP approved at Council on 27th July 2021 considered some of the longer
term financial pressures/opportunities, including reinstating the pay award
assumption for 2021/22 of 2% of £214k, removing the re-building of General
Reserve no longer required for Covid-19 of £315.8k, expenditure relating Local
Government Reorganisation of £250k and adjusting for Interest Payable of
£130.3k. All these amendments are net to £17.9k additional expenditure and are
indicative figures.

Overall, at the end of Quarter 2, budget monitoring has identified a forecast business
as usual year-end overspend of c£95k, however if the transfer from the NNDR Pool
Reserve requested in 3.1.2 is approved this will become an underspend of £49k. The
projected overspend at the same period in 2020/21 was £216k with a final underspend
at the end of 2020/21 on BAU of around £258k
3.0.3 Capital – Appendix 2 sets out the position on the capital programme. The capital
budget for 2021/22 approved by Council in February was £19.085m. The working
budget is now requested to be increased to £26.898m following re-profiling requests
considered by Cabinet in the Q1 Finance Update report and carry forwards approved
in the Outturn report.
3.0.4 Treasury – Appendix 3 provides an update on Treasury management for the quarter.
3.1

Business as Usual Revenue Variances by Leadership Team

3.1.1 Appendix 1 provides the detail of the 2021/22 Quarter 2 (Q2) revenue variances for
service area grouped by lead officer. The projected out-turn is for a net overspend of
c£95k for business as usual. This overspend is being reviewed by Corporate
Management Team and work is being carried out with Leads to develop a better
understanding of the variances and options to try and bring these back in line with
budgets. As you can see in 3.1.2 one suggestion is a transfer from the NNDR Pool
Reserve. Further detail of the current projections is provided below in Table 1 and
paragraphs a. to f. At the same position last year (2020/21) there was a projected
overspend of £216k.

Page 24

Table 1: Summary by Service Area
Current
Working
Budget Full
Year
£000
7,286

Expenditure
Variance
to Date
£000

Income
Variance
to Date
£000

Overall
Variance
to Date
£000

Out-turn
projection
BAU*
£000

Out-Turn
projection
Covid-19
£000

(170)

13

(157)

(140)

(655)

Customer and Locality
Services (b)

2,306

(32)

3

(29)

0

0

Place and Environment (c)

5,216

3

101

104

269

25

People Welfare and
Income Maximisation (d)

10,078

73

(31)

42

54

135

Delivery and Commercial
Services (e)

4,487

73

13

86

125

175

(29,355)

(213)

0

(213)

(213)

0

18

(266)

99

(167)

95

(320)

Strategy, Innovation and
Resources (a)

Corporate Items (f)
Total GF

*BAU = Business as usual

a.

Strategy Innovation and Resources– the current projection is for a £140k saving
against budget, due to:


£60k projected underspend relating to the Debt Advisory growth bid;



£40k underspend on the Customer Connect Transition Training budget for which a
carry forward has been requested. Some of the programmed training is currently
going through procurement and it is unlikely that part of this training will be delivered
in this financial year;



£30k projected underspend on salaries for the Performance Innovation and
Commissioning Lead Specialist post which is currently vacant;



£25k projected underspend for corporate apprentice posts which are currently
vacant and out for recruitment; and



£14.7k vacancy saving allowance which will not be achieved within Management
Team.

b.

Customer and Locality Services – there are currently no projected BAU
over/underspends within this service.

c.

Place and Environment Services – The current projection is for a £269k overspend.
The main reasons for the projected overspend are:


£20k projected income surplus due to high demand earlier in the year for land
search fees.



£25k net shortfall in Private Water income;



£60k projected shortfall in planning income due to no major housing developments
in the pipeline. There are still a high number of smaller applications on going,
however the income from these is much less than what would be received for a
major property development; and



£204k overspend on salaries within places and environment, £43k of which is the
vacancy saving target which will not be achieved and the remainder due to the use
of agency staff to fill vacant posts we are currently recruiting to in order to continue
service delivery.

Page 25

People, Welfare and Income Maximisation – the current projection is for a £54k BAU
overspend within this service, due to various variances. These are:

d.

e.



£12k surplus income for funding received from Cumbria County Council towards
Local Care Leaver Discounts applied to Council Tax in 2019/20 and 2020/21;



£30k projected additional income for housing benefit relating to
emergency/temporary accommodation for homelessness which is not currently
budgeted for; and



£96k deficit within rent allowances. Housing Benefit payments and the subsidy
income relating to these payments have been reducing since the introduction of
Universal Credits however current budgets don’t reflect this reduction. The admin
grant received for Housing Benefit has also reduced due to the reduction in case
load. Additionally external audit fees have increased significantly nationally.

Delivery and Commercial Services - the current projection is for a £125k overspend.
This is made up of a number of variances across the service and these are:

f.



£50k projected surplus for recycling credits income;



£10k expected surplus for litter bin supply and emptying;



£7k overspend on salaries at Town View Fields due to use of agency/casual staff
to cover absence;



£23k overspend for 2020/21 Kendal Museum management fee which was not paid
until 2021/22;



£25k anticipated shortfall in rental income for investment properties which are
currently vacant;



£50k shortfall for Braithwaite Fold Caravan Park due to delays with lease until there
was further clarity on Covid-19; and



£80k deficit within the Transport service, of which £40k relates to a shortfall in
income for works to contract vehicles and the remaining £40k relates to an
overspend on repairs and maintenance to the fleet.

Corporate – there is currently an underspend of £213k within corporate items. Now
that the 2020/21 accounts have been concluded we have been able to calculate the
Minimum Revenue Provision. Due to lower capital expenditure and timing of the
completion of some capital schemes there is an underspend of £213k.

Revenue Virements
3.1.2 As per the Financial Procedure Rules the following budget virements are requested to
be approved by Council:
a. Rough Sleeping Initiative – The Council is to receive £110k grant funding from
MHCLG towards tackling rough sleeping in the District. Permission is now sought to
create an income budget with corresponding expenditure budget within the
Homelessness service for the value of this funding.
b. Other Homelessness Grant Funding – The Council is to receive further grant
funding towards the Homelessness service towards various initiatives and therefore
need to increase the income budget within GHM11 with corresponding increase to
expenditure budgets under the relevant budget headings. For a breakdown of the
additional funding which will be received in 2021/22 please see Table 2 below:

Page 26

Table 2: Homelessness Grant Funding
Grant title

Amount

Homelessness Prevention Grant Uplift

£60,000

Domestic Abuse Supported Accommodation

£33,072

Domestic Abuse Supported Accommodation County Funding

£26,250

Domestic Violence Countywide Bid

£42,500

Changing Futures

£50,000

Offender Management Scheme

£22,500

Total funding

£234,322

c. Insourcing of Property Services – Following a decision the decision at Cabinet on
the 21st July 2021 to pursue the insourcing of the property services function from
October 2021, permission is sought to adjust the allocation of the budgets between
relevant budget headings such as Employee costs and Supplies and Services.
d. Covid-19 Contain Outbreak Management Fund and other associated grants –
the Council continues to receive allocations of funding to support the public health
response to the pandemic, particularly around test and trace and compliance activities.
This grant funding is a mixture of direct funding from the Department of Health and
Social Care (DHSC) and from Cumbria County Council, who also receive funding from
DHSC. Other grants are issued by MHCLG. Approval is sought to delegate to the
Lead Specialist Legal Governance and Democratic Services in conjunction with the
relevant Operational Lead to enter into relevant grant agreements with the amend of
budgets to be reported in the next Corporate Finance Update.
Use of Reserves
3.1.3

As per the Financial Procedure Rules the following transfers from reserves are
requested to be approved from the NNDR Pool Reserve:
a. Amendments to Establishment – Following approval at HR Committee on 20th
July 2021, two additional posts have been added to the Establishment, one being a
Principal Specialist within the People Welfare and Income Service and the other a
Case Management Team Leader with the Places and Environment Service. It has been
agreed that these posts will be funded from the NNDR Pool Reserve for the next two
years unless an existing permanent established post becomes available, therefore up
to £247,136 may be required to be transferred to cover the period from October 2021
to March 2024.
b. Agency Staff - Due to ongoing problems with recruiting into vacant posts, agency
have had to be used to cover service critical posts across the Council. A Corporate
solution to this is to seek approval to fund £144k of salary costs for Economy and
Culture Specialists within the current establishment in order to free up establishment
funding to cover some of these critical shortages.

Analysis of employee budgets
3.1.4

The position on employee costs at Quarter 2 is summarised in Table 2 below

3.1.5

The total variance is an overspend of £121k, 1.7% of the year to date budget. This
includes the 4% vacancy saving built in to all direct employee cost budgets.

Page 27

Table 2: Employee costs

3.1.6

Full year
budget

Profiled
budget

Actual to
date

Variance

Variance

£000

£000

£000

£000

%

14,594

7,325

7,446

121

1.7%

Included in table 2 above is expenditure on contract and agency staff. The total spend
on this element of employee costs is £602k against a profiled budget of £208k. This
expenditure on contract and agency staff equates to 8.08% of the total spend on
employee costs in Quarter 2. The majority of this relates to:
 Specialist-Place (£123k) which is for development control specialists;
 Waste/Recycling service (£78k) to cover sickness and vacancies in order to deliver
the service;
 Case Management Welfare and Income Maximisation (£76k) mainly to cover
revenue and benefits response to Covid-19;
 Specialists Environment (£63k) which is for environmental protection specialists
backfilling current establishment which are working on the Covid-19 response;
 Specialists Welfare and Income Maximisation (£61k) mainly to cover revenue and
benefits response to Covid-19;
 Community Housing Fund (£36k) for Community Led Housing Officer;
 Specialists People (£35k) to cover Housing Support;
 Covid-19 (£31k) to cover the response to the pandemic e.g. Compliance
 Case Management People (£25k) to cover the homelessness response to Covid19; and
 Town View Fields (£18k) to cover the hostel while staff have been shielding/selfisolating
These majority of the above cover the use of agency while we carry out recruitment to
vacant posts and continue service delivery during the Covid-19 pandemic.

3.2

Capital programme

3.2.1 The 2021/22 budget for capital was initially £19.085m, , this has since been updated
twice, once by £6.160m following approval of the 2020/21 Q3 corporate finance update
at Council on 23 March 2021 and again by £1.610m following the approval of the
Outturn report at Cabinet on 23 June 2021. Further amendments are set out below
which were requested by Cabinet as part of the Q1 Finance Update report which will
result in a budget of £26.898m. Spend at the end of quarter 2 was £3.317m, with a
further £2.524m of committed expenditure through purchase orders.

Page 28

Table 3: Summary of capital programme and expenditure

Lead
Digital
Place and Environmental
Services
People, Welfare & Income
Maximisation
Delivery and Commercial
Services
Strategy
Customer and Locality Services
Grand Total

Full Year
Budget
£000

Expenditure
£000

Budget
Remaining
£000

468

107

361

9,430

359

9,071

5,464

345

5,119

10,908

2,306

8,602

196

24

172

432

176

256

26,898

3,317

23,581

3.2.2 Appendix 2 contains further comments and updates on all capital schemes.
3.2.3 There are two adjustments needed to the capital programme totalling £468,765, they
are:
 The re-profiling of £79,765 for the Ulverston Asset Transfer Programme to 2023/24,
to enable work by a partner organisation to be completed.
 The transfer to revenue of £389,000 of external funding for the Next Steps
programme. This is a homelessness programme which on review no longer fits the
definition of a capital project.
3.2.4

A review of the capital programme is being carried out to challenge the assumed spend
profile and completion dates of all schemes. Proposals for a revised capital
programme will be submitted to Cabinet and Council in December 2021.

3.3

Treasury Management

3.3.1 Appendix 3 contains an overview of the Council’s position against the agreed
indicators and limits.
3.3.2 To date the Council’s investments have performed well against market expectations,
with all investments performing in excess of their benchmarks.
3.3.3 There has been no increase in borrowing this year to date.
3.3.4 An update to the Treasury Management Interest Rate Exposure Limit for Variable Rate
investments from £20m to £30m is requested to allow officers to fully utilise all
investment options open to it while we carry additional funds due the timing difference
in NNDR Section 31 Relief reconciliation payments. Full details are included in
Appendix 3.
3.4

Collection Fund

3.4.1 Table 4 below sets out the performance on local tax collection. The Council Tax
Collection rate at 30 September 2021 is 57.92%, which is 0.33% below the level target.
Recovery actions are picking up in pace follow new streamed lined processes put in
place following a review of processes by the recovery specialist and it is expected that
this gap will reduce further over the remainder of the financial year.
3.4.2 The Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) collection rate figure is 46.25% which is 9.81% below
target. This is as a result of rebilling in July following the change in the retail relief from

Page 29

100% to 66%, as the Covid-19 element of the relief came to an end. As a result
numerous businesses were having to pay rates for the first time in over a year so have
had to re-establish their DD mandates. This is happening and it is expected that the
gap to the target will continue to narrow over the remainder of the financial year
Table 4: Local Taxation Collection rate
Percentage
Collected
Quarter 1

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

%

%

%

%

%

%

Council Tax

58.20

58.31

58.23

58.25

56.74

57.92

Business
Rates

56.07

55.93

55.73

56.06

49.76

46.25

3.4.3 No change has been made to the NNDR Appeals Provision as we still await legislation
from government over material changes in circumstances (MCC) re Covid-19.
3.5

Sundry Debts

3.5.1 The aim of this section is to describe the current debt position and to provide assurance
over collection performance. Table 5 below summarises the current collection rate on
sundry debts:
3.5.2 Table 5: Summary of collection
2016/17
and
earlier

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22
to date

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

58

22

42

61

194

770

Total value of invoices
/ credit notes raised

33,648

5,086

5,695

6,148

6,005

3,045

Collection Rate (%)

99.83

99.56

99.26

99.00

96.76

74.70

Debt outstanding

3.5.3

An analysis of outstanding sundry debts reveals that over 99% of debts have been
recovered in years up to 2019/20.

3.5.4

In the current year to date, 74.70% of debt has been recovered this is an increase
compared to 57.33% at the same time in 2020/21. The table below splits down in
more detail the age profile of the current outstanding debts. 78% of the current year
debt relates to invoices which are less than a month old and therefore not overdue.
Table 6: Age profile of 2021/22 invoices
2021/22 Invoices

£000

6 months overdue

24.3

81% of this relates to invoices on instalment
arrangements

5 months overdue

43.3

64% relates to market rents on instalment
arrangements and 31% to encroachment rents being
pursued by Legal

4 months overdue

11.4

Page 30

2021/22 Invoices

£000

3 months overdue

21.6

2 months overdue

6.2

1 month overdue

63.4

Not yet due

600.0

Total end of Quarter 2

770.3

20% of this debt is one invoice which relates to
recovery of legal costs and 33% relates to moorings
which are going through the recovery process

3.6

Creditors

3.6.1

At Quarter 2 the council had made 12,565 payments to creditors totalling over
£234m, of this 98.5% were paid within 30 days as can be seen in Table 7 below
Table 7: Creditors Performance
Payment
Method

Paid Within 30 days

Over 30 days

£000
BACS

3.6.2

£000

46,086

185

669

12,421

46,755

92

183,534

0

0

92

183,534

Direct Debit
%

£000

12,236

CHAPS
Totals

Total

237

4,826

6

3

243

4,829

12,565

234,446

191

672

12,756

235,118

98.50%

99.71%

1.50%

0.29%

As at 30 September 2021 there were 33 invoices/credit notes outstanding, this can
be analysed as follows:
Table 8: Outstanding Invoices/Credit Notes

£
Invoice in dispute

Average
Days
outstanding

%

10

82,077.32

73.72

313

Credit notes
Ready for payment on next
pay run

8

-5,594.60

-5.03

865

8

28,232.31

25.36

44

Awaiting Goods Received Note

3

1,278.73

1.15

133

Paid since end of Sept

4

5,339.29

4.80

48

33

111,333.05

100.00

3.6.3

Further work is being undertaken by officers to understand why invoices are in
dispute. The credit notes relate to suppliers which are no longer in use and we are
perusing refunds to settle these.

4.0

Consultation

4.1

Senior management, budget holders and the Finance Portfolio Holder have been
consulted. This report combines the Q1 Finance Update and Q2 Finance Update
reports previously reported to Cabinet.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

There are no alternative options for Appendices 1-3

Page 31

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

Regular budget monitoring forms part of the corporate governance arrangements that
support all Council priorities.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

Finance and resource information is contained within the report.

Human Resources
7.2

There are a number of important factors that are significantly affecting recruitment
and retention. These are as follows:












Recruitment at SLDC remains extremely busy.
Currently have 3 roles out for recruitment
11 candidates in pre-employment checks
33 active cases within recruitment
National figures indicate 1.1million vacancies across the UK. It’s a job hunter’s
market, and this is affecting the number of people applying for roles at SLDC and
is affecting the number of existing employees looking at leaving the organisation
We have 9 leavers within the organisation. This has gone up by 2 since last
week.
Turnover from June to Sept 2021 is twice the level is was in the corresponding
period last year. Up to 19.1% versus 9.6% last year. This equates to 26 leavers
versus 13 leavers in this period in 2020. Whilst 6 of the leavers this year were
due to the ending of fixed term contracts, the increase is still significant
We continue to struggle to recruit in a small number of specialist areas. Planning
is an obvious example. Other Cumbria councils (and beyond) are having similar
challenges. The reality is that lots of public sector organisations are fishing in the
same small pool, and there are often much more attractive options in the private
sector for people with these scarce skills
LGR, and the inherent uncertainty it brings, will undoubtedly impact the decision
making process for people who may consider joining (or leaving) SLDC

Whilst recruitment efforts should and will continue, we must recognise the inevitability
of gaps within the organisation that will need to be filled by other means (such as

agency personnel).
Legal
7.3

There are no direct legal implications arising of the report.

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? No

7.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This
report is an historic view of financial performance. The overall impact assessment of
the choices and decisions required to set the annual budget is undertaken at budget
setting time.

7.6

There are no additional health, social, economic and environmental impacts as a
result of the report

Equality and Diversity
7.7

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No

Page 32

7.8

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This
report is an historic view of financial performance. The overall impact assessment of
the choices and decisions required to set the annual budget is undertaken at budget
setting time.

7.9

Summary of equality and diversity impacts: There are no additional equality impacts
as a result of the report

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

Not effectively managing
budgets could lead to
overspending.

Possible legal challenge,
audit qualification and ultra
vires expenditure.

Scrutiny of budgets
through review of
monitoring reports.

Recurring pressures or savings
are not identified

Medium Term Financial
Planning may not reflect
the future impact of current
issues.

Regular monitoring of
budgets in year to inform
the MTFP and annual
budget setting process.

Contact Officers
Claire Chouchoulas, Finance Specialist, c.chouchoulas@southlakeland.gov.uk, 01539
793154
Claire Read, Finance Specialist, Claire.Read@southalkeland.gov.uk, 01539 793152
Helen Smith, Finance Lead Specialist and S151 Officer, h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk,
01539 793147
Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Detailed Revenue Budget Monitoring

2

Detailed Capital Budget Monitoring

3

Treasury Management Update

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document

Where it is available

2021/22 Budget Book including MTFP projections

https://tinyurl.com/vtst3ez4

Budget Setting Report

https://tinyurl.com/uyyt8wte

Medium Term Financial Plan 2021/22-20226/27

https://tinyurl.com/rf3na7k3

Corporate Financial Update Quarter 1, 2021/22

https://tinyurl.com/ah2su44k

Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
CMT

Date sent
01/11/2021
Report from S151 Officer
01/11/2021

Circulated to
Lead Specialist

Date sent
N/A

Page 33

Date Signed off
01/11/2021
01/11/2021
01/11/2021

Circulated to
Human Resources Lead Specialist
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
10/11/2021
11/11/2021

Page 34

Appendix 1
The purpose of this appendix is to set out the revenue budget variance projections based on data up to 30/09/2021 Quarter 2
BAU = Business as usual

Service

Portfolio

Expenditure
Budget Full
Year
£

Current Full
Income Budget
Year Working
Full Year
Budget
£
£

Expenditure
Variance
to Date
£

Income
Variance
to Date
£

Overall
Variance
to Date
£

BAU Out-turn
projection
>£10k

BAU Out-turn
projection
less Carry
Forward
Requests >
£10k

BAU Carry
Forward
Requests
>£10k

Covid-19
Outturn
Projections
£

BAU Commentary

COVID-19 Commentary

Strategy, Innovation and Resources

Page 35

DSP

Performance Innovation
Commiss

Promoting South
Lakeland

169,424

0

169,424

-31,486

0

-31,486

-30,000

0

-30,000

Potential underspend of £30k for PIC Lead
Specialist for first half of the financial year.
0 Post reviewed at HR Committee and approval
to use for Principal Specialist given. Currently
out for recruitment

GCG

Community Grants

Economy Culture
and Leisure

262,950

0

262,950

-33,850

0

-33,850

-60,000

0

-60,000

0

EXS

Policy and Performance

Housing and
Innovation

116,158

0

116,158

-12,612

0

-12,612

-40,000

0

-40,000

Potential carry forward of £40k for Customer
0 Connect Transition Training which has been
delayed

DXC

Management Team

Promoting South
Lakeland

368,780

0

368,780

2,315

0

2,315

14,700

0

14,700

Due to being fully staffed the vacancy saving
0 allowance of £14.7k will not be achieved for
this area

GTH

Other Items

Finance and
Resources

990,080

-513,291

476,789

0

0

0

0

0

0

-655,106

DSH

Human Resources

Customer Comm
Serv and People

379,941

-3,514

376,427

-35,409

1,757

-33,652

-25,000

0

-25,000

0

GMM

Members

Customer Comm
Serv and People

398,396

0

398,396

-25,248

0

-25,248

0

0

0

£30k potential underspend on unclaimed
0 Member's Allowance, to be transferred to the
Personal Financial Resilience Reserve

0

Potential carry forward of Customer Connect
Digital Innovation Project budgets. Spend for
21/22 will be reviewed and amount to be
0 carried forward will be confirmed in coming
months. This is highly dependent on the
outcome of the review for large projects in the
run up to LGR

ECU

Customer Services

Customer Comm
Serv and People

545,400

0

545,400

0

0

0

0

0

Other Strategy, Innovation and Resources

5,102,417

-530,609

4,571,808

-33,553

11,194

-22,360

0

0

0

Total Strategy, Innovation and Resources

8,333,546

-1,047,414

7,286,132

-169,844

12,951

-156,893

-140,300

0

-140,300

2,398,896
2,398,896

-93,320
-93,320

2,305,576
2,305,576

-31,692
-31,692

2,618
2,618

-29,074
-29,074

0
0

0
0

0
0

Underpsend of £60k for Debt Advisory Growth
Bid

£697,500 Covid-19 Contigency Budget - part
offset by £42.4k extra costs associated with
Covid-19 (agency, equipment, etc) within
GTH55. Remainder expected to be offset by
overspends/shortfalls in income across
services
Potential underspend of £25k for apprentice
posts - currently out for recruitment

0 Individual variances <£10k
-655,106

Customer and Commercial Services
Operational Lead Customer and Locality Services
Other Customer and Locality Services
Total Operational Lead Customer and Locality Serv

0 Individual variances <£10k
0

Operational Lead Place and Environment

DCS

Specialist Services

Customer Comm
Serv and People

2,337,136

-134

2,337,002

46,651

0

46,651

204,000

0

204,000

£204k potential overspend on salaries, of
which £43k is vacancy saving target which will
0 not be achieved and the remainder is use of
agency to cover vacant posts in order to
continue service delivery

Service

Portfolio

Expenditure
Budget Full
Year
£

Current Full
Income Budget
Year Working
Full Year
Budget
£
£

Expenditure
Variance
to Date
£

Income
Variance
to Date
£

Overall
Variance
to Date
£

BAU Out-turn
projection
>£10k

BAU Out-turn
projection
less Carry
Forward
Requests >
£10k

BAU Carry
Forward
Requests
>£10k

Covid-19
Outturn
Projections
£

BAU Commentary

Potential income shortfall of £60k in planning
income due to no major development
applications in the pipeline. There are still a
high number of smaller applications on going,
0
however the income from these is much less
than what would be received for a major
property development.To be reviewed monthly
through monitoring

GDC

Development Control

Housing and
Innovation

79,187

-553,170

-473,983

0

61,413

61,413

60,000

0

60,000

GLC

Local Land Charges

Housing and
Innovation

93,648

-250,000

-156,352

2,974

-16,863

-13,890

-20,000

0

-20,000

0

GWS

Water Sampling

Climate Emergency
and Localism

61,002

-114,287

-53,285

-26,933

39,625

12,693

25,000

0

25,000

25,000

4,389,853
6,960,826

-827,608
-1,745,199

3,562,245
5,215,627

-19,607
3,085

16,343
100,518

-3,264
103,603

0
269,000

0
0

0
269,000

Other Specialist Services
Total Operational Lead Place and Environment

COVID-19 Commentary

£20k projected income surplus due to high
demand for search fees earlier in the year

Potential net shortfall of £25k, consisting of
Potential BAU net shortfall of £25k, consisting
shortfall on Water Sampling income, and
of shortfall on Water Sampling income, and
corresponding underspend on Sampling &
corresponding underspend on Sampling &
Inspection Fee expenditure. This is due to
Inspection Fee expenditure.
Covid-19 restrictions

0 Individual variances <£10k
25,000

Individual variances <£10k

Operational Lead People, Welfare and Income Maximisation

Page 36

DCM

Case Management

Customer Comm
Serv and People

GFT

Council Tax Collection

GHM

GHT

GRA

£50k potential overspend on salaries partly
due vacancy saving target which will not be
achieved due to need to continue service
delivery as a result of Covid-19 and agency to
cover Revs and Bens backlog as a result of
Covid-19

2,188,442

-75,201

2,113,241

27,203

3,497

30,700

0

0

0

50,000

Finance and
Resources

33,400

-182,832

-149,432

1

-11,817

-11,817

-11,800

0

-11,800

0

£11.8k surplus income for funding received
from CCC towards Local Care Leaver
Discounts applied to Council Tax in 2019/20
and 2020/21

Homelessness

Housing and
Innovation

268,703

-224,760

43,943

1,448

-14,302

-12,854

-30,000

0

-30,000

0

£30k projected additional income for housing
benefit relating to emergency/temporary
accomodation for homelessness not currently
budgeted for

Housing Standards

Housing and
Innovation

593,461

-4,520

588,941

48,864

-86

48,777

0

0

0

85,000

Rent Allowances

Finance and
Resources

Other Case Management
Total Operational Lead People, Welfare and Incom
Operational Lead Delivery and Commercial Services

15,719,775

-16,074,530

-354,755

0

0

0

96,000

0

96,000

8,595,276
27,399,057

-759,383
-17,321,226

7,835,893
10,077,831

-4,428
73,087

-8,105
-30,812

-12,532
42,275

0
54,200

0
0

0
54,200

Potential shortfall of £85k relating to DFG
admin levy income due to very large backlog
of applications as a result of Covid-19. This
may reduce if the request for additional
resources to deal with the backlog is accepted

Housing Benefit payments and the subsidy
income relating to these payments have been
reducing since the introduction of Universal
Credits however the current budgets don't
reflect this. The admin grant received for
0 Housing Benefit has also reduced due the
reduction in case load. Additionally external
audit fees have increased significantly
nationally. A budget pressure bid has been
completed for future years to reflect these
changes
0 Individual variances <£10k
135,000

Individual variances <£10k

Service

Portfolio

Expenditure
Budget Full
Year
£

Current Full
Income Budget
Year Working
Full Year
Budget
£
£

Expenditure
Variance
to Date
£

Income
Variance
to Date
£

Overall
Variance
to Date
£

BAU Out-turn
projection
>£10k

BAU Out-turn
projection
less Carry
Forward
Requests >
£10k

BAU Carry
Forward
Requests
>£10k

Covid-19
Outturn
Projections
£

BAU Commentary

COVID-19 Commentary

Income in car parks is expected to be on
target by the end of the financial year.
Although income from town centres has been
lower than previous years, this is now
improving. Plus the additional income received
from the Lakes should in the main offset any Potential additional income for April to June
0 shortfall in the other areas. This will carry on 21, as part of MHCLG claim for sales, fees
being reviewed through out the year, through and charges grant
monthly budget monitoring. Due to more
customers paying by card the charges
attached to these payments are significantly
higher than in previous years. It is the hope
that this will be offset by additional income.

Page 37

GCK

Car Parks

Customer Comm
Serv and People

2,304,801

-4,955,254

-2,650,453

-9,871

0

-9,871

0

0

0

GCS

Caravan Site

Customer Comm
Serv and People

216,493

-434,146

-217,653

-6,691

0

-6,691

50,000

0

50,000

50,000

£100k anticipated shortfall in income from Brathwaite Fold caravan park due to delay signing
lease until there was further clarity on the impact of Covid-19 - split 50:50 BAU and Covid-19

GHL

Town View Field Hostel

Housing and
Innovation

464,658

-269,701

194,957

11,231

0

11,230

7,000

0

7,000

13,000

£7k overspend expected on salaries due to
use of Agency/contract to cover staff
shortages. The hostel needs to be covered
24/7 therefore unable to revise staffing costs.

GLE

Leisure Centres (incl
Pools)

Economy Culture
and Leisure

1,108,169

-21,938

1,086,231

-7,571

20

-7,551

0

0

0

GLW

Lake Windermere

Economy Culture
and Leisure

500,809

-1,478,703

-977,894

7,182

-13,499

-6,317

0

0

0

12,000

GMU

Museum

Economy Culture
and Leisure

47,721

0

47,721

21,916

0

21,916

23,000

0

23,000

0

GPH

Public Halls

Economy Culture
and Leisure

207,464

-98,059

109,405

-5,359

38,182

32,823

0

0

0

40,000

GSY

Sundry Properties

Finance and
Resources

200,089

-168,726

31,363

785

10,213

10,998

25,000

0

25,000

0

GTG

Street Cleansing Client

Customer Comm
Serv and People

1,179,255

-6,667

1,172,588

-3,087

-11,597

-14,684

-10,000

0

-10,000

0 £10k surplus on litter bin supply and emptying
£40k anticipated shortfall in income for works
to contract vehicles, due to the age of the
vehicles SLDC maintain as part of these
contracts. As these vehicles age income in
future years is expected to increase, of course
this will depend on their replacement
0
programmes. £40k projected overspend for
repairs and maintenance due to the condition
of the sweepers and the Romaquips. The life
cycle of these vehicles are not as long as
originally projected in the vehicle and plant
programme.

Potential carry forward request relating to
0 Ulverston Leisure Centre, due to progress of
phases

Awaiting further comments regarding Mooring Shortfal of £12k expected on Lake Reg Fees
Rents and Encroachment Rents Income.
Commission taken on behalf of the LDNPA

£23k overspend relates to 20/21 Management
Fee.
Shortfall of £40k in income at Kendal Town
Hall due to Covid-19. This is being monitored
and further investigation is currently taking
place
£25k Potential shortfall due to vacant
Investment Properties. This will be reviewed
through monthly budget monitoring if the
properties become occupied.

GTS

Transport

Customer Comm
Serv and People

111,868

-111,868

0

7,532

25,168

32,700

80,000

0

80,000

GWK

Kerbside Coll Recycling
Client

Customer Comm
Serv and People

5,308,032

-1,514,474

3,793,558

68,308

-21,914

46,394

-50,000

0

-50,000

Other Delivery and Commercial Services
Total Operational Lead Delivery and Commercial S

2,362,046
14,011,405

-464,421
-9,523,957

1,897,625
4,487,448

-11,873
72,502

-13,341
13,232

-25,214
85,734

0
125,000

0
0

0
125,000

0 Individual variances <£10k
175,000

Total Customer and Commercial Services

50,770,184

-28,683,702

22,086,482

116,982

85,556

202,537

448,200

0

448,200

335,000

Corporate items

60,000

£13k projected overspend on salaries due to
use of agency/casual due to staff either
shielding/isolating due to Covid-19. The hostel
needs to be covered 24/7 therefore unable to
revise staffing costs.
Negotiations ongoing with our leisure service
provider on the level of financial support for
2020/21 and 2021/22 due to Covid-19

Projected surplus of £110k on recycling credits
£60k additional costs associated with staff
part offset by tipping and disposal of £60k.
shielding/isolating as a result of Covid-19.
Increase in sale of materials income offsets
Offset by Covid-19 contigency budget in GTH.
increase in clinical waste charges.
Individual variances <£10k

Service

VGS58

Statutory adj. Capital
Charges

Other Corporate Items
Total Corporate items
Total Corporate Items
Total GF
Net GF

Expenditure
Budget Full
Year
£

Portfolio

0

Current Full
Income Budget
Year Working
Full Year
Budget
£
£

Expenditure
Variance
to Date
£

Income
Variance
to Date
£

Overall
Variance
to Date
£

BAU Out-turn
projection
>£10k

BAU Out-turn
projection
less Carry
Forward
Requests >
£10k

BAU Carry
Forward
Requests
>£10k

Covid-19
Outturn
Projections
£

BAU Commentary

-14,950,749

0

-14,950,749

-212,685

0

-212,685

-212,700

0

-212,700

0

21,148,737
6,197,988

-35,552,742
-35,552,742

-14,404,005
-29,354,754

0
-212,685

0
0

0
-212,685

0
-212,700

0
0

0
-212,700

0
0

6,197,988

-35,552,742

-29,354,754

-212,685

0

-212,685

-212,700

0

-212,700

0

65,301,718
17,860

-65,283,858

17,860

-265,546

98,507

-167,040

95,200

0

95,200

-320,106

Due to lower capital expenditure and timing of
completion of capital schemes in 2020/21
there is an underspend on Minimum Revenue
Provision of £212.7k

COVID-19 Commentary

Page 38

SLDC 2021/22 Capital Programme Monitoring Period 6

Lead/code

Scheme

Portfolio

Full Year
Budget
£

Appendix 2
Variance
to Date
£

Expenditure
£

Anticipated reprofiling
£

Commentary

Digital

Page 39

KIT27

Mobile Working for
Streetscene

Housing and Innovation

120,000

0

-120,000

Business requirements and objectives to be defined, specification
to be created and procurement route agreed in order for project to
commence. Not likely to proceed prior to LGR.

KIT30

Digital Innovation Project

Housing and Innovation

112,916

20,828

-92,088

IT hardware and software to support new office arrangements and
ways of working.

KIT32

Transport Software

Housing and Innovation

35,000

0

-35,000

Business requirements and objectives to be defined, specification
to be created and procurement route agreed in order for project to
commence. Now under review due to LGR.

KIT33

Income Management System Housing and Innovation
Upgrade

40,000

10,988

-29,013

Test upgrade installed and testing underway. Go live in Dec.

KIT90

IT Replacement Fund

160,309

75,430

-84,879

The ICT replacement programme will take place throughout the
year. There has been a budget transfer of £50k covering Covid
expenditure incurred in the previous year.

468,225

107,246

-360,979

Specialist Services
KDE06
ERDF Funded Flood Defence Climate Emergency and
Works
Localism

1,755,527

359,448

-1,396,079

SLDC are accountable body. Work has now commenced and
invoices will be received from EA quarterly in line with funding
agreement. First quarter payment now made.

KDE07

2,351,210

0

-2,351,210

CCF project started 1 May 2019, funded by MHCLG. Scheme is
over two years. Funding for SLDC and Morecambe Bay
Partnership (MBP), then we will pay over to MBP their share.
SLDC is accountable body. Scheme is for works at Grange
promenade will start on site Jan 2022. Delayed funding agreement
with MHCLG now in place. Leadership Team decision to pause
project until new financial year as part of Covid prioritisation
process. Waiting to finalise contract with Morecambe Bay
Partnership, at final review stage.

Housing and Innovation

Total Digital

Coastal Communities Fund

Climate Emergency and
Localism

0

SLDC 2021/22 Capital Programme Monitoring Period 6

Portfolio

Full Year
Budget
£
550,000

Expenditure
£

Appendix 2
Variance
Anticipated reto Date
profiling
Commentary
£
£
-550,000
Scheme split into 3 areas - public realm work (£250k), Aynam
Road glass panels (£250k) and public arts (£50k). Public realm
work is in discussion with EA and CCC to determine the areas
where the work should be undertaken - part of spend will be in
2021/22 and part next year. Aynam Road and public arts work
progressing, expected spend in third quarter of 2021/22.

Page 40

Lead/code

Scheme

KDE08

EA lead Flood Defence Work Climate Emergency and
Localism

KIT34

Development Management
System

Housing and Innovation

121,600

0

-121,600

KAH11

Other Housing Schemes
(Cross-a-Moor junction
improvements)

Housing and Innovation

4,531,700

0

-4,531,700

KPE18

Towpath Trail KendalLancaster

Economy Culture and Leisure

120,000

0

-120,000

9,430,037

359,448

-9,070,589

Total Specialist Services

0

New ICT system for development management progressing to
implementation stage. Contract close to being signed, initial
payment will then be triggered and future staged payments
throughout implementation period (18 months) so some reprofiling will be required into 2022/23.
Highways England leading scheme to build a roundabout to
enable delivery of 1000 homes. Work started on site in Sept,
funding agreement nearly complete and substantial payment due
on signature of contract.
Paused for review now due to LGR.

0

People, Welfare & Income Maximisation
KAH10

Affordable Homes

Housing and Innovation

221,000

0

-221,000

Currently in discussion with Home Group re site in Ambleside for
social rented housing, and another potential site in Arnside. Early
discussions regarding a potential scheme at Staveley

KAH13

Commuted Sums Affordable
Housing

Housing and Innovation

86,000

30,000

-56,000

£30k for Parkside Road scheme now paid. Remainder of budget
for contribution to proposed Brigsteer Road scheme.

KAH15

Next Steps Accommodation

Housing and Innovation

389,000

0

-389,000

KGD21

Mand Disabled Fac Grants

Housing and Innovation

1,224,810

177,686

-1,047,124

389,000 To be moved to revenue as for provision of service.
OT referrals have increased as expected, however, resourcing
issues which are being addressed, are impacting on the
timescales to process and complete grants. Covid impacted on
the delivery of DFGs in terms of customer willingness to have
works undertaken, supply of materials and temporary pausing of
the service in 2020 to 2021.

SLDC 2021/22 Capital Programme Monitoring Period 6

Appendix 2

Lead/code

Scheme

KCH01

Community Housing Fund

Housing and Innovation

Full Year
Budget
£
543,000

KIF01

Housing Investment Fund

Housing and Innovation

3,000,000

0

-3,000,000

5,463,810

344,511

-5,119,299

40,000

0

-40,000

Portfolio

Total People, Welfare & Income Maximisation

Expenditure
£
136,825

Variance
Anticipated reto Date
profiling
Commentary
£
£
-406,175
Levens development has begun on site with incremental payment
of grant awards through remainder of financial year expected to
total £250k.Lakeland Housing Trust grant for scheme at Grasmere
£137k has been paid.

Proposals are being developed for the use of these funds. It is
expected that a report will go to Cabinet in November 2021 and
following this, Council, which will seek approval for the use of
funds to support the delivery of affordable housing.
389,000

Delivery and Commerical Services

Page 41

KEP52

Disabled Toilet Improvements Health Wellbeing and
Financial Resilience

Budget covers payments for Millerground (£20k) and Cartmel
(£20k) - commencement date and timing of payments yet to be
determined. Agreement from Windermere TC to progress with
Millerground, awaiting programme from LSH.

KAH14

Homeless Accommodation

Housing and Innovation

115,407

0

-115,407

To convert facilities at Town View Fields. No works started as yet.
On hold due to LGR review.

KCI01

Scaling On Street Charging
Infrastructure

Housing and Innovation

183,790

0

-183,790

Cabinet approved in October 2020 funding of a scheme to work
with other bodies to enable electric vehicle charging points to be
installed at a small number of locations in the district, for
residential use. Needs to be installed before March 2022. Cabinet
approval 1 Sept 2021, now progressing.

KDE10

Kendal Market Lift

Economy Culture and Leisure

60,000

0

-60,000

No work started as yet. TBC March 2022.

KDP03

Ellerthwaite Depot

Customer Comm Serv and
People

87,627

0

-87,627

Plans have been issued to Windermere Town Council for approval
prior to planning being submitted. Once approved, planning will be
submitted and tender issued.

KEP53

Rothay Park Toilets

Health Wellbeing and
Financial Resilience

72,043

0

-72,043

Working up proposals with Lakes Parish Council. Once approval
granted, will issue planning and tender the works.

SLDC 2021/22 Capital Programme Monitoring Period 6

Portfolio

Full Year
Budget
£
110,000

Expenditure
£

Appendix 2
Variance
Anticipated reto Date
profiling
Commentary
£
£
-110,000
Spend dependant on Electricity North West and Cumbria CC
programming works. On hold pending LGR review.

Page 42

Lead/code

Scheme

KFL01

Footway Lighting

Customer Comm Serv and
People

KLH02

Ulverston Asset Transfer
programme

Economy Culture and Leisure

79,765

0

-79,765

KLH07

SL House & KTH
reconfiguration

Economy Culture and Leisure

2,709,853

1,332,775

-1,377,078

KLH08

Abbot Hall Redevelopment

Customer Comm Serv and
People

615,000

0

-615,000

Awaiting formal sign off from LEP before works can commence.
Expected to be completed by March 2022

KLL19

Millerground Pumping Station Customer Comm Serv and
People

38,000

0

-38,000

TBC before March 2022. Seeking waiver to appoint contractor to
undertake urgent works.

KMR21

Kendal Museum alterations

Customer Comm Serv and
People

85,000

83,551

-1,449

KMR33

Customer Comm Serv and
People
Customer Comm Serv and
People

933

0

-933

KMR34

Braithwaite Fold Caravan
Park
Kendal Castle

38,115

0

-38,115

Footpaths work tenders have been evaluated. Legal to be
instructed on the works.

KMR36

Monument Kirkby Lonsdale

Customer Comm Serv and
People

20,702

0

-20,702

Listed building application in, tenders received and working up
approvals. Legal to be instructed on the works.

KMR37

Ulverston Bank Clock

Customer Comm Serv and
People

45,000

0

-45,000

No work to date but will be completed this financial year.

KMR38

Gooseholme Retaining Wall

Climate Emergency and
Localism

50,000

1,023

-48,977

Consultant appointed. Seeking exemption for the works to be
undertaken by the same contractor being used by the EA in order
to do the work within the Summer window.

KPY38

WSC Car Park refurbishment Customer Comm Serv and
People

215,038

5,702

-209,336

Tender back and being evaluated. Looking to instruct Legal with
work to take place in January to avoid busy Christmas period.

KPY42

Car Park machines update

Customer Comm Serv and
People

84,199

0

-84,199

Payment of first half of project cost agreed and paid in 2019/20.
Remainder pending resolution of outstanding issues.

KPY44

Town and Car Park/public
information Signs

Customer Comm Serv and
People

8,682

0

-8,682

0

79,765 UCE now developing a business case for long-term use of funds,
so payment will be delayed until completed - likely to be 3 years
before payment made so budget requires reprofiling to 2023/24.
On site and due to be completed Nov 2021.

Payment made.

Locality Team leading on this work. Signage will be installed
following adoption of PSPO

SLDC 2021/22 Capital Programme Monitoring Period 6
Full Year
Budget
£
144,143

Expenditure
£

Variance
Anticipated reto Date
profiling
Commentary
£
£
-144,143
Paused until further notice to understand impact of Covid on
parking.

Page 43

Lead/code

Scheme

KPY48

Parkside Rd Car Park

Customer Comm Serv and
People

KPY51

Kendal Parking Study

Customer Comm Serv and
People

493,500

0

-493,500

Paused until further notice to understand impact of Covid on
parking.

KRE04

Grange Regeneration
Programme

Economy Culture and Leisure

157,300

0

-157,300

Contract is being awarded and work is expected to start before the
end of the financial year. Start on site Jan 2022 to complete March
2023

KRE66

Grange Promenade structural Economy Culture and Leisure
works

1,091,000

0

-1,091,000

Contract is being awarded and work is expected to start before the
end of the financial year. Start on site Jan 2022 to complete March
2023

KRE67

Grange LIDO

Economy Culture and Leisure

2,785,716

11,117

-2,774,599

Contract is being awarded and work is expected to start before the
end of the financial year. Start on site Jan 2022 to complete March
2023

KRE68

Windermere Jetty Repairs

Climate Emergency and
Localism

30,000

0

-30,000

Emergency works have been undertaken. Likley that remaining
monies will be handed back to submit further bid for larger
scheme.

KSC91

Refurb Replace Recycled
Bins

Customer Comm Serv and
People

125,000

34,604

-90,396

Ongoing throughout the year. Framework agreement to be used.

KSC91

Vehicle Purchase

Customer Comm Serv and
People

1,276,539

826,087

-450,452

Four Isuzu vehicles and 3 Dennis Eagle RCVs purchased. Orders
placed for 3 VW vans. Procurement ongoing.

KSC94

Property Services Vehicles

Customer Comm Serv and
People

68,000

0

-68,000

Now bought through lease agreement, so budget will require
reprofiling over 3 year lease period.

KXB27

Energy Saving Building
Enhancement

Climate Emergency and
Localism

77,916

10,775

-67,142

Work at Ferry Nab in planning, to be completed winter 2021 after
Summer season. Tenders back and legal instructed to underatake
the work.

10,908,268

2,305,633

-8,602,635

Total Delivery and Commercial Services

Portfolio

Appendix 2

0

79,765

SLDC 2021/22 Capital Programme Monitoring Period 6

Lead/code

Scheme

Portfolio

Full Year
Budget
£

Appendix 2
Variance
to Date
£

Expenditure
£

Anticipated reprofiling
£

Commentary

Strategy

Page 44

KMR35

Burton Heritage Grant
Scheme

Customer Comm Serv and
People

KIL01

Community Infrastructure
Levy (CIL)

Housing and Innovation

KIP01

Locally Important Projects

Economy Culture and Leisure

Total Strategy

106,265

7,563

-98,702

0

0

0

89,996

16,000

-73,996

196,261

23,563

-172,698

Customer and Locality Services
KLL18
Cockshott Point entrance
improvements

Economy Culture and Leisure

1,400

1,167

-233

KLC03

Ulverston Leisure Centre

Economy Culture and Leisure

250,000

0

-250,000

KNM51

Play Areas

Customer Comm Serv and
People

65,000

0

-65,000

LNM58

Kendal Parks play area

Customer Comm Serv and
People

3,908

0

-3,908

Public realm work in the square is complete, subject to final
remedial work on defects. Grant offers have been made to 7
properties in total by the deadline of 30 April 2021, all to properties
in or near the Square. One grant–aided scheme is complete and
repair work to the Royal Hotel is well advanced. Repair work to the
remaining five has yet to commence, with delays in part due to
shortage of materials. The recent appointment of a Conservation
Officer, will assist in advising and expediting the remaining
elements of the scheme, including completion of the Village
Design Statement and taking it and the draft Conservation Area
Management Plan forward, following consultation, as
Supplementary Planning Documents.

Broughton 20mph scheme £6k and £10k to Kendal Town Council
for ivy screens project now paid.Kirkby Lonsdale Town Council
£5k for Dodgson Croft crossing once grant agreement drawn up,
in the next month or two. Other projects are moving slowly and not
in a position to draw up contracts.

0

New signage now installed by National Trust. Scheme complete.
Scheme on hold.
Budget to be used for Owlet Ash, Archers Meadow and
playgrounds as per asset review consultation currently under
way..
Fencing for Hayclose Road playground now completed, awaiting
invoice.

SLDC 2021/22 Capital Programme Monitoring Period 6

Lead/code

Scheme

KNM63

Queens Park play area

Customer Comm Serv and
People

KNM70

HMCLG funded schemes

KLR31

Nobles Rest park
improvements

Customer Comm Serv and
People
Economy Culture and Leisure

Total Customer and Locality Services

GRAND TOTAL

Portfolio

Full Year
Budget
£
104,650

Expenditure
£
171,153

Appendix 2
Variance
Anticipated reto Date
profiling
Commentary
£
£
66,503
Scheme includes playpark and pump-track, now almost
completed apart from park furniture..Remaining funding to be
received imminently - Nat Lottery £10k, English Lakes Hotels
£20k, British Cycling £25k, community groups £25k..

2,929

2,873

-56

Works at Lightburn Park skatepark completed.

3,900

524

-3,376

431,787

175,716

-256,071

0

26,898,388

3,316,118

-23,582,270

468,765

Interpretation boards for Town View Fields natural flood
management scheme and planting work to take place in the
autumn.

Page 45

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46

Appendix 3
2021/22 Quarter 2 Treasury Management Update
This appendix reviews treasury performance for the period 01/04/2021 – 30/09/2021 against
the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy, which was approved by Council on
23rd February 2021.
The Councils Treasury Management operation ensures cash flows are adequately planned,
with surplus monies being invested in low risk counterparties, providing adequate liquidity
initially, before considering optimising investment return.
The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the Council’s
capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the Council, this
is the element of the capital programme that is not financed from external grants, capital
receipts or other contributions. Which when added to the Council’s Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR) shows the underlying borrowing need of the Council. This underlying
borrowing need is managed by the treasury team through short and long term borrowing
arrangements and the use of longer term cash flow surpluses.
Borrowing
No new borrowing has been undertaken in the year to date, therefore the Council has maintained
external borrowing at £12.8 million. As a result, gross and net borrowing are below the capital
financing requirement (CFR). This is a key indicator as it shows that the Council is not borrowing
to fund revenue activities or borrowing to lend-on.
Table 1: Borrowing Limits

Actual borrowing
Authorised limit
Operational boundary
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)

£m
12.800
34.515
27.700
27.685

Table 1 also shows that the Council hasn’t breached its operational boundary and authorised limit
(which must not be breached) on external debt.
The current premium on the Councils borrowing is circa 86% (i.e. £0.86m per £1m repaid), which
would take over 19 years to repay. This is not low enough to consider making an early repayment,
however we will keep this under review.
Our current internal borrowing position, is estimated to be £14.885 million or 46.8% of useable
reserves adjusted for exceptional balances, this is nearing our 50% internal borrowing indicator.
This indicator was set to trigger a review, to ensure that the internal borrowing position is prudent,
affordable and sustainable and whether it is time to externalise some of that borrowing. This is
considered along with many other factors such as the market rates for borrowing and future
projections for capital spend. The budget for interest payable has been set at a level that enables
the Council to borrow during the year if required.
Investments
Graph 1 below shows the movement on the Councils investment portfolio between 01/04/21
and 30/09/2021

Page 47

Appendix 3

60,000,000
50,000,000
40,000,000
30,000,000
20,000,000
10,000,000

Opening Balance
06/04/2021
12/04/2021
18/04/2021
24/04/2021
30/04/2021
06/05/2021
12/05/2021
18/05/2021
24/05/2021
30/05/2021
05/06/2021
11/06/2021
17/06/2021
23/06/2021
29/06/2021
05/07/2021
11/07/2021
17/07/2021
23/07/2021
29/07/2021
04/08/2021
10/08/2021
16/08/2021
22/08/2021
28/08/2021
03/09/2021
09/09/2021
15/09/2021
21/09/2021
27/09/2021

0

Core Investments

Fixed Operational

Call Operational

The Council held £40m of investments as at 30 September 2021. Table 2 shows the outstanding
investments by type.
Table 2 Investment Summary
Counterparty
Call Operational
Federated
CCLA
Fixed Operational
Coventry Building Society
Nationwide Building Society
Principality Building Society
Skipton Building Society
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
Standard Chartered
West Bromwich Building Society
Fixed Core
Blackpool Borough Council
Darlington Borough Council
Newcastle Building Society
Surrey Heath BC
West Bromwich Building Society

Value (£m)
4.000
5.000
3.000
3.000
2.000
2.000
3.000
3.000
1.000
3.000
3.000
2.000
5.000
1.000
40.000

Graph 2 below shows the maturity profile of the Councils investment portfolio split between
operational and core investment types

Page 48

Appendix 3

14,000,000
12,000,000
10,000,000
8,000,000
6,000,000
4,000,000
2,000,000
0
Call

1 Month

1-3 Months
Operational

3-6 Months

6-12 Months

1-2 Years

Core

Table 3 below summarised the performance to date, benchmarked against the London
Interbank Bid Rate (LIBID) that best matches the duration of the investments. For example,
Call investments can be called back the same day and so the overnight LIBID rate is the bench
mark.
Table 3 Performance

Call Operational
Fixed Operational
Fixed Core (Long Term)
Overall Average

Average
Return
0.011%
0.062%
0.094%
0.059%

Benchmark
Rate
-0.084%
-0.045%
-0.009%

Variance
0.095%
0.107%
0.103%

All of the councils investments are performed in excess of their benchmarks, with the overall
average outperforming the 6-month benchmark rate used for the Fixed Core (long term)
investments.
Economic Forecast
At the September Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) meeting the members voted unanimously to
keep the Bank Rate at 0.10%. The minutes indicate that there is increasing concern that recent
price increases are likely to lead to faster and higher inflation and underlying wage growth, which
is likely to be stay around longer.
As a result financial markets are now pricing in a first increase in bank rate from 0.10% to 0.25% in
February 2022. However in its revised interest rate forecast on 29th September 2021 (below) our
advisors, Link Asset Services are not expecting rates to rise until quarter 2 2022. They do however
acknowledge that with a high level of uncertainty on several different fronts, it is likely that forecasts
will need to be revised again soon.

Page 49

Appendix 3

It is important to note that the rate cut to 0.10% was an emergency measure to deal with the Covid19 crisis and that the MPC can decide to reverse this at any time on the grounds of it no longer
warranted. In addition, any bank rate under 1% is both highly unusual and highly supportive of
economic growth.
Since the start of 2021, there has been a lot of volatility in Gilt yields and this is expected to continue
as concerns over inflation. As PWLB rates are linked to gilt yields this has resulted yields beginning
to increase.
In the year to August 2021 UK inflation was at 3.2% up from 2.5% in June as prices increased and
supply shortages kicked in.
Unemployment is now 4.5%, but there are concerns this could rise higher since the end of furlough
on 1st October.
The UK economy grew 0.4% in August 2021 and remains 0.8% below its pre-covid-19 level
Conclusion
The Councils external borrowing remains at £12.8m with internal borrowing being used instead.
However the levels of internal borrowing are approaching the indicator level and with gilt rates
and therefore PWLB rates rising, officers will be undertaking a review of the Council’s borrowing
position in the next quarter to ensure prudence affordability and sustainability. As part of this
review we will consider the impact on the proposed new unitary authority.
Council Investments continue to perform will against benchmarks although investment returns
remain at an all-time low.

Page 50

Item No.8
South Lakeland District Council
Council
Thursday 11th November 2021

Annual Procurement Update 2021/22
Portfolio:

Cllr Andrew Jarvis - Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder

Report from:

Helen Smith - Section 151 Officer

Report Author:

Gill Flowers – Procurement Specialist

Wards:

(All Wards);

Forward Plan:
Budget and Policy Framework Decision included in the Forward Plan
as published on 21/09/2021
Links to Council Plan Priorities: The Constitution underpins the Council’s decision making
processes in achieving the aims and objectives of the Councils priorities. Ensuring the
Constitution is updated regularly will assist in achieving the following priorities: Working across boundaries;
 Delivering a balanced community;
 A fairer South Lakeland; and
 Addressing the climate emergency.

1.0

Expected Outcome and Measures of Success

1.1

This report provides an update on progress across the procurement function and a
review of activity in financial year 2020-2021. This is a historic review for noting by
Members. There are also a number of number new procurements that have been
added to the Procurement Schedule from October 2021 and these are noted at the
bottom of the Procurement Schedule.

1.2

This report also reviews the 2021-2022 procurement schedule and updates the
schedule in line with the proposed amendments to the Contract Procedure Rules
within the Council’s Constitution: this enables officers to ensure contracts are
awarded promptly but transparently.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that Council:(1)

note the progress across the procurement function over the past 12
months;

(2)

note the future focus;

(3)

approve the updated Procurement Schedule at Appendix 1; and

(4)

notes the spend 2020/21 for the top 25 suppliers by value in Appendix 2
and the exemptions and waivers for 2020/21 in Appendix 3

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

This has been a challenging year for all due to the Covid-19 Pandemic and there
have been a number of procurement projects that were delayed due to this. There

Page 51

had been access issues to sites which resulted in heightened risks of delay until
access could be made, or changes in costs due to quotes based on “site unseen”. In
addition to this there has been uncertainty regarding Local Government
Reorganisation where procurers have considered delaying procurements until a
clearer timeline is in place and a more meaningful specification can be put in place.
3.2

Personnel that would have been involved in the procurement process were called to
other areas of work. Although there were efforts to reduce the amount of Exemptions
and Waivers to the Procurement Regulations in the previous year, procurers utilised
Public Procurement Regulations rule 32 that allowed the extension of contracts due
to unforeseen circumstances.

3.3

The effect on the workload of support services such as Legal and ICT were taken
into account after the Council approved the last Procurement Schedule. The Council
had to prioritise activity and with Customer Connect as the focus, which again meant
procurement activity was reduced and timescales on many of the procurements
changed. These changes have been reflected in the revised Schedule being
presented at Appendix 1 and commentary regarding this at paragraph 3.8. With the
additional capacity challenges arising from Local Government Reorganisation there
may be further amendments to this draft schedule before final approval at Council on
5th October 2021.

3.4

The Procurement Specialist has recently taken the revised Procurement Strategy
2021-2026 to Overview and Scrutiny, Cabinet and Council. This is a sister strategy to
the Commissioning Strategy and links the Procurement process to the Council Plan.
The theme coming through from the Plan is one of Social Value and Carbon
neutrality. Procurement has a role to play in enabling the Council’s money to be
spent and therefore invested in local business and the local economy. This will be by
encouraging local businesses to bid for tender and request for quote opportunities.
Procurement is working with the Economy and Culture Specialist and Cumbria
Chamber of Commerce to host a Small Business Workshop on working for the
Council to be staged virtually in September.

3.5

With regards to Social Value, the Council has signed up to the Social Value Portal,
which is encouraged by the Local Government Association. This is a procurement
tool which assists with the evaluation of Social Value and environmental benefits and
contract manages this through the life of the contract. This is not only in line with the
Governments ambitions for procurement and Social Value but overcomes the lack of
expertise and resource within the Council to follow up the Social Value method
statements put in an invitation to tender.

3.6

The Procurement schedule for 2020/21 as amended at October 2020 listed One
hundred and thirty Five (135) of these the significant points to note are:- 44 “complete”
- 10“work-in-progress”
- 5 “scope change” which includes 1 service brought back in house
- 76“carry forward” to the Procurement Schedule 2021-22

3.7
3.7.1

Of strategic importance, the team have lead the successful procurements of a
number of projects, some detail below:
Playground’s – Despite Covid-19 meaning that site visits were restricted, we
were in a position to go ahead with procurements for Queen’s Park, Windermere,
and the adjoining Skate Park.

Page 52

3.7.2

Kendal Markets –It was decided to contract with Praxis Management to provide
soft facilities management to the indoor market, and the market itself managed
by an SLDC member of staff. This will be reviewed in 2 years.

3.7.3

Consultancy– The amount of work purchased through Bloom has reduced.
Although it is felt that it could be used for smaller pieces of work with
competition, we have seen that where procurement results from grant monies,
Bloom’s processes seem to be disadvantaging local providers if not already
registered with them. We are still direct awarded to Lambert Smith Hampton
(LSH) for work outside the scope of the property services contract with them.
We tendered for our own framework agreement for consultants to work on the
local plan. This was a complex tender with 16 lots and 26 suppliers, which
should make the contract process quicker and simpler down the line.

3.7.4

ICT – Although we still need to do a commissioning review of the whole print and
postage system within the Authority, we have procured the Multi-functional
Device contract through the YPO framework, which ties in nicely with the South
Lakeland House refurbishment. This does include the Print Room devices.
Significant savings were made, as technology changes mean that machines are
now more efficient and need less engineer time.

3.7.5

Grange Lido – This was another project that has been affected by Covid-19. The
tenders came in significantly above budget. Cabinet have subsequently
considered revisions to the funding package and an award has been made.

3.7.6

Vehicles – As we are looking to increase our fleet of electric vehicles, SLDC
have recognised that the continuous development of electric vehicles means that
it is not good value for money to buy these outright at the moment, so we are
increasing the amount of lease vehicles to achieve our carbon goals. We have
temporarily agreed that the price/quality evaluation ratio is set at 60% quality v
40% price unless true total life costs are used in pricing rather than ticket price.

3.7.7

The Procurement team continues to work closely with the Corporate Asset
Manager and the Property Services Provider (Lambert Smith Hampton) to deliver
property-related procurement projects covering servicing and works contracts.
This contract is currently being reviewed.

3.7.8

Choice Based Lettings - This Council has been leading on behalf of the Cumbria
Choice Based Letting Board the procurement of a replacement Choice Based
Letting Portal. This has been a lengthy process due in part to the number of
interested parties (13). The Cumbria Choice Based Letting Policy and Partnering
Agreements were also reviewed as part of the process as they had a direct effect
on the build and outcomes of the Contract. The Portal has been split into the
Build of the new system and the Run of the system, which did make the contract
drafting more complicated. The aim was to maximise the contract length of the
run contract as it takes so long to procure, contract and implement a new
system. As of end July 2021, the build is almost completed and the contract for
the run is due to be signed.

3.8

Where a procurement process is over budget then approval will still be required in
accordance with the Financial Procedure Rules. Where an officer seeks approval for
a waiver or exemption under the Contract Procedure Rules this is also included in the
Procurement Schedule. Appendix 3 lists the exemptions and waives approved
during 2020/21. An updated Procurement Schedule for 2021/22 is attached at
Appendix 1 which includes some additional procurement exercises not approved in
February 2021.

Page 53

3.9

The Monitoring Officer has recently reviewed the Council’s decision making
thresholds relating to contracts and procurement and the outcome and proposals are
the subject of a separate report to Council on 11 November 2021.

3.10

A Commissioning Strategy has been prepared and approved by Council in July 2020
which is a sister document to the Procurement Strategy. The Procurement Specialist
presented the Procurement Strategy to Council in July 2021 and has been accepted
by Council. The main themes are how procurement will work in line with the
Commissioning Strategy to provide a golden thread from the Council Plan. The main
themes are promoting local business, social value, procuring for a carbon zero
outcome and total life costs.

3.11

Exemptions and Waivers

3.11.1

In Financial year 2020/21 there were 16 exemptions and waivers reported to the
Procurement Specialist, as listed in Appendix 3 There were a range of reasons
given for those exemptions but the most common request was for direct award,
though in mitigation this was where we had previously tendered for a service.
The Procurement Specialist is keen to advise that where follow on action could
be a possibility then it is factored into the original brief even though it might not
be taken up further down the line

3.11.2

One of procurement’s aims is to reduce those exemptions that are due to poor
resource management, where procurement reprovision has not been factored
into business as usual. These are down by four on the previous year, but remain
a concern.

3.12

Training

3.12.1 Two levels of module based Contract Management training through Central
Government have been sourced that are free to access and are relevant to Public
Procurement. This is available to all interested staff.
3.12.2 The Procurement Specialist will be presenting Bitesize training in November looking
at the Constitution and how that links to Public Contracting Regulations. This training
is delivered through Teams and all staff are invited with a recording made available to
staff unable to attend the live recording.
3.13

Spend Analysis
A task from the Action Plan accompanying the Procurement Strategy involves spend
analysis. A list of the top 25 suppliers by spend in 2020/21 is attached at Appendix 2.
This has highlighted some areas of spend that are not formally contracted that need
addressing as there is a large risk that we are not achieving value for money.

3.13.1

Recruitment – Out of the 7 suppliers out of contract on the top 25 list, 6 of these
were recruitment agencies. Unless staff are recruited onto payroll, they should
be treated as if they were a procurement exercise. By not regulating this area of
spend we are not looking at the fees these 6 suppliers are charging and any
other overhead costs. Any potential added value they could bring to SLDC in
recruitment fairs and other benefits is not evaluated. This spend totalled
£743,240 in 2020/21. There is the opportunity to look at this in two ways: those
ad-hoc emergency arrangements to cover sickness, and a more considered
professional recruitment route.

3.13.2

Ad hoc spend associated with large spend – Although we have contracted with
Caddicks for the South Lakeland House and Kendal Town Hall refurbishment,
there were some associated items that were not procured through this contract,
but were made through direct awards, This has been picked up by the auditors

Page 54

and the message is that the usual procurements and exemption processes
should be followed for the whole project, not just the main contractor.
3.14

Challenges in the Future

3.14.1

The UK has left the EU and although we are no longer bound by EU
Procurement Regulations, we are still subject to The Public Contracting
Regulations 2015, which very much mirrored them, until such time as further
reform is implemented. In conjunction with EPIC (Enabling Procurement in
Cumbria) SLDC has responded to the green paper on Transforming Public
Procurement. We welcome the proposed changes which it is hoped will simplify
the processes and make it easier for small suppliers to bid. With regards to
localism, there will need to be a change to the Local Government Act to feel the
full benefits of being able to specify local suppliers where it is appropriate.

3.14.2

Covid-19 continues to be a big influencer on the markets this year and will
continue to be so for the foreseeable future. We have already seen contractors
go into administration and the uptake for new business is down as suppliers fight
to maintain their existing business. The building sector is experiencing issues
with recruitment and retaining staff that have been requested to self-isolate.
Coupled with a building supplies problem, we are experiencing increases in
costs and delays to starting work.

3.14.3

Local Government Reorganisation has determined the future arrangements for
unitary local Government in Cumbria. There has been a significant number of
major procurements put on hold awaiting Review outcome. A large piece of work
will involve aligning our contract end dates. Where contracts are coming to an
end, looking to see whether we can join onto our neighbours contract, or start
looking at a collaborative solution from the start. The Contracts Management
Board is compiling all information relating to the Council’s contracts and their
expiries and will advise on the principles we need to adopt in approaching the
continuity of service delivery as responsibilities transfer to the new unitary
Council.

3.14.4

Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations it is a requirement that Councils should
report on any separate bodies they have set up or which they own as part of their
annual governance statement, and give a full picture of their relationship with those
bodies. These separate bodies created by local authorities should abide by the
Nolan principle of openness, and publish their board agendas and minutes and
annual reports in an accessible place. The Council has no such bodies but it is
good practice to encourage significant suppliers to respect the principles.
The Nolan Principles are:
1.
Selflessness. Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the
public interest.
2.
Integrity. Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under
any obligation to people or organisations that might try inappropriately to
influence them in their work.
3.
Objectivity.
4.
Accountability.
5.
Openness.
6.
Honesty.
7.
Leadership.
These principles will also be upheld within the procurement process.

Page 55

4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Procurement Schedule 2021/22 (Updated)

2

Top 25 spend 2020/21

3

Exemptions and Waivers 2020/21

5.0

Consultation

5.1

The Procurement Team maintains an open dialogue about the performance of the
procurement function with operational managers directly.

5.2

Discussions have taken place with Purchasing Consortia and various members of the
council’s supplier base which have proven helpful in tailoring the procurement
process in a way which is supplier friendly but also results in arrangements that offer
value for money.

5.3.

The procurement team maintains links with colleagues in other District Councils in
Cumbria. A recent exercise was to sense check the process for the procurement of
the Cumbria Choice Based Letting portal. Another joint project is looking at training
needs and in particular contract management training.

5.4

After consideration by Overview and Scrutiny Committee the procurement schedule
was reported to Cabinet on 1st September 2021 with Council now asked to approve
the updated schedule on 11th November 2021.

6.0

Alternative Options

6.1

An annual update to Cabinet does not take place. However, falling under the portfolio
for Finance it is vital that the procurement function continues to be driven and
supported by members and senior managers. This will result in a more accountable
and focussed procurement function delivering positive outcomes financially and in
the quality of council services.

6.2

The Procurement Schedule is not updated – this reduces the efficiency of the Council
by requiring individual reports and decisions for tender exercises. This also
increases the time taken to let contracts. Also we fail in our statutory duty to report to
the public procurement activity.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

Excluding staffing, there is an annual procurement budget of £18,400 which supports
procurement IT tools, activities and training.

7.2

There are no direct financial implications of the Procurement Schedule although
cashable and non-cashable efficiency savings are anticipated through the
procurement of the projects included on the Schedule. The Procurement Strategy
and the Contract Procedure Rules within the Constitution are a key element of
corporate governance and contribute directly to delivery of value for money.

Human Resources
7.3

During the past 12 months the Procurement Team has been maintained a function of
one permanent Procurement Officer/Case manager and a Procurement Specialist.
The approval of the Procurement Schedule has no direct human resource
implications but the delivery of the projects included on the schedule may have
staffing implications. These are considered individually for each project at the start of
the procurement process.

Page 56

Legal
7.4

There is still uncertainty in the long term of the legal obligations that will arise out of
Brexit, but it is clear that in policy notes from the Cabinet Office that it is “business as
usual” until advised. Although we are seeing more in terms of Social Value and
localism, in the short term there appears that there will be no direct impact on the
operations of the Procurement Team.

7.5

Regular officer meetings are taking place via the Contract Management Board, work
is taking into account Local Government Reorganisations and all services are
meeting with the Legal, procurement and finance to ascertain a clear position on
existing contracts, contracts to be terminated, those expiring and any new
procurements required.

7.6

Waivers and Exemptions are required to be reported to the next available meeting of
Cabinet following the taking of decisions. We recommend that this forms part of a
separate heading to all reports to Overview and Scrutiny and Cabinet for
transparency purposes.

Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment
7.4

Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment? No

7.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons:

7.6



Objectives are set at the start of each individual procurement exercise
including any relating to social value.



The Procurement Team encourages Officers to consider how to obtain social
value in all tenders and to consider sustainability at the ‘identify need’ stage of
the procurement cycle



Access for Small and Medium Enterprises and Voluntary, Charity and Social
Enterprises is considered through pre-market engagement, ensuring that
strategies for organising procurements into lots does not create unwanted
barriers for smaller businesses, and through advertising tender opportunities
via The Chest, “Contracts Finder”, and the Council websites.



Work continues on the establishment of a Social Value Policy to support the
Procurement Strategy.

Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts
Positive

Environment
and Health

Economy and
Culture

Neutral

Greenhouse gases
emissions

X

Air Quality

X

Biodiversity

X

Impacts of Climate
Change

X

Reduced or zero
requirement for energy,
building space, materials
or travel

X

Active Travel

X

Inclusive and sustainable
development

X

Page 57

Negative Unknown

Positive

Housing and
Communities

Neutral

Jobs and levels of pay

X

Healthier high streets

X

Culture, creativity and
heritage

X

Standard of housing

X

Access to housing

X

Crime

X

Social connectedness

X

Negative Unknown

Equality and Diversity
7.7

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No

7.8

If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons: There
are no significant equality and diversity impacts with regards to this report. However,
each Procurement Exercise should consider equality issues as part of the process.

7.9

Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X”
Age

P

0

X

N

Disability

P

0

X

N

Gender reassignment (transgender)

P

0

X

N

Marriage & civil partnership

P

0

X

N

Pregnancy & maternity

P

0

X

N

Race/ethnicity

P

0

X

N

Religion or belief

P

0

X

N

Sex/gender

P

0

X

N

Sexual orientation

P

0

X

N

Armed forces families

P

0

X

N

Rurality

P

0

X

N

Socio-economic disadvantage

P

0

X

N

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

Procurement activity does not
comply with the legal framework

The council is subject to
legal challenge which
carries both risk in terms
of cost and reputation

All procurement activity is
run through the
Procurement Team with
input from Legal as
necessary

Page 58

Risk

Consequence

Controls required

Results of procurement activity
do not offer value for money to
the communities of South
Lakeland

The council’s reputation is
brought into question for
its handling of council
budgets and ratepayer’s
money

Continue to consider cost,
quality and added value in
all procurement activity
with support from the
Procurement Team.

The Procurement Strategy is not
delivered in full

The council delivers a
procurement function
which does not fully
support the council in
delivering its priorities to
being the best place to
live, work and explore

Continued liaison with
internal officers and
external agencies to
support the Procurement
Team in delivering the
Strategy

Local Government
Reorganisation requires
transfer of all responsibilities to
the new Unitary Council by April
2023

Procurement decisions
need to address the
continuation of business
and the opportunity for
future efficiencies as
operations are aggregated
into one council

Review of all Council
contracts and direction for
procurement agreed
Liaison with other councils
and the LGR transition
programme to ensure
optimum use of
procurements and
contracts

Contact Officers
Gill Flowers, Procurement Specialist, (01539) 793235, gillian.flowers@southlakeland.gov.uk
Background Documents Available
Name of Background document

Where it is available

Council
February
2021: Agenda for Council on Tuesday, 23 February 2021,
Procurement Schedule 2020/21
6.30 p.m. (southlakeland.gov.uk)
Tracking Information
Signed off by
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
CMT

Date sent
Report from S151 Officer
05/10/2021
13/08/2021

Circulated to
Lead Specialist
Human Resources Lead Specialist
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)

Date sent
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
19/08/2021
N/A
27/08/2021
01/09/2021

Page 59

Date Signed off
05/10/2021
29/10/2021
16/08/2021

Circulated to
Council

Date sent
11/11/2021

Page 60

Appendix 1
TITLE

START DATE

END DATE

Responsible
Officer

Portfolio
Holder

Ward

All

DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT

Review Date
EXTENSION
(if applicable)

EST.VALUE £ New Est
Value £

New
New
Procuremen Contract
t Process
Process

Page 61

New Approval Process

OLD PROCUREMENT
PROCESS

OLD DECISION
ROUTE

CONTRACT
TYPE

Carried Forward
from previous year

Comments

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Administration

One-off

Yes

Approved 20/21. Carried forward but
missed April approval.

One-off

Yes

To support the additional winter berthing
that we are now providing

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Administration

One-off

Yes

Specification input from Frankie Flannigan
Approved20/21. Carried forward but
missed April approval.

One-off

No

Bloom Procurement Services Administration

One-off

Yes

Tender

Cabinet

One-off

Yes

Framework

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Administration

One-off

No

One-off

No

Cabinet

Contract
Renewall
One-off

Yes

One-off

Yes

One-off

No

One-off

No

One-off

Yes

One-off

Yes

New
Contract
New
Contract

Yes

Items previously approved:
2 vehicles for Street Cleansing

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Thwaites,
David

Phil Dixon

Purchase of 2 vehicles for Street Cleansing

N/A

10-100K

£60k - £100k Written
quotations

Sealed
contract

Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only

Tender

3 Electric & Water Bollards for public Jetties at Ferry Nab

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Flannigan,
Frankie

Purchase of 3 Electric & water bollards for the public jetties at Ferry Nab,
Windermere.

N/A

10-100K

£60k - £100k Written
quotations

Sealed
contract

Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only

Quotes

5 vehicles for Parking Services

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Thwaites,
David

Lake
Bowness & Levens
Administration
Committee
Phil Dixon
All

Purchase of 5 vehicles for Parking Services

N/A

10-100K

£60k - £100k Written
quotations

Sealed
contract

Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only

Tender

8 x Street Sweepers for Street Cleansing

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Phil Dixon

All

Andrew Jarvis

All

Actions arising from the Kendal Parking study - Constructor

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Thomas, Sion

Andrew Jarvis

All

N/A

Annual Purchase of 240-l Grey & Green Bins 2021/22

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Vickers,
Andrew

Phil Dixon

All

A contractor to carry out the site purchasing and building works arising from the
Kendal parking study.
The purchase of 240-l grey & green bins for the year 20-21 via the ESPO
Framework

Sealed
contract
Sealed
contract
Sealed
contract
Sealed
contract

Cabinet ( then implemented by
Admin decision )
Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision
Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision
Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only

Framework

31/03/2022

>PCR
Threshold
10-100K

Over £250k

01/04/2021

8 x street sweepers for street cleansing from the vehicle & plant programme via
the ESPO Framework
Site purchasing and building works arising from the Kendal Parking Study

N/A

Actions arising from Kendal Parking Study - Consultant

Thwaites,
David
Thomas, Sion

Annual Purchase of Recycling Boxes & Lids 2021/22

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

All

01/04/2022

31/03/2025

Dyan Jones

All

Archers Meadow Playground

01/04/2022

31/03/2023

Vickers,
Andrew
Nicholson,
Graham
Straker, Polly

Phil Dixon

Arboriculture Contract 2022 - 25+2

Phil Dixon

Kendal East

The purchase of recycling boxes & lids for the year 20-21 via the ESPO
Framework
Set up a framework of suppliers to carry out the emergency and routine
maintenance of the trees across the district.
Purchase of playground equipment for Archers Meadow

Sealed
contract
Sealed
contract
Sealed
contract

Delegated Executive Decision: Framework
Director only
Cabinet ( then implemented by Tender
Admin decision )
Delegated Executive Decision: Framework
Director only

Automatic Doors and Roller Shutters maintenance

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Thomas, Sion

Andrew Jarvis

All

AV facilities Town Hall- Contractor Appointment

01/04/2021

31/03/2026

Scullion, Paul

Andrew Jarvis

Kendal Town

Bereavement
Services Case Management system
Briarigg
Play Area

01/09/2021
01/04/2022

31/08/2026
31/03/2023

McDonald,
Straker,
Polly

Andrew
Jarvis
Phil
Dixon

Car Park investment General - Consultant Appointment

01/04/2021

03/03/2022

Thomas, Sion

Andrew Jarvis

Car Park Investments General - Contractor appointment

01/04/2021

03/03/2022

Thomas, Sion

Car Park Pay by Phone

01/10/2021

30/09/2024

Collection of Clinical Waste

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Flannigan,
Frankie
Thomas, Sion

Corporate Email Archiving system

01/06/2021

31/05/2026

Wright, Ben

Corporate Phone/Tablet Security Solution

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Wright, Ben

Revenue and Benefits Printing Managed Service

01/04/2022

31/03/2026

Customer service training

01/04/2021

Data Warehouse Technology/Support

01/04/2021

Develop a Council wide Business Classification Scheme (BCS)

N/A

N/A

Tender

£100k Tender
£250k
£100k Tender
£250k
£60k - £100k Written
quotations

30/09/2021

N/A

100K-PCR
Threshold
10-100K

30/09/2021

N/A

10-100K

N/A
N/A

225K-PCR
Threshold
10-100K

Maintenance of the Automatic Doors and roller shutters

N/A

10-100K

£10k - £25k

Purchase
Order

Admin Decision: Lead Officer

Quotes

N/A

10-100K

£60k - £100k Written
quotations

Sealed
contract

Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only

Tender

All
Kendal
East

Installation of new AV facilities to District Council Chamber following Town Hall
refurbishment. This is to be procured separately due to GDPR, Brexit
implications in terms of data storage and potential LGR. Funding earmarked to
be omitted from Capital scheme.
Procurement
of bereavement
services
Case Management System
New
playground
to support new
development

N/A

10-100K

#N/A
£60k - £100k Written
quotations

#N/A
Sealed
contract

#N/A
Delegated
Executive Decision:
Director only

Framework

Kendal Town

Investment and general upgrade works needed to car parks

N/A

10-100K

£25k - £60k

Written
quotations

Written
contract

Admin Decision: Director

LSH Additional Work

Andrew Jarvis

Kendal Town

Investment and general upgrade works needed to car parks

N/A

All

Pay by Phone system for all Car Parks

N/A

Collection of Clinical waste from private residence throughout the district.

N/A

10-100K

Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision
Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only
Admin Decision: Director

Administration

All

Sealed
contract
Sealed
contract
Written
contract

Quotes

Phil Dixon

£100k Tender
£250k
£60k - £100k Written
quotations
£25k - £60k Written
quotations

Tender

Phil Dixon

100K-PCR
Threshold
10-100K

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Delegated
Executive
Decision
Cabinet

Quotes

Jonathan
Brook
Phil Dixon

All

Solution to archive all e-mails centrally both sent and received by SLDC

N/A

10-100K

£25k - £60k

Quotes

One-off

No

Security Solution for Tablets and Mobile Phones

N/A

10-100K

Administration

One-off

No

All

Printing and postage of revenues and benefits annual billing documentation

N/A

Tender

Cabinet

All

N/A

Exemption

Administration

No

Exemption due to it being a continuation

31/03/2022

Wright, Ben

Phil Dixon

All

Continuation of customer service training - production of video and further
sessions for street scene
Technology or support services to enable the creation of a Data Warehouse

New
Contract
One-off

No

31/03/2022

100K-PCR
Threshold
<10K

Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only
Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision
Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Quotes

McDonald,
Andrew Jarvis
Vicky
Bradley, Dawn Phil Dixon

N/A

10-100K

£25k - £60k

Written
quotations

Written
contract
Sealed
contract
Sealed
contract
Purchase
Order
Written
contract

Admin Decision: Director

All

Written
quotations
£60k - £100k Written
quotations
£100k Tender
£250k
Under £10k Quotes

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Administration

Admin Decision: Director

Tender

One-off

No

Joint with Eden

N/A

Mountford,
Paul

Jonathan
Brook

All

10-100K

£10k - £25k

Written
quotations

Purchase
Order

Admin Decision: Lead Officer

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Bloom Procurement Services Administration

One-off

Yes

In all likelihood, due to LGR, work to
develop a Council wide BCS will be put on
hold until the transformation design
principles are agreed by the East Cumbria
authorities. Any future procurement will be
dependant on future service delivery.

Helen Chaffey All

DFG IT Platform

01/04/2022

31/03/2026

Pharaoh,
Amanda

Dredging to Ferry Nab Marina - Contractor

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Thomas, Sion

Drug and Alcohol policy

01/04/2021

Electoral Registration and Elections Management Software

A platform for an improved information architecture forming an essential
component of the information governance framework. A fit for purpose BCS to
enhance activity: Grouping information; supporting retrieval of records relating
to a function or activity; assigning access rights and security protection and
assigning retention periods and disposal.

01/04/2021

15/10/2021

N/A

£60k - £100k Written
quotations
Over £250k Tender
£60k - £100k Written
quotations
Written
quotations

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Delegated
Executive
Decision
Cabinet

Yes

Procurement via the ESPO Framework.
Fund raising not started. carry forward to
2020/21.

Joint with Eden

System currently being provided by Verrus
but with no contract
This may be procured via a framework
exact route unknown at present

Joint with Eden

Case Management Case Management software programme for DFG

N/A

10-100K

£100k £250k

Tender

Sealed
contract

Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision

Quotes

Administration

New
Contract

No

Contractor to carry out the dredging to Ferry Nab Marina

N/A

10-100K

£25k - £60k

Written
quotations

Written
contract

Admin Decision: Director

Tender

Yes

New drug and alcohol policy training and equipment

N/A

<10K

Under £10k Quotes

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Quotes

One-off

No

01/01/2022

31/12/2027

Benson, Tom

Phil Dixon

All

Software managing register of electors, postal applications, canvass, postal
voting and all aspects of election management

N/A

10-100K

£60k - £100k Written
quotations

Purchase
Order
Sealed
contract

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Administration

One-off

31/03/2022

Lake
Bowness & Levens
Administration
Committee
Bradley, Dawn Phil Dixon
All

Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only

Framework

New
Contract

No

Empowering communities training

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Bradley, Dawn Phil Dixon

All

N/A

<10K

Under £10k Quotes

Purchase
Order

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Quotes

One-off

No

Enhanced Cyber Security Solution

01/04/2021

31/03/2026

Wright, Ben

All

N/A

Tender

Cabinet

Joint with Eden

01/04/2022

31/03/2023

Candlin,
Gareth

N/A

Quotes

Administration

New
Contract
Contract
Renewall
One-off

No

Environmental Health, Public Protection, Licensing ICT System

Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision
Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision
Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only

Joint with Eden

Wright, Ben

Sealed
contract
Sealed
contract
Sealed
contract

No

30/09/2030

£100k Tender
£250k
£100k Tender
£250k
£60k - £100k Written
quotations

Cabinet

01/10/2023

100K-PCR
Threshold
100K-PCR
Threshold
10-100K

Tender

Enterprise GIS ICT System

Jonathan
Brook
Jonathan
Brook
Suzie Pye

Asset based training for those officers who deal with people and communities,
with a view to providing the tools to help them to feel empowered to help
themselves
Enhanced Cyber Security Solution mainly covering e-mail security but may cover
network data traffic as well
Corporate ICT System for processing and storing Geographic data to help
perform various service functions
ICT System for Environmental Health, Public Protection and Licensing functions

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Administration

No

This procurement is now being pushed into
22/23 as agreement has been reached with
supplier to update current system.

Environmental protection training

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Bradley, Dawn Phil Dixon

All

<10K

Under £10k Quotes

Quotes

Administration

One-off

No

31/03/2022

Scullion, Paul

Andrew Jarvis

Windermere

N/A

<10K

Under £10k Quotes

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Bloom Procurement Services Administration

One-off

No

Ferry Nab Jetty Repair - Contractor Appointment

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Scullion, Paul

Andrew Jarvis

Windermere

N/A

10-100K

Administration

One-off

No

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Bradley, Dawn Phil Dixon

All

N/A

10-100K

Quotes

Administration

One-off

No

Fleet Maintenance Workshop Equipment Servicing

01/04/2021

31/03/2023

Phil Dixon

All

N/A

<10K

Under £10k Quotes

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Quotes

Administration

01/04/2021

31/03/2027

Phil Dixon

All

N/A

£25k - £60k

Admin Decision: Director

Exemption

Administration

Flood Related Scheme Improvements - Consultant

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Andrew Jarvis

All

Upgrade to Public Realm and Flood Defence Walls

N/A

>PCR
Threshold
10-100K

New
Contract
One-off

Yes

Fleet Management Software & Hardware

Thwaites,
David
Vickers,
Andrew
Thomas, Sion

Training for all officers involved in recovering debts or having any budget or
procurement responsibility
The maintenance and servicing of equipment in the Fleet Maintenance vehicle
workshop
Upgrade to the existing Fleet Management and Vehicle tracking software

Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only
Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Tender

Finance/debt/procurement/contract management training

£60k - £100k Written
quotations
Under £10k Quotes

Admin Decision: Lead Officer

Bloom Procurement Services Administration

One-off

Yes

Flood Relief Scheme Improvements - Contractor

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Thomas, Sion

Andrew Jarvis

All

Contractor to upgrade the Public Realm and Flood Defence Walls

N/A

100K-PCR
Threshold

£100k £250k

Purchase
Order
Purchase
Order
Sealed
contract
Purchase
Order
Purchase
Order
Written
contract
Purchase
Order
Sealed
contract

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

01/04/2021

Training for those officers dealing with a wide raft of environmental protection
matters
Appoint a consultant to advise & assist in the preparation of procurement
documents for repairs to a jetty and Ferry Nab marina.
Appoint a contractor for the repairs to jetty and Ferry Nab marina

N/A

Ferry Nab Jetty Repair - Consultant Appointment

Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision

Tender

One-off

Yes

All
All

N/A

£10k - £25k

Written
quotations
Written
quotations
Tender

Cabinet

Yes

Capital Bid not authorised for this. Defer to
21/22

Framework for the purchase of vehicle parts

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Thomas, Sion

Phil Dixon

All

Set up a framework for the purchase of vehicle parts

N/A

10-100K

£25k - £60k

Grange Lido structural repair and refurbishment works to create
public open space

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Thomas, Sion

Andrew Jarvis

Grange

N/A

100K-PCR
Threshold

Over £250k

Grange Promenade Play Area

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Straker, Polly

Phil Dixon

Grange

RIBA stage 2,3 & 4 to provide detailed design and cost estimates for the
refurbishment of the Grange Lido and to take through to Tender following
completion of the Business Case.
Part of the Grange Promenade refurbishment

N/A

Grange Promenade Structural Repairs - Building Contractor

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Thomas, Sion

Andrew Jarvis

Grange

N/A

01/03/2022

31/03/2027

Jackson, Julie

Helen Chaffey All

N/A

100K-PCR
Threshold
100K-PCR
Threshold
10-100K

£60k - £100k Written
quotations
Over £250k Tender

Homelessness ICT System

To undertake structural repairs to sea wall defence and upgrade the Grange
Promenade
ICT System to enable delivery of the homelessness functions

How to deal with customers with complex needs training

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Bradley, Dawn Phil Dixon

All

N/A

<10K

Human Resources & Payroll ICT System

01/04/2021

31/03/2025

McVey, Simon Jonathan
Brook

All

ICT Equipment

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Wright, Ben

All

N/A

Mountford,
Paul

Jonathan
Brook
Jonathan
Brook

Training to give officers the skills and knowledge to deal with all customers,
potentially covering motivational interviewing
Corporate ICT System to support the HR functions - contract due to expire in
Mar-22
March 2022 - exploring an extension and possible team up with Cumbria County
Council
Laptops and Other ICT Equipment for staff, rolling programme

All

A compliance and staff awareness training solution providing a comprehensive
and consistent approach to improving awareness. An e-learning solution to
ensure, and evidence (and identify risk), that all staff have signed, read and
understood any policy or communication as well as training staff in an engaging
manner.

15/10/2021

N/A

The supply of an electronic management system to provide communications
across the Street Scene service, integrate with existing systems and manage
performance
Corporate ICT System for processing payments and income for the council

31/03/2021

15/10/2021

Improving policy compliance and data protection awareness

N/A

In Cab Technology and Vehicle Tracking

01/04/2021

31/03/2029

Vickers,
Andrew

Phil Dixon

All

Income Management ICT System

01/04/2021

31/03/2024

Smith, Helen

Andrew Jarvis

All

N/A

Mountford,
Paul

Jonathan
Brook

All

Align the existing IAR, using a defined approach, so that it can be housed within
the Council’s existing SharePoint environment such that Information Asset
Owners are able to maintain the IAR going forward.

Information Asset Register (IAR) Consultancy Support

N/A

Page 62

IT Health Check

01/01/2024

31/12/2028

Jeffries,
Charles

Jonathan
Brook

All

Annual IT Security Health Check Contract, Joint with Eden

Job Evaluation system

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

All

Upgrade Job Evaluation - Contract expire 31 March 2024

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Officer,
Charles
Robinson,
Jacki

Phil Dixon

Kendal Flood Risk Management Scheme - Acoustician consultant

Kendal Flood Risk Management Scheme - Ecology consultant

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Kendal Flood Risk Management Scheme - Heritage consultant

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Kendal Station Gateway - Contractor

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Leaf Sweeping in the Sedbergh area

01/10/2021

30/09/2023

Legal Case Management ICT System

01/04/2021

31/03/2025

Lime re-pointing works to Castle Dairy external walls - Building
Contractor

01/04/2021

Lime re-pointing works to Castle Dairy external walls - Consultant
Local Land and Property Gazetteer ICT System

Admin Decision: Director

Tender

Cabinet
Cabinet

New
Contract
One-off

Yes

Cabinet ( then implemented by Tender
Admin decision )

Sealed
contract
Sealed
contract
Sealed
contract
Purchase
Order
Purchase
Order

Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only
Cabinet ( then implemented by
Admin decision )
Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision
Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Framework

Cabinet

One-off

Yes

Tender

Cabinet

One-off

Yes

Tender

Administration

No

Quotes

Administration

Contract
Renewall
One-off

Admin Decision: Lead Officer

Quotes

Administration

New
Contract

No

Sealed
contract
Purchase
Order

Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only
Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Quotes

Administration

Contract
Renewall
Contract
Renewall

Yes

<10K

£60k - £100k Written
quotations
Under £10k Quotes

N/A

>PCR
Threshold

£60k - £100k Written
quotations

Sealed
contract

Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only

Framework

Cabinet

New
Contract

Yes

N/A

N/A 100K-PCR
Threshold
<10K

£100k Tender
£250k
Under £10k Quotes

Sealed
contract
Purchase
Order

Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision
Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Tender

Cabinet

Contract
Renewall
One-off

No

N/A 10-100K

£10k - £25k

Written
quotations

Purchase
Order

Admin Decision: Lead Officer

Tender

Contract
Renewall

No

Written
quotations
Written
quotations

Purchase
Order
Purchase
Order

Admin Decision: Lead Officer

Quotes

One-off

No

Admin Decision: Lead Officer

One-off

Yes

Purchase
Order
Purchase
Order
Sealed
contract
Written
contract
Sealed
contract

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Bloom Procurement Services Delegated
Executive
Decision
Exemption
Administration

One-off

Yes

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Exemption

One-off

Yes

Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision
Admin Decision: Director

Bloom Procurement Services Cabinet

One-off

Yes

Quotes

Administration

No

Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision

Tender

Written
contract

Admin Decision: Director

Tender

One-off

Yes

Purchase
Order
Written
contract
Written
contract

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

LSH Additional Work

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Delegated
Executive
Decision
Administration

Contract
Renewall
New
Contract

One-off

Yes

Admin Decision: Director

Tender

Administration

No

Admin Decision: Director

Framework

Purchase
Order
Sealed
contract
Sealed
contract
Purchase
Order
Purchase
Order

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Quotes

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Administration

Contract
Renewall
New
Contract
One-off

No

Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision
Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision
Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Tender

Cabinet

Yes

Tender

Cabinet

Quotes

Administration

New
Contract
Contract
Renewall
One-off

Admin Decision: Lead Officer

Tender

Contract
Renewall

Yes

One-off

Yes

N/A

N/A

£100k Tender
£250k
Under £10k Quotes
£10k - £25k

Written
quotations

N/A 10-100K

£10k - £25k

Acoustician - review and discharge planning condition

N/A 10-100K

£10k - £25k

Robinson,
Robin Ashcroft Kendal Wards
Jacki
Robinson,
Robin Ashcroft Kendal Wards
Jacki
Williams, Matt Robin Ashcroft Kendal Wards

Ecology - discharge planning condition

N/A <10K

Under £10k Quotes

Heritage - discharging planning condition

N/A <10K

Under £10k Quotes

Construction contractor for Kendal Station Gateway enhancement scheme

Vickers,
Phil Dixon
Andrew
McVey, Simon Jonathan
Brook

Sedbergh & Kirkby
Lonsdale
All

Contract for leaf sweeping in the Sedbergh area
15/09/2021 N/A
Purchase & support of a Legal Case Management System

N/A 100K-PCR
Threshold
10-100K

£100k £250k
£25k - £60k

N/A 100K-PCR
Threshold

£100k £250k

31/03/2022

Thomas, Sion

Andrew Jarvis

Kendal Town

Re-pointing to external walls of Castle Dairy to remove sand/cement pointing.
Work will require listed building application

N/A 10-100K

£25k - £60k

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Thomas, Sion

Andrew Jarvis

Kendal Town

Under £10k Quotes

31/12/2027

Wright, Ben

N/A 10-100K

£25k - £60k

Management of Committee Reports and Council meetings

01/04/2022

Re-pointing to external walls of Castle Dairy to remove sand/cement pointing
work will require listed building application
Corporate ICT System for storing and processing Local Land and Property data,
used to support addressing in systems across the council.
Management of Committee reports, meeting scheduling and online access to
meetings

N/A <10K

01/01/2022

N/A 10-100K

£25k - £60k

Mental health first aid training

Robin Ashcroft Kendal Wards

Mar-24

Written
contract
Sealed
contract

See
N/A 10-100K
description of
contract
N/A
N/A 10-100K

Written
quotations
Tender

Tender
Written
quotations
Tender

Written
quotations

Bloom Procurement Services Administration

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Administration

Administration

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

In all likelihood, due to LGR, work to
improve policy compliance and data
protection awarenesswill be put on hold
until the transformation design principles
are agreed by the East Cumbria authorities.
Any future procurement will be dependant
on future service delivery.

In all likelihood, due to LGR, work to further
develop the Council's IAR will be put on
hold until the transformation design
principles are agreed by the East Cumbria
authorities. Any future procurement will be
dependant on future service delivery.

Joint with Eden

All

31/03/2027

Jonathan
Brook
McVey, Simon Phil Dixon

01/04/2021

31/03/2023

Bradley, Dawn Phil Dixon

All

Train a group of officers to become mental health first aiders

N/A <10K

Under £10k Quotes

MFD Printers /Scanners

01/08/2021

31/07/2025

All

MFD Devices for SLDC and Eden

Microsoft Enterprise Agreement

01/10/2021

30/09/2023

All

Corporate Microsoft Licenses

Microsoft Office training

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

McVey, Simon Jonathan
Brook
Jeffries,
Jonathan
Charles
Brook
Bradley, Dawn Phil Dixon

All

Training to basic and intermediate levels for everyday Microsoft products

N/A 100K-PCR
Threshold
N/A 100K-PCR
Threshold
N/A <10K

£100k Tender
£250k
£100k Tender
£250k
Under £10k Quotes

Mobile Phones & Data/Voice Contract

01/04/2021

31/08/2023

Jonathan
Moloney

Jonathan
Brook

All

Provision mobile phones and data and voice contract.

N/A 10-100K

£10k - £25k

New decking for public jetty No. 2 Ferry Nab

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Flannigan,
Frankie

N/A 10-100K

£60k - £100k Written
quotations

Sealed
contract

Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only

Quotes

Owlett Ash Playground

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Straker, Polly

Lake
Bowness & Levens
 e-deck jetty no. 2 as in a bad state of repair.
R
Administration
Committee
Phil Dixon
Arnside & Milnthorpe P
 urchase of Playground equipment for Owlett Ash playground

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Administration

N/A 10-100K

£60k - £100k Written
quotations

Sealed
contract

Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only

Framework

Cabinet

One-off

Yes

Parking Enforcement ICT System

01/04/2021

31/03/2025

Flannigan,
Frankie

Phil Dixon

All

Upgrade to the Enforcement equipment. ICT System to support the Parking
Enforcement Function

N/A 10-100K

£25k - £60k

Written
quotations

Written
contract

Admin Decision: Director

Tender

Yes

01/04/2022

31/03/2023

Flannigan,
Frankie

Phil Dixon

Kendal Town

Upgrade to allow machines to take card payments

N/A 10-100K

£25k - £60k

Written
quotations

Written
contract

Admin Decision: Director

Exemption

One-off

Yes

Playground Inspection App

01/04/2021

31/03/2025

Straker, Polly

Phil Dixon

All

User friendly app to log all 62 weekly inspections while out on site.

N/A 10-100K

Under £10k Quotes

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Exemption

One-off

No

Joint with Eden

N/A

Mountford,
Paul

Jonathan
Brook

All

Develop a data analysis tool so as to enable the Council to better understand its 15/10/2021
data regarding, for example, service demand, channel use, finance and human
resources and correlate them to provide visual and meaningful management
intelligence. Linking up and correlating data, visualising performance against
outcomes and inputs supports decision making, service development and
strategic commissioning.

N/A 100K-PCR
Threshold

£100k £250k

Purchase
Order
Sealed
contract

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Delegated
Executive
Decision
Administration

One-off

Pay on Foot Machine upgrade

Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision

Framework

Delegated
Executive
Decision

New
Contract

No

In all likelihood, due to LGR, work to
develop a meaningful management
intelligence data analysis tool will be put on
hold until the transformation design
principles are agreed by the East Cumbria
authorities. Any future procurement will be
dependant on future service delivery.

This may be delivered internally but if bought in it would have a focus on
producing council reports and how to present them to different audiences
Equipment to support the print room operation

N/A <10K

Under £10k Quotes

Quotes

Administration

One-off

No

Cabinet

Quotes

Administration

Contract
Renewall
New
Contract

No

N/A <10K

Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision
Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Tender

Train a group of officers from across the organisation to use agile/scrum
techniques as a means of project management. Also provide traditional
waterfall project management where required

£100k Tender
£250k
Under £10k Quotes

Purchase
Order
Sealed
contract
Purchase
Order

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

N/A 10-100K

Practical Wisdom (My Public Sector Model & My Operating Model)

N/A

All

Presentation skills training

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Bradley, Dawn Phil Dixon

All

Printer Room Equipment

01/07/2021

30/06/2026

All

Project management training - Agile/scrum and waterfall

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

McVey, Simon Jonathan
Brook
Bradley, Dawn Phil Dixon

All

Written
quotations
Written
quotations

Bloom Procurement Services Administration

Yes

Written
quotations

Tender

No

No
No

No

Procurement via the ESPO Framework.
Fundraising not started yet. defer to
2020/21.

Page 63

Provision of Tyres

01/04/2021

31/03/2026

Vickers,
Andrew

Phil Dixon

All

Provision of tyres to streetscene for the maintenance of the Council vehicles.

N/A 100K-PCR
Threshold

£10k - £25k

Purchase of a Pressure Washer

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Thomas, Sion

Phil Dixon

All

Purchase of a Pressure Washer

N/A <10K

Under £10k Quotes

Purchase of a Tractor for Ferry Nab

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Thomas, Sion

Purchase of a tractor for Ferry Nab

N/A 10-100K

£60k - £100k Written
quotations

Reconfiguration and extension to Rothay Park PC - Consultant

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Thomas, Sion

Capital Project to upgrade the toilets and introduce kiosk in partnership with LPC

N/A 10-100K

Under £10k Quotes

Reconfigure and extension to Rothay Park PC - Contractor

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Thomas, Sion

Refurbishment of Ellerthwiate Depot - Contractor

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Scullion, Paul

Lake
Bowness & Levens
Administration
Committee
Andrew Jarvis Ambleside &
Grasmere
Andrew Jarvis Ambleside &
Grasmere
Andrew Jarvis Windermere

Contractor to carry out the upgrade to toilets and introduce a kiosk in
partnership with LPC
A contractor to carry out the refurbishment of Ellerthwaite Depot, Windermere

N/A 100K-PCR
Threshold
N/A 10-100K

£100k Tender
£250k
£60k - £100k Written
quotations

Refurbishment works to Abbot Hall - Consultant Appointment

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Scullion, Paul

Andrew Jarvis

Kendal Town

N/A <10K

Under £10k Quotes

Refurbishment works to Abbot Hall - Contractor Appointment

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Scullion, Paul

Andrew Jarvis

Kendal Town

Replacement of Market Hall lift - Consultant Appointment

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Scullion, Paul

Andrew Jarvis

Kendal Town

N/A 100K-PCR
Threshold
N/A <10K

£100k Tender
£250k
Under £10k Quotes

Replacement of Market Hall lift - Contractor Appointment

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Scullion, Paul

Andrew Jarvis

Kendal Town

Appointment of a consultant to advise & assist in preparing the procurement
documents for the refurbishment of Abbott Hall, Kendal
Appointment of a contractor to carry out the refurbishment of Abbott Hall,
Kendal
Appointment of a consultant to advise & assist with the preparation of the
procurement documents for the replacement of Market Hall lift
Appoint a contractor to replace the lift at Kendal Market Hall

N/A 10-100K

Retaining Wall repair works to Gooseholme - Consultant
appointment
Retaining Wall repair works to Gooseholme - Contractor
appointment
Revenues and Benefits Annual Billing Printing Managed Service

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Scullion, Paul

Andrew Jarvis

Kendal North

N/A <10K

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Scullion, Paul

Andrew Jarvis

Kendal North

Appointment of a consultant to advise and assist with the procurement
documents for Retaining Wall repair works to Gooseholme
Appointment of a contractor to carry retaining Wall repair works to Gooseholme

£60k - £100k Written
quotations
Under £10k Quotes

01/04/2021

31/03/2026

Andrew Jarvis

All

Printing and postage of revenues and benefits annual billing documentation

Revenues and Benefits ICT System

01/04/2024

31/03/2029

Andrew Jarvis

All

ICT System to enable delivery of the Revenues and Benefits functions

Roofing repairs The Monument KL - contractor

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

McDonald,
Vicky
McDonald,
Vicky
Thomas, Sion

Andrew Jarvis

All

Contractor to carry out roof repairs to Monument prior to asset transfer to KLTC

N/A 100K-PCR
Threshold
N/A 100K-PCR
Threshold
N/A 10-100K

Route Optimisation Software & Hardware

01/04/2021

31/03/2025

Vickers,
Andrew

Phil Dixon

All

Route Optimisation Software & Hardware

N/A

N/A

Software to support informal communications channels

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Bradley, Dawn Phil Dixon

All

Informal comms channels software such as facebook for work

N/A

N/A

Software to support the facilitation of in house training

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Bradley, Dawn Phil Dixon

All

N/A

Strategic and commercial awareness training

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Bradley, Dawn Phil Dixon

All

Software to support session delivered in house, such as mentimeter, kahoot,
eLearning building software course
Training for leads and team leads in commerciality and strategic planning

Structural Repair Works for Westmorland Shopping Centre Car Park Contractor
Supply of Car Park Tickets

01/04/2022

31/03/2023

Thomas, Sion

Andrew Jarvis

Kendal Town

01/10/2021

30/09/2024

Flannigan,
Frankie

Phil Dixon

Systems to support the Waste Management processes with ICT in
the CAB

01/04/2021

31/03/2026

Thomas, Sion

Town View Fields Hostel - External access improvement and internal
refurbishment. - Consultant Appointment

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Scullion, Paul

Town View Fields Hostel - External access improvement and internal
refurbishment. - Contractor Appointment

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Ulverston Recyclables & Green Waste disposal

01/04/2021

31/03/2025

Ulverston Town Clock - Consultant Appointment

01/04/2021

Ulverston Town Clock - Contractor Appointment

01/04/2021

Upgrade to Millerground Pumping Pant - Contractor Appointment

N/A 10-100K

Written
quotations

Purchase
Order

Admin Decision: Lead Officer

Tender

Contract
Renewall

No

Quotes

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Administration

Purchase
Order
Sealed
contract

Admin Decision : Lead Officer
Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only

One-off

Yes

Quotes

Administration

One-off

Purchase
Order
Sealed
contract
Sealed
contract

Yes

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Bloom Procurement Services Administration

One-off

Yes

Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision
Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only

Tender

One-off

Yes

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Bloom Procurement Services Administration

One-off

Purchase
Order
Sealed
contract
Purchase
Order
Sealed
contract
Purchase
Order
Sealed
contract
Sealed
contract
Sealed
contract
Purchase
Order

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Yes

One-off

No

Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision
Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Tender

One-off

No

Bloom Procurement Services Administration

One-off

No

Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only
Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Tender

Administration

One-off

No

Bloom Procurement Services Administration

One-off

No

Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision
Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision
Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision
Admin Decision: Lead Officer

Tender

Administration

One-off

No

Tender

Cabinet

No

Tender

Cabinet

Tender

Sealed
contract

Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision

Tender

New
Contract

No

Purchase
Order
Purchase
Order
Purchase
Order
Sealed
contract
Purchase
Order

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Quotes

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Delegated
Executive
Decision
Administration

New
Contract
Contract
Renewall
One-off

One-off

No

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Quotes

Administration

One-off

No

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Quotes

Administration

One-off

No

Cabinet

One-off

Yes

New
Contract

Yes

New
Contract

No

One-off

No

Cabinet

Tender

Cabinet

£100k £250k
£100k £250k
£100k £250k
£10k - £25k

Tender

100K-PCR
Threshold

£100k £250k

Tender

<10K

Under £10k Quotes

N/A

<10K

Under £10k Quotes

N/A

N/A

<10K

Under £10k Quotes

N/A

N/A

Tender

N/A

N/A

100K-PCR
Threshold
10-100K

Over £250k

All

A Contractor the carry out the structural repair works to concrete decking at the
Westmorland Shopping Centre Multi Storey Car Park
Supply of Car Park Tickets and the arrangement of advertising.

£10k - £25k

Written
quotations

Jonathan
Brook

All

Systems to support the Waste Management processes with ICT in the CAB

N/A

N/A

10-100K

£60k - £100k Written
quotations

Sealed
contract

Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only

Andrew Jarvis

Kendal North

N/A

N/A

10-100K

Under £10k Quotes

Purchase
Order

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Scullion, Paul

Andrew Jarvis

Kendal North

Appointment of a consultant to advise and assist with preparation of the
procurement documents for external access improvements and internal
refurbishment at Town View Fields Hostel, Kendal
Appoint a contractor to carry out improvements to the external access and
internal refurbishment at Town View Fields Hostel, Kendal

N/A

N/A

10-100K

£60k - £100k Written
quotations

Sealed
contract

Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only

Vickers,
Andrew

Phil Dixon

Ulverston East & West Disposal of Recyclables and Green Waste in the Ulverston area.

N/A

N/A

100K-PCR
Threshold

£100k £250k

Sealed
contract

Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision

31/03/2022

Scullion, Paul

Andrew Jarvis

Ulverston East & West Repair and overhaul Ulverston Town Clock

N/A

N/A

<10K

Under £10k Quotes

Scullion, Paul

Andrew Jarvis

Ulverston East & West Repair and overhaul of Ulverston Town Clock

N/A

N/A

10-100K

£25k - £60k

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Scullion, Paul

Andrew Jarvis

All

N/A

N/A

10-100K

Upgrade to Millerground Pumping Plant - Consultant Appointment

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Scullion, Paul

Andrew Jarvis

Windermere

N/A

N/A

<10K

Vehicle for Streetscene

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Thwaites,
David

Phil Dixon

All

Appoint a Contractor to upgrade the pumping plant at Millerground,
Windermere
Appoint a consultant to advise and assist with the preparation of the
procurement documents for a replacement pumping plant at Millerground,
Windermere
Purchase a vehicle from for Streetscene

Purchase
Order
Written
contract
Written
contract
Purchase
Order

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

31/03/2022

N/A

N/A

10-100K

£60k - £100k Written
quotations

Sealed
contract

Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only

Vehicle Reversing Safety Equipment

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Thomas, Sion

Phil Dixon

All

Purchase of Vehicle Reversing Safety Equipment

N/A

N/A

10-100K

£25k - £60k

Admin Decision: Director

Wide area network Connections

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Wright, Ben

Jonathan
Brook

All

Wide area network connections contract

N/A

N/A

10-100K

£10k - £25k

Written
contract
Purchase
Order

Admin Decision: Lead Officer

Tender

Workshop equipment servicing

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Thwaites,
David

Phil Dixon

All

Provide servicing for all the workshop equipment

N/A

<10K

Under £10k Quotes

Purchase
Order

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Quotes

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Administration

Items Removed August 2021
Policy in Practice consultancy

02/08/2021

31/07/2022

Blyth, Simon

Dyan Jones

All

To provide data analysis for the anti-poverty strategy

#N/A

#N/A

Quotes

Administration

Annual Purchase of 1100-l Waste Bins 2021/22

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

All

The purchase of 1100-l new & refurbished waste bins for the year 20-21

Quotes

Administration

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Vickers,
Andrew
Vickers,
Andrew

Phil Dixon

Annual Purchase of 360-l Grey Bins 2021/22

Phil Dixon

All

The purchase of 360-l grey bins for the year 20-21 via the ESPO Framework

Annual Purchase of Recycling Bags 2021/22

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Phil Dixon

All

The purchase of blue recycling bags for the year 20-21 via the ESPO Framework

N/A

Disabled Changing Facility at Millerground - Contrator appointment

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Vickers,
Andrew
Straker, Polly

Phil Dixon

Windermere

To create a changing area and toilet facilities suitable for disable access.

N/A

Items Added - July 2021
Levelling Up Fund - Consultant

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Williams, Matt Robin Ashcroft Kendal Wards

Consultancy, professional services for development of Levelling Up Fund bid for
South Lakeland

N/A

Levelling Up Fund - Contractor

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Williams, Matt Robin Ashcroft Kendal Wards

Construction contractor to deliver Levelling Up Fund scheme of works

N/A

Economic Strategy - Consultant

01/04/2021

31/03/2022

Williams, Matt Robin Ashcroft All

Consultancy support for development of new Economic Strategy

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Tender
Written
quotations

Tender

Written
quotations
£25k - £60k Written
quotations
Under £10k Quotes

Written
quotations
Written
quotations

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Tender
Delegated
Executive
Decision
Bloom Procurement Services Administration

Tender

Tender

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Delegated
Executive
Decision
Bloom Procurement Services Administration
Tender

No

Joint with Eden

Yes

Tickets currently supplied by Bemrose
Booth with no contract in place.

One-off

New
Contract

No

This is a combination of two existing
contracts in the Ulverston area as a new
contract to commence on 1 April 2022

One-off

No

Admin Decision: Director

Quotes

Administration

One-off

No

Admin Decision: Director

Quotes

Administration

One-off

No

Bloom Procurement Services Administration

One-off

No

One-off

Yes

Approved20/21. Carried forward but
missed April approval.

New
Contract
New
Contract

Yes

Exemption to purchase ReaClear System for
vehicles. Contract Term will be 5 years

One-off

Yes

New
Contract
One-off

No

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Administration

One-off

No

One-off

No

Cabinet

One-off

Yes

One-off

No

One-off

No

One-off

No

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Tender

Exemption

10-100K

N/A

<10K

Under £10k Quotes
£25k - £60k

Written
quotations

Purchase
Order
Written
contract

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

10-100K

Admin Decision: Director

Framework

N/A

10-100K

£10k - £25k

Framework

10-100K

£25k - £60k

Purchase
Order
Written
contract

Admin Decision: Lead Officer

N/A

Written
quotations
Written
quotations

N/A

10-100K

£25k - £60k

Written
quotations

Written
contract

Admin Decision: Director

N/A

>PCR
Threshold
10-100K

Over £250k

Tender

£10k - £25k

Written
quotations

Sealed
contract
Purchase
Order

30/09/2021
N/A

#N/A

Cabinet ( then implemented by Tender
Admin decision )
Admin Decision: Lead Officer

N/A

N/A
30/09/2021
N/A

Tender

Renewal of the tyre contract to commence
1 April 2022

Admin Decision: Director

Tender

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Cabinet

Bloom Procurement Services Delegated
Executive
Decision
Cabinet ( then implemented by Bloom Procurement Services Cabinet
Admin decision )
Admin Decision: Lead Officer
Bloom Procurement Services Delegated
Executive
Decision

No

To amalgamate all the equipment servicing
into one contract.

No

Currently on hold as the future of the
public toilets is uncertain and this is to be
part of the same facility. Tender to be
discussed with Sion Thomas as will possibly
be a JCT and LSH may be involved.

Business Support

01/04/2021

Provision of Business Support services in the area

N/A

N/A

10-100K

£25k - £60k

Apprenticeship training

01/04/2021

ongoing

Bradley, Dawn Phil Dixon

Team development

01/09/2021

31/08/2022

Bradley, Dawn Phil Dixon

All

Use of apprenticeship levy to train new apprentices and existing employees

n/a

n/a

10-100k

All

Train people manager population

n/a

n/a

10-100k

Bradley, Dawn Phil Dixon

All

Training requested as part of investing in your skills exercise

n/a

n/a

<10k

£60k - £100k Written
quotations
£25k - £60k Written
quotations
Under £10k Quotes

Assertiveness training

01/07/2021

31/03/2022

Change management training

01/07/2021

Dealing with difficult customers training

01/07/2021

31/03/2022

Bradley, Dawn Phil Dixon

All

Training requested as part of investing in your skills exercise

n/a

n/a

<10k

Under £10k Quotes

31/03/2022

Bradley, Dawn Phil Dixon

All

Training requested as part of investing in your skills exercise

n/a

n/a

<10k

Under £10k Quotes

ModGov training

01/07/2021

31/03/2022

Bradley, Dawn Phil Dixon

All

Training requested as part of investing in your skills exercise

n/a

n/a

<10k

Under £10k Quotes

Mentoring skills training

01/07/2021

31/03/2022

Bradley, Dawn Phil Dixon

All

Training requested as part of investing in your skills exercise

n/a

n/a

<10k

Under £10k Quotes

Enforcement/PACE training

01/07/2021

31/03/2022

Bradley, Dawn Phil Dixon

All

Training requested as part of investing in your skills exercise

n/a

n/a

<10k

Under £10k Quotes

Structural Repair works to retaining wall along River Kent

01/06/2021

31/03/2022

Scullion, Paul

Andrew Jarvis

Kendal Town

Structural Repair works to River retaining wall area along River Kent.

N/A

N/A

10-100K

£60k - £100k Written
quotations

Tender for refreshment/ Ice cream concession on SLDC land.

01/06/2021

31/03/2027

Thomas, Sion

Phil Dixon

All

Refreshment/ Ice cream concessions on SLDC land.

N/A

N/A

10-100K

£10k - £25k

Local Authority Scheme for the Green Homes Grant - Phase 2

31/03/2021

31/12/2021

N/A

N/A

700K

Local Authority Scheme for the Green Homes Grant - Phase 3

01/09/2021

01/09/2022

David Bradley Helen Chaffey Ulverston East & West Delivery of energy efficiency measures as part of the LAD2 Government
and Kendal East and programme
West
David Bradley Helen Chaffey All
Delivery of energy efficiency measures as part of the LAD3 Government
programme

N/A

N/A

Homes Upgrade Grant

01/09/2021

01/09/2022

David Bradley Helen Chaffey All

Delivery of energy efficiency measures as part of the HUG programme

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Mountford,
Paul

Jonathan
Brook

All

Develop a data analysis tool so as to enable the Council to better understand its
data regarding, for example, service demand, channel use, finance and human
resources and correlate them to provide visual and meaningful management
intelligence. Linking up and correlating data, visualising performance against
outcomes and inputs supports decision making, service development and
strategic commissioning.

15/10/2021

2 X Recycling Vehicles

01/12/2021

01/04/2023

Vickers,
Andrew

Phil Dixon

All

Two recycling lorries for Street Scene

2 X Bin Lorries

01/12/2021

01/04/2023

Vickers,
Andrew

Phil Dixon

All

Two bin lorries for Street scene

Clinical Waste collection

01/09/2021

31/08/2024

Vickers,
Andrew

Phil Dixon

All

Formalise agreement for Clinical waste collection

Sion Thomas

Robin Ashcroft Kendal East; Kendal
North; Kendal Rural;
Kendal South &
Natland; Kendal
Town; Kendal West
Philip Dixon
All

Resource and Data Management

31/03/2022

Page 64

Items to be added - October 2021
Kendal Markets Soft FM

Emergency planning services

01/04/2021

31/03/2024

Contract for disaster and back up recovery of IT services

01/10/2023

30/09/2026

Allpay – agreement for provision of electronic payment services
revs and bens
Parking Enforcement management system

01/10/2021

Pay and display solution (Metric)

Chapman,
Laura

Simon
McVey?
Wright, Ben

Robin Ashcroft All

Written
quotations

Written
contract

Admin Decision: Director

Tender

One-off

No

Framework

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Administration

Sealed
contract
Written
contract
Purchase
Order
Purchase
Order
Purchase
Order
Purchase
Order
Purchase
Order
Purchase
Order
Sealed
contract

Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only
Admin Decision: Director

One-off

No

exemption

Administration

One-off

no

Written
quotations

Purchase
Order

Admin Decision: Lead Officer

Over £250k

Tender

Sealed
contract

Cabinet ( then implemented by Consortium
Admin decision )

700K

Over £250k

Tender

Sealed
contract

500K

Over £250k

Tender

Sealed
contract

N/A

100K-PCR
Threshold

£100k £250k

Tender

N/A

N/A

100K-PCR
Threshold

£100k £250k

N/A

N/A

100K-PCR
Threshold

£100k £250k

N/A

N/A

10-100k

Exemption already approved

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Quotes

Administration

One-off

No

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Quotes

Administration

One-off

No

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Quotes

Administration

One-off

No

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Quotes

Administration

One-off

No

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Quotes

Administration

One-off

No

Admin Decision : Lead Officer

Quotes

Administration

One-off

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Delegated
Executive
Decision
Cabinet

One-off

No

Tender

One-off

No

Cabinet ( then implemented by Consortium
Admin decision )

Cabinet

Open
No
Competition

Details have not been announced

Cabinet ( then implemented by Consortium
Admin decision )

Cabinet

Open
No
Competition

Details have not been announced

Sealed
contract

Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision

Framework

Delegated
Executive
Decision

New
Contract

No

In all likelihood, due to LGR, work to
develop a meaningful management
intelligence data analysis tool will be put on
hold until the transformation design
principles are agreed by the East Cumbria
authorities. Any future procurement will be
dependant on future service delivery.

Tender

Sealed
contract

Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision

Framework

No

Sealed
contract

Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision

Framework

£100k £250k

Tender

Sealed
contract

Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision

Tender

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Delegated
Executive
Decision
Delegated
Executive
Decision

New
Contract

Tender

Caretaking duties for the Kendal market

£25k - £60k

Written
quotations

Written
contract

Admin Decision: Director

Direct award

Cabinet

New
Contract

Direct award Written
contract
Written
Written
quotations contract
Written
Written
quotations contract
written
Written
Quotations Contract
Tender
Sealed
contract
#REF!
#REF!
Written
Written
quotations contract

Admin Decision: Director

Direct award

Service level agreement

£25k - £60k

All

Contract for disaster and back up recovery of IT services

£25k - £60k

30/09/2025

Jonathan
Brook
McDonald, Vicky
Andrew Jarvis

All

Allpay – agreement for provision of electronic payment services revs and bens

01/10/2023

N/A

£25k - £60k

01/04/2022

31/03/2025

Flannigan, Frankie
Phil Dixon

All

Computer system for tracking Parking Enforcement

N/A

N/A

£25k - £60k

14/07/2022

13/07/2025

Flannigan, Frankie
Phil Dixon

All

Pay and Display machines with card payment facilities - service

N/A

N/A

£100k £250k
£25k - £60k

TBD

Simon McVey? Phil Dixon

All

Update of the current system as the old system is at end of life and support is being phased
TBD out

Miller bridge
carinnovation
park extension
Meritec
( digital
) – extension?

Delegated Executive Decision:
Director only

Admin Decision: Director
Admin Decision: Director

Exemption

Extension of No
existing

Tender for Refreshment/ Ice cream
concessions on SLDC to provide additional
income.
Eden District Council are the Lead Authority

New
Contract
New
Contract

Approved Cabinet 20/01/2021, delegation
to Operational Lead and MO.

Contract
Renewal
Contract Renewal

Admin Decision: Director
Delegated Exectutive Decision:
PH and Director decision
#REF! Decision: Director
Admin

£25k - £60k
Contract for external Network Infrastructure Support Updated etarmis (Flexi) system

TBD

TBD

<£10k

written
Written
Admin Decision: Director
Quotations Contract
Under £10k Written quotations
Written contract
Admin Decision: Director

Procurement and Contract Requirements
Standard Procurement Requirements:
Contract Value from (excluding VAT)

All Procurements on
should
the Procurement
be on the Procurement
Schedule and
Schedule
on thethe
Forward
columns
Plan
should
( if applicable
say
Thethe
date
dates
infor
advance
the
thatCabinet
the
ofCabinet
thedecision
approval
decisions
should
of the
will
be
Procurement
be
inserted
taken.on Schedule
the FP )
Contract Value
from (excluding
VAT)
£10,000
£25,000
£60,000
£100,000
£250,000

Value range
Under £10k
£10k - £25k
£25k - £60k
£60k - £100k
£100k - £250k
Over £250k
Matter s not listed on the Procurement Schedule will require consideration by the Director/ MO/ s151 as outlined below
£0
£10,000
£25,000
£60,000
£100,000
£250,000

Procurment
Contract
Requirement
Requirement
Quotes
Purchase Order
Written quotations
Purchase Order
Written quotations
Written contract
Written quotations
Sealed contract
Tender
Sealed contract
Tender
Sealed contract

Forward Plan - Single
Ward
Forward Plan - 2 or more Wards
Not needed
Not needed
Procurement Schedule OnlyIndividual item on Forward Plan
Procurement Schedule OnlyIndividual item on Forward Plan
Procurement Schedule OnlyIndividual item on Forward Plan
Individual item on ForwardIndividual
Plan
item on Forward Plan
Individual item on ForwardIndividual
Plan
item on Forward Plan

Matters Considered by Director / MO / S151 to be obligatory for all procurement concerning:

to consider the appropriate approval requirements.

Matters outside the normal pattern of contracting or service
New partnerships
Matters not listed on the Procurement Schedule

Exemptions: written quotations or tenders are not required if:
(a) the total estimated value is less than £10,000 although obtaining quotes to ensure best value is encouraged. Where quotations have been sought they should be retained in a format agreed by the Procurement Specialist; or
(b) the goods, services or works are proprietary or of such a specialised nature that they can only be obtained from one particular supplier; or are sold only at a fixed price and no reasonably satisfactory alternative is available; or
(c) the prices of the goods or materials are wholly controlled by trade organisations or Government Order and no reasonably satisfactory alternative is available; or
(d) a purchase is to be made at a public auction, provided that the person bidding is satisfied that the cost of the purchase is reasonable compared to the cost of alternative methods of purchase; or
(e) the purchase is through an alternative contract or Framework Agreement available to the Council and which has been put together as a result of a lawfully tendered competition; or
(f) the contract is with professional persons for the provision of services where the personal skill of those persons is of primary importance; or
(g) for other reasons certified by the relevant Director there would be no genuine competition; or
(h) the contract is for the execution of work, the supply of goods, or services certified by the relevant Director as being required so urgently as not to permit the invitation of quotations or tenders; or
(i) the works to be executed or the goods, works or services fall within the scope of the existing contract; an extension of an existing contract as stated in the initial contract agreement; or

Contract
Oth
Acceptance
Retention
er
Admin Decision :3Lead
yearsOfficer
or lifetime of contract
Admin Decision:3Lead
Officer
years or lifetime of contract
Admin Decision:3Director
years or lifetime of contract
Delegated Executive
6 years
Decision:
from expiry
Director
Include
of contract
only
liquidated damages where appropriate
Delegated Exectutive
6 years
Decision:
from expiry
PH
Include
and
of contract
Director
liquidated
decision
damages where appropriate
Cabinet ( then implemented
6 years from expiry
by Admin
Include
of contract
decision
liquidated
) damages where appropriate

Contract Renewal

TBA

(j) the works to be executed or the goods, works or services fall within the
scope of an existing contract where there is a genuinely justifiable case to
use the existing contract to maintain continuity of supply. Extensions will not
be considered where to do so would breach procurement or other legislation.

Waiving the Rules
Subject to UK law any of these rules may be waived Waivers should be
included in the Procurement Schedule to be approved by Council as part of
the budget setting process. If this is not possible, waivers shall be approved
where to do so is justified in special circumstances and those special
circumstances and the advantages and disadvantages of the alternative
options are identified.
Waivers relating to insurance claims where the procurement requirements of
the insurer have been followed will only need to be reported as part of the
Corporate Financial Monitoring process even if over £100,000

Waivers and Exemptions must follow these requirements:
Contract Value from (excluding VAT)
Standard
Standard
Procurment
Contract
Forward Plan Forward Plan - 2 or more
Requirement
Requirement
Single Ward
Wards
Consultation / agreement of
Quotes
Purchase Order Not needed
Not needed
N/a
Written quotationsPurchase Order Procurement Schedule
Individual
Only item on ForwardProcurement
Plan
Specialist / Specialist Legal
Written quotationsWritten contract Procurement Schedule
Individual
Only item on ForwardProcurement
Plan
Specialist / Specialist Legal
Written quotationsSealed contract Procurement Schedule
Individual
Only item on ForwardProcurement
Plan
Specialist / S151 Officer / Monitoring Officer
Tender
Sealed contract Individual item on Individual
Forward Plan
item on ForwardProcurement
Plan
Specialist / S151 Officer / Monitoring Officer
Tender
Sealed contract Individual item on Individual
Forward Plan
item on ForwardProcurement
Plan
Specialist / S151 Officer / Monitoring Officer
*Use the Public Contracting thresholds as set out for Other Contracting Authorities and the "Supply, Service and Design contracts" thresholds will be applied to all SLDC contracts, regardless of type, for the purposes of this process (i.e. £189,300 for works)
The Public Contracting Thresholds for 2021/22 are (excluding VAT):
£0
£10,000
£25,000
£60,000
£100,000
£250,000

Contract Value
from (excluding
VAT)
£10,000
£25,000
£60,000
£100,000
£250,000

Supply, Service and
Social and other
Central Government
Design contracts Works contracts specific services
Other Contracting Authorities
£122,976
£4,733,252
£663,540
Small Lots
£189,330
£4,733,252
£663,540
The thresholds are not round figures (as in £4,500,000) as they are based on the historic
£70,778
exchange rate£884,720
against the Euro. They
N/A
are also excluding VAT.

Approval of
Waiver or
Exemption:
Admin Decision: Lead Specialist or appointed person
Admin Decision: Lead Specialist or appointed person
Admin Decision: Director
Delegated Executive Decision: Director only
Delegated Exectutive Decision: PH and Director decision
Cabinet then implemented by Admin decision

Page 65

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 66

Top 25 Suppliers by spend

Appendix 2

This appendix shows the Council's largest supplier by spend during 2020/21.

Page 67

Supplier
Caddick Construction (NW) Limited
Dennis Eagle Ltd
Continental Landscapes Ltd
Lambert Smith Hampton Group
Allstar Business Solutions Ltd
Isuzu Truck (Uk) Ltd
Meritec Ltd
The Oyster Partnership
Bloom Procurement Services Ltd
Greenwich Leisure Ltd
Npower Ltd
Cumbria Waste Recycling Ltd
Howe Projects Ltd
Kompan Scotland Ltd
I T Shaw Ltd
John Wade Groundworks Ltd
Morgan Hunt Uk Limited
Phoenix Software Ltd
Macdonald & Company Freelance Ltd
Adecco Uk Limited
Barclays HMG Procurement Card
Masterstaff Limited
Carrington West
Capita Business Services Ltd
Grant Thornton Uk LLP

Total Paid
1,096,367.91
998,406.00
783,797.26
446,434.88
372,765.26
343,610.01
322,984.70
321,185.26
280,058.04
238,764.88
184,878.22
153,060.58
142,403.89
135,885.33
133,028.25
101,399.27
95,580.11
87,393.75
85,191.25
82,821.02
82,700.66
80,180.64
78,282.45
71,097.54
66,153.75

Category of Spend
Renovation of Kendal Town Hall and South Lakeland House
Vehicles
Landscape and grave digging
Property Management
Fuel Cards
Vehicles
IT System and Temporary Staff
Recruitment
Consultancy 3rd party
Leisure Centres
Electric and Gas
Recycling
Fitters
Playground fitter
Civil Engineering and Plant
Building/ groundworks
Recruitment
Software licences
Recruitment
Recruitment
Procurement Cards
Recruitment
Recruitment
IT system
Auditors

CTT
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
No
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
No
Yes
No
Yes
No
No
Yes
No
No
Yes
Yes

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 68

Appendix 3
This appendix shows exemptions and waivers for procurements agreed in 2020/21.

Page 69

Contract

Requester

Value

Morecambe Bay Bid
Re-opening High Streets
safely
Back up and DR
Info @work
Leadership training

David Sykes
Jacki Robinson

£
£

Ben Wright
Ben Wright
Dawn Bradley

£ 105,000 01/10/2015 01/10/2020 01/10/2023
£ 108,000 01/12/2015 01/12/2020 01/12/2023 3.2?
£
70,137 01/09/2020 ?
?
3.1.f

mobile device use
Riba 5

Ben Wright
Sion Thomas

£
19,423
£ 240,000 06/07/2020

31/03/2020 31/03/2021 3.1.j
06/07/2021 n
3.1.a

Documail

Ben Wright

£

01/10/2021 n/a

3.1 (i)

Green waste

Andy Vickers

£ 120,000

31/03/2022

3.1 i

Gas
Abbot Hall Consultancy
Mod Gov
Print/print room
Year end Billing
Cutains KTH
Ulverston Business
Improvement District
(UBID),

Paul Scullion
Sion Thomas
Simon McVey
Simon McVey
Vicky McDonald
Sion Thomas
Jacki Robinson

?
£

31/03/2025 n
n
y
27/06/2021 y
y

3.1.e
3.1.a
3.1.j
3.1.j
3.1 (i)

£
£
£
£

Start date

65,000 01/11/2020
25,000 01/07/2020

50,000 01/04/2020
01/04/2020

01/04/2021
56,630 01/04/2021
in progress
15,929 28/06/2020
40,000 02/12/2020
61,878 in progress
6,000 15/06/2020

End Date

Extension

09/12/2020 n
31/03/2021 n

Justification Procurement
review date
waiver 3.2
urgency

3.1 a & h

one off
one off

Section 151 Review
approval
date
date
06/11/2020
02/08/2020

Supplier

Lancaster CC
4 contracts

29/06/2020
29/06/2020
29/06/2020

Insight Direct UK
Insight Direct UK
Ginger Dog

one off

12/06/2020
09/06/2020

LSH through Bloom

FY

01/04/2020

CFH Documail

01/07/2024
one off

04/08/2020
22/12/2020
02/02/2021
29/10/2020
02/12/2020

Corona Energy via YPO
LSH through Bloom
Civica
Konica
CFH Ltd
Judith Harrop - Interior Design
UBID

3.2

01/02/2022
01/04/2022

26/08/2020

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 70

Item No.9
South Lakeland District Council
Council
Thursday, 11 November 2021

Update to the Council's Constitution - Contract
Procedure Rules
Portfolio:

Cllr Philip Dixon - Customer and Locality Services Portfolio Holder

Report from:

Monitoring Officer

Report Author:

Linda Fisher – Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist
(Monitoring Officer)

Wards:

(All Wards);

Forward Plan:

Not applicable

Links to Council Plan Priorities:
The Constitution underpins the Council’s decision making processes in achieving the aims
and objectives of the Councils priorities. Ensuring the Constitution is updated regularly will
assist in achieving the following priorities: Working across boundaries;
 Delivering a balanced community;
 A fairer South Lakeland; and
 Addressing the climate emergency.

1.0

Expected Outcome and Measures of Success

1.1

That the amendments to the Constitution are agreed to provide further delegation
and clarity relating to procurement and contracting processes.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that Council: -

(1)

Agrees the proposed amendments to the Constitution outlined in the attached
Contract Procedure Rules and highlighted in red and authorises the Monitoring
Officer to make the necessary amendments to the Council’s Constitution

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

One of the duties of the Monitoring Officer is to monitor and review, on an annual basis,
the operation of the Constitution to ensure that its aims and principles are given full
effect. Rather than carrying out an annual review it is considered more appropriate to
treat the Constitution as a living document and we encourage in year amendments to
the Constitution to ensure that it is kept up to date and meets the business needs of
the Council.

3.2

The Council’s current Monitoring Officer commenced work at the Council in August
2019 and has consulted Council officers, members, parish councils and the public on
the current constitution. In 2020 proposals for changes to the Officer Scheme of

Page 71

Delegation and streamlining decision making relating to Procurement decision making
were brought to the July 2020 Council meeting.
3.3

The Monitoring Officer has further consulted with the Leadership Team and Officers
on the Procurement Procedure Rules and Contract Procedure Rules. This report is the
outcome of that consultation. Cabinet has also approved the changes.

3.4

In summary this report proposes the following changes to introduce clarity of
thresholds for the levels of delegated decision making:







Under £25,000 Administrative decision by Lead Specialist. Changed from
£10.000.
Above £25,000 up £60,000 then the relevant Director by Administrative Decision
Above £60,000 to £100,000 then delegated executive decision of the relevant
Director (NB requirement to place item on the Forward Plan if over the Key
decision threshold)
Above £100,000 to £250,000 then delegated executive decision of the relevant
Portfolio Holder (NB requirement to place item on the Forward Plan if over the
Key Decision threshold) NEW.
Above £250,000, Cabinet once approved by Cabinet the decision to be
implemented by Administrative decision. (NB requirement to place item on the
Forward Plan if over the Key decision threshold)
Changing the threshold for Lead Officers to £25,000 from £10,000, introducing a
new threshold of Portfolio Holder and Director decision making.

 DFG
To clarify the process to be followed for the disabled facilities grants in light of
recommendations from Internal Audit.

Forward Plan and the Procurement Schedule
To clarify the process for the use of the Forward Plan and the Procurement Schedule.
This is essential to ensure to ensure effective decision making.

Procurement Schedule
The Procurement Schedule has been updated to provide clarity of the decision making
route for all matters on the Schedule and the proposed updated Schedule is the subject
of the Procurement Update report to Council on 11 November 2021.
4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Contract Procedure Rules

2

Decision Making Thresholds

5.0

Consultation

5.1

Consultation has taken place with Leadership team and officers engaged in the
procurement process, as well as the Constitutional Working Group and Cabinet
members. Cabinet has approved the proposed changes on 20 October 2021.

6.0

Alternative Options

6.1

Members could chose not to approve the changes as proposed, or to make
amendments to the proposals. However it is considered the proposed amendments

Page 72

are required as part of the good governance of the Council and to ensure that
appropriate controls are in place.
7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

There are no financial implications arising from this report.

Human Resources
7.2

There are no Human Resource implications arising from this report.

Legal
7.3

The changes proposed have been identified by officers and are required to ensure that
we have a clear and up to date Constitution.

Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment
7.4

Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment? No

7.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: N/A

7.6

Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts
Positive

Environment
and Health

Economy and
Culture

Housing and
Communities

Neutral

Greenhouse gases
emissions

X

Air Quality

X

Biodiversity

X

Impacts of Climate
Change

X

Reduced or zero
requirement for energy,
building space, materials
or travel

X

Active Travel

X

Inclusive and sustainable
development

X

Jobs and levels of pay

X

Healthier high streets

X

Culture, creativity and
heritage

X

Standard of housing

X

Access to housing

X

Crime

X

Social connectedness

X

Negative Unknown

Equality and Diversity
7.7

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No

7.8

If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons: N/A

Page 73

7.9

Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X”
Age

P

0

X

N

Disability

P

0

X

N

Gender reassignment (transgender)

P

0

X

N

Marriage & civil partnership

P

0

X

N

Pregnancy & maternity

P

0

X

N

Race/ethnicity

P

0

X

N

Religion or belief

P

0

X

N

Sex/gender

P

0

X

N

Sexual orientation

P

0

X

N

Armed forces families

P

0

X

N

Rurality

P

0

X

N

Socio-economic disadvantage

P

0

X

N

Risk Management

Consequence

Controls required

The risk is ambiguity within the Challenge to the Council’s The amendments are
Constitution
and
incorrect decision making decisions proposed to manage this
decision-making
risk.
Contact Officers
Linda Fisher – Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer)
Linda.Fisher@southlakeland.gov.uk
Background Documents Available
Name of Background document

Where it is available

Council’s Constitution

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/yourcouncil/councillors-and-decisions/council-constitution/

Cabinet Report CEX/55 20 October https://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/documents/s
2021
33791/Update%20to%20the%20Councils%20Constit
ution.pdf
Tracking Information
Signed off by
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
CMT

Date sent
29/10/2021
Report Author
Proposals went to CMT
23/09/21

Circulated to
Lead Specialist

Date sent
Report author

Page 74

Date Signed off
29/10/2021
01/11/2021
23/09/21

Circulated to
Human Resources Lead Specialist
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council
Constitutional Working Group

Date sent
N/A
N/A
21/09/2021
N/A
21/09/2021
N/A
N/A
N/A
November 2021
21/09/21

Page 75

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76

1

11/10/2021

CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES

Page 77

Appendix 1

2
11/10/2021
Contents

CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES ................................................................................................. 1
BRIEF GUIDE TO CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES ........................................................... 4
SECTION 1: SCOPE OF CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES ................................................ 6
1.

BASIC PRINCIPLES ........................................................................................................... 6

2 DIRECTORS’ AND OPERATIONAL AND LEAD SPECIALISTS’
RESPONSIBILITIES ................................................................................................................... 6
SECTION 2: COMMON REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................. 7
3

STEPS PRIOR TO PROCUREMENT ............................................................................... 7

Items not on the Procurement Schedule and Exemptions or Waivers. ....................... 7
4

TRANSFER OF UNDERTAKINGS PROTECTION OF EMPLOYEES ....................... 8

5 NON-COMMERCIAL CONSIDERATIONS, EQUALITIES & COMMUNITY
BENEFIT ....................................................................................................................................... 8
6

RECORDS............................................................................................................................. 9

7

TENDER PROCEDURE...................................................................................................... 9

TENDERS (BELOW PROCUREMENT THRESHOLD VALUES) ..................................... 10
Framework agreement .................................................................................................................... 10
Pre-Qualification (Selection Questionaire) ........................................................................ 10
Tenders above Procurement threshold values ................................................................ 10
SECTION 3: CONDUCTING PROCUREMENT AND DISPOSAL ........................................ 11
8

FINANCIAL LIMITS AND THRESHOLDS..................................................................... 11

9

AWARD CRITERIA ........................................................................................................... 11

10

QUOTATIONS ................................................................................................................ 12

11

INVITATION TO TENDER ............................................................................................ 12

12

SUBMISSION AND RECEIPT OF TENDERS/QUOTATIONS ............................... 13

13

OPENING OF TENDERS/QUOTATIONS .................................................................. 13

14

CLARIFICATION PROCEDURES .............................................................................. 14

15

EVALUATION ................................................................................................................. 14

16

AWARD ........................................................................................................................... 15

17

EXEMPTIONS ................................................................................................................ 16

19

FRAMEWORK AGREEMENTS................................................................................... 17

20

CONSORTIA................................................................................................................... 17

21
COLLABORATIVE CONTRACTS (EXCLUDING FRAMEWORK
AGREEMENTS) ......................................................................................................................... 17
22

PARTNERSHIPS ........................................................................................................... 18

23

DISABLED FACILITIES’ GRANTS (“DFGS”) ......................................................... 18

24

ACCOUNTABLE BODY ............................................................................................... 18

25

E-PROCUREMENT ....................................................................................................... 19

26

RELEVANT CONTRACTS ........................................................................................... 19

Page 78

3
11/10/2021
SECTION 4: CONTRACT AND OTHER FORMALITIES ........................................................ 19
27

CONTRACT FORMALITIES ........................................................................................ 19

28

SAFEGUARDS FOR DUE PERFORMANCE ........................................................... 20

29

PREVENTION OF CURRUPTION .............................................................................. 21

30

DECLARATION OF INTEREST .................................................................................. 21

SECTION 5: CONTRACT MANAGEMENT .............................................................................. 21
31

MANAGING CONTRACTS .......................................................................................... 21

32

RISK ASSESSMENT AND CONTINGENCY PLANNING ...................................... 22

33

CONTRACT MONITORING, EVALUATION AND REVIEW .................................2223

34

GLOSSARY .................................................................................................................... 24

Page 79

4

11/10/2021

BRIEF GUIDE TO CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES
These Contract Procedure Rules (issued in accordance with section 135 of the Local Government
Act 1972) are intended to promote good procurement practice and public accountability and deter
corruption, ensuring value for money on all Council spend. The rules are the best defence against
allegations that a procurement process has been conducted unlawfully.
Legal challenges against public procurement are increasing with potentially serious
consequences for the Council and its officers if procurement activity is not undertaken to the
highest standards of probity and professionalism.
These Rules are complimented by the Sustainable Procurement Strategy and Commissioning
Strategy and the Procurement Toolkit maintained by the Procurement Strategy Team. The
guidance can be found on the Council’s SharePoint.
For the purposes of these rules, where there is a requirement for communication to be in writing,
this shall be deemed to include e-mail transmissions as well as hard copy. In addition, the term
“contract”, refers to both paper/hard copy documents and process and their replication by
electronic media.
In accordance with the Constitution, the Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Chief Finance
Officer, is authorised to make technical amendments from time to time to these Contract
Procedure Rules.
Important Tips


Follow the rules if you procure goods, services or building work. This is very much in your
own interest as well as that of the Council.



Ensure that all known future procurements projects are placed on the Council’s
Procurement Schedule, the approval by Cabinet and Council of the Schedule is the start
of the decision making process. Ensure the decision making column is correct and agree
this with the Specialist for Legal and Procurement. Key Decisions should be entered on
the Forward Plan and listed in detail prior to Cabinet agreement to the Procurement
Schedule.



The authorisation and approval process is set out in the Schedule 2 to these Contract
Procedure Rules. In advance as part of the annual review or as they arise
Take all necessary legal, financial, HR and professional advice. Do this early in the procurement
process to avoid abortive effort and to allow time for consideration of all relevant issues. This to
include consideration of the type of contract and if it is to be under seal (all contracts over
£60,000 should be under seal unless the Monitoring Officer agrees it is not expedient to do so).





Declare any personal conflict of interest, financial or otherwise, in a contract. Corruption is a
criminal offence.



Check you have correct and appropriate approvals authorization before you proceed.



Check whether there is an existing contract or an appropriate framework agreement that you
can make use of before undergoing a competitive process.



Consider your procurement objectives and available procurement routes such as collaboration,
use of framework agreements or exemptions/waivers at the outset.



Consider risk, including non-financial factors, at the outset e.g. data protection, safeguarding.



If your procurement affects any of the Council’s land and building you must contact the
Operational Lead for Delivery and Commercial Services .



Use the Council’s chosen e-tendering portal, The Chest.



Use the Procurement Toolkit that can be found on SharePoint.



Ensure you have agreed your contract documents including:

o selection and award criteria,
o weightings, and
o draft terms and conditions, including the need for a performance bond before you publish any
advert, Selection Questionnaire (SQ) or tender.


Pre-market engagement is now allowed and encouraged under the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015. The nature of the pre-market engagement should be agreed with the
Procurement Team. Once the procurement has commenced contact should be via The Chest
only.



Tenders take time with minimum timescales specified for some aspects of the process. Ensure you
consult with the Procurement Specialist to draw up an appropriate procurement timetable. For

Page 80

5

11/10/2021

tenders above the procurement thresholds threshold minimum timescales are mandatory by law.


Take into account mobilisation periods, elections, public holidays and other events which may
impact the decision making or implementation process.



Take into account any approval process (including Forward Plan) if required by the
Procurement Schedule or if your procurement is not on the Procurement Schedule.



Ensure your service and any potential changes being considered as part of this procurement
are assessed for their ultimate social value, impact on equality and impact on sustainability
before proceeding.



Keep bids confidential during the bidding process.



Keep records of dealings with suppliers and contractors.



Complete a written contract where appropriate, and Council purchase order before the supply of
goods, services or works begin.



Nominate an appropriately qualified contract manager with responsibility for ensuring the
contract delivers as intended.



Share lessons learned about what went well or not so well during the procurement, feedback to
the Procurement.



Assess each contract 6-12 months after award to see how well it met the procurement needs
and Value for Money requirements.



Remember that all information regarding your procurement process could be subject to a Freedom
of Information Request or Environmental Information Regulations request. Requests for
information concerning tender processes and suppliers/contractors are relatively common and
publication of tenders is part of the movement towards greater transparency. However, before
releasing any information consult the Data Protection Officer and the Procurement Officers.



Under the Government’s transparency requirements all contracts over £510,000 must be included
on the electronic contracts register once the contract is awarded or extended. This should also
include waivers and exemptions.

Page 81

6

11/10/2021

SECTION 1: SCOPE OF CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES
1. BASIC PRINCIPLES
1.1 The following basic principles shall apply to all procurement and disposal procedures and
contracts:

All procurement activity will comply with all applicable Procurement Directives, UK Legislation,
the Council Constitution and all other relevant policies and procedures;



The Council will undertake procurement activity using the most efficient and effective methods
and will select the most appropriate delivery mechanisms to ensure Value for Money;



All procurement activity will include due consideration of social, economic and environmental
factors and will be assessed on Whole Life Costing;



Robust contract management will support improved service delivery through
continuous improvement in the quality of goods, works and services; and



Procurement will be fair, open and transparent and undertaken to the highest standards of
probity, integrity, honesty and professionalism.
1.2

These rules apply equally to tenders and requests for quotations.

1.3

The designated contract manager is responsible for ensuring contracts have an appropriate
funded budget.

1.4

These Contract Procedure Rules shall be reviewed and updated annually. These Rules
and Amendments to them shall be agreed and approved by the full Council.
2

DIRECTORS’ AND OPERATIONAL AND LEAD SPECIALISTS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

2.1 Directors, Operational and Specialist Leads shall:2.1.1

Review and update the Council’s Procurement Schedule (including exemptions, exceptions and
waivers) at least annually.

2.1.2

Ensure the central registers of:

2.1.2.1 cccontracts with a value of £5,000 or more completed by signature, rather than by the
Council’s seal and arrange their safekeeping on Council premises;
2.1.2.2 exemptions recorded under Rule 3; and
2.1.2.3 2.1.2.1 and 2.1.2.2 above are updated for all procurements.
2.1.3

Compile and keep under continuous review a written schedule of all standing delegations made
by them under these Contract Procedures.

2.2 The relevant scheme of delegations is as follows:2.2.1

UnderUp to £25,000 10,000 then this is an Administrative Decision by Lead Specialist.

2.2.2

AboveOver £25,000 10,000 up £60,00059,999 then the relevant Director by Administrative
Decision

2.2.3

AboveOver £60,000 up to £100,00099,999 then the relevant Director by Delegated Executive
Decision (NB requirement to place item on the Forward Plan if over the Key Decision
threshold)

2.2.4

2.2.5

2.2.6

AboveFrom £100,000 up to Public Contracts Regulations thresholds (“Procurement
Thresholds”) £250,000 then the relevant Director and Portfolio Holder by Delegated Executive
Decision (NB requirement to place item on the Forward Plan if over the Key Decision
threshold)
Over £250,000 Procurement thresholds, Cabinet once approved by Cabinet the decision to be
implemented by Administrative Decision. (NB requirement to place item on the Forward Plan if
over the Key Decision threshold)
Please note if the matter affects more than 2 wards then this also falls within the definition of a
Key Decision and a Forward Plan entry is also required.

Page 82

7
11/10/2021
3

SECTION 2: COMMON REQUIREMENTS
STEPS PRIOR TO PROCUREMENT

3.1 As part of the budget process for the following financial year, the Council will prepare a Procurement
Schedule. This will be considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Cabinet and approved
by Council as part of the Budget and Policy Framework and will be included in the Forward Plan. If
your procurement falls within the definition of a Key Decision you must add these as Forward Plan
entries as part of the approval process. This should take place prior to the Procurement Schedule
being approved by Cabinet and Council.
3.2 The Procurement Schedule will include:(a)

the title of the contract;

(b)

the service and officer responsible;

(c)

a brief summary of the goods or services covered;

(d)

proposed start and end dates;

(e)

a review date and extension period (if applicable);

(f)

estimated value by band (Under £25,000, above £25,000 to £60,000, above £60,000 to £100,000,
above £100,000 to £250,000 and aboveover £250,000);£10k, £10k - £60k 100k, Over £60 100kto
£250,000Procurement threshold OJEU , Over £250,000 Procurement threshold OJEU);

(g)

the process to be followed, if known (e.g. request for quotation, invitation to tender, use of
existing framework, full OJEU PCR 2015); and

(h)

the proposed decision route (officer Administrative Decisions, Delegated Executive Decision of
the Director or Director and Portfolio Holder or ED, Cabinet.
3.3 Each Operational and Specialist Lead is responsible for ensuring the Procurement Schedule
is updated. It should include waivers and exemptions.
3.4 Tenders and Requests for Quotation shall wherever practicable be widely and appropriately
advertised to ensure equality of opportunity for potential suppliers to compete if they so
choose.
3.5 Officers must ensure that appropriate approval authorisation has been given to proceed with
the procurement and that the processes within the financial regulations are followed.
Items not on the Procurement Schedule and Exemptions or Waivers.
3.6 In the event of an exemption or waiver then the following must be obtained the proposed
procurement not being on the Procurement Schedule or in the case of an Exemption or
Waiver then the following must be obtained:-

3.6.1

Under £25,000 10,000 then this is an Administrative Ddecision of Lead Specialist

3.6.2 AboveBetween £25,000 10,001 to £60,000and £59,999 then this is an ADadministrative
Ddecision by relevant Ddirector
3.6.3

Above Between £60,000 toand £100,00099100,999000 by Delegated Executive Decision of
the relevant Director.

3.6.4

AboveBetween £100,000 toand
£250,000 by
relevantevant Director and Portfolio Hholder

3.6.5

AboveOver £250,000, Cabinet approval procurement thresholds then Cabinet approval with
implementation by Administrative Decision

Delegated Executive Decision by the

3.7 All procurements authorized by this route must be reported to Cabinet at the earliest
opportunity
3.8 NB – Waivers and exemptions which are Key Decisions must be placed as individual items on the
Forward Plan
3.9 In the event that the contract is not on the procurement schedule the Director, Monitoring Officer
and Section 151 Officer must be consulted to ensure that the limits in 3.6 and decision making
routes can be applied as this is predicated on budget provision being in place.

Page 83

8

11/10/2021

3.10
Officers must ensure that provision for resources for the management of the contract and for
support from internal specialists, for its entirety, have been identified and where necessary
included in a business case.
3.11
Officers must assess the procurement process in a manner commensurate with its
complexity and value. Officers must:3.11.1 Ensure that any procurement commenced must comply with the commissioning strategy that is
approved and any procurements must ensure and demonstrate that the strategy in Schedule 2
attached hereto has been complied with and the requirements and evaluation methodology aligns
to this strategy
3.11.2

appraise the need for the expenditure and its priority;

3.11.3

define the objectives of the procurement process;

3.11.4

conduct an options appraisal to consider how the contract should be packaged and what
procurement method is most likely to achieve the objectives and demonstrate value for money,
including internal or external sourcing, partnering and collaborative procurement arrangements;

3.11.5

assess the risks associated with the procurement process and how to manage them;

3.11.6

consult the Operational Lead for Delivery and Commercial Services for all procurement relating
to the Council’s land and buildings;

3.11.7

consult end users, internally and externally, about their expectations, the proposed procurement
method, and expected contract standards and performance;

3.11.8

consider what terms and conditions (T&Cs) should be used, including use of:-

3.11.9 Council standard T&Cs for straight forward procurements;
3.11.10 the most recent edition of professional/industry standard T&Cs where appropriate (e.g. JCT Minor
Works Contract);
3.11.11 appropriate levels of insurance in consultation with Finance Specialists;
3.11.12 specialist T&Cs drafted by Legal Services for more complex, high spend or high risk
procurements; and
3.11.13 the T&Cs relating to any framework (if applicable);
3.11.14 ensure conflicts of interest are identified, including where staff members have, directly or indirectly,
a financial, economic or other personal interest which might be perceived to compromise their
impartiality and independence in the procurement process. Any potential conflicts should be
identified to the Monitoring Officer; and
3.11.15 set out these matters in writing if the Contract value of the Procurement exceeds £25,000.
3.12 The Chief Finance Officer will set, from time to time, default levels of insurances
appropriate for different types of procurement/contracts. These default levels can only be
reduced with the approval of the Chief Finance Officer.
4

TRANSFER OF UNDERTAKINGS PROTECTION OF EMPLOYEES
issue a statement on the application of the Acquired 4.1
In all cases where a request for
Quotation or Invitation to Tender for services may result in a transfer of employees to or from the
Council the Council will:-



Rights Directive(s) and the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment)
Regulations 2006; and



consult staff who may be affected.
5

NON-COMMERCIAL CONSIDERATIONS, EQUALITIES & COMMUNITY BENEFIT

5.1 Under procurement law, public bodies are only able to take social and environmental matters into
account in the decision to award a contract to the extent that those matters are directly relevant to
the subject matter of the contract. However, in compliance with public procurement law, public
bodies are now required to consider how social, economic and environmental improvements can be
achieved through procurement.
5.2 Inclusion of such criteria in specifications should be undertaken in accordance with the Sustainable
Procurement & Commissioning Strategy and the Procurement Toolkit.

Page 84

9
11/10/2021
6

RECORDS

6.1 All contractual documents associated with Requests for Quotations and Tenders from successful
and unsuccessful suppliers must be retained in accordance with the clauses below:6.1.1

The method for obtaining bids

6.1.2

copies of public notices

6.1.3

any Contracting decision including exemptions and the reasons for it

6.1.4

the shortlisting criteria and scoring

6.1.5

the Award criteria and scoring

6.1.6

the reason if the lowest price is not accepted

6.1.7

Tenders/Quotations returned

6.1.8

Any post tender interviews and clarifications including written notes of any interviews

6.1.9

arrangement for contract management and monitoring

6.1.10 communications with all Candidates and with the successful contractor
6.1.11 Requisition for Supplies/goods
6.1.12 Copy orders
6.1.13 Delivery Notes
6.1.14 Invoices, credit notes etc
6.1.15 Price Advices
6.1.16 Contract Variations
6.1.17 Write off Approvals
6.2 A complete set of the original contract and tender documents must also be retained, including
contract terms and conditions, specification, pricing schedule, evaluation models,
correspondence and award decision and letter as either electronic or hard copies. All of the
above will be safely stored on the Council’s e-tendering portal, The Chest when used to
undertake a procurement exercise. Where there is no requirement under these Rules for a
formal written contract, then a copy of the original Purchase Order and invoice including
specification pricing information and correspondence will be kept by the Officer/relevant
service. Where a contract has a value of over £5,000 a copy of the PO/invoice will be shared
with Legal Specialists for the purposes of updating the Council’s Contracts Register.
6.3 Records required by this rule, must be retained in accordance with the Council’s document
retention policy but in any event must be retained for the following:
6.3.1

For contracts below £60,000 in total estimated value – 3 years or the lifetime of the contract

6.3.2

For contracts £60,000 and above – six years after the expiry of the contract

6.4 The Monitoring Officer shall have overall responsibility to ensure a register (the Contract
Register) is maintained for all contractual arrangements over £5,000. The Register will be
continually reviewed and updated in line with all relevant procurement activity, by the
Monitoring Officer and/or the Procurement & Contracts Lead.
7

TENDER PROCEDURE

7.1 For the purposes of this rule, all estimates of contract values shall be in accordance with the
procurement toolkit provided that for Disabled Facilities Grants the procedures set out in Rule 24
(“Disabled Facilities Grants”) shall apply. If for any reason this is not available the estimates are to
be in writing and prepared by the relevant Director or a competent member of his/her staff. Written
quotations or tenders are not required for goods, services or works having an estimated value of
less than £10,000 although best value should be obtained; this can be demonstrated through
seeking three written quotes.

Page 85

10

11/10/2021

7.2 For contracts having an estimated value of £10,000 but not exceeding £60,000 £100,000 quotations
are obtained from competent contractors through The Chest. A minimum of three quotes should be
obtained. Where less than three quotes are submitted the authorisation of Chief Finance Officer
should be obtained before a quotation is accepted. The Chief Finance Office must be satisfied that
the quotation represents value for money.
TENDERS (BELOW PROCUREMENT THRESHOLD VALUES)
7.3 No contract having an estimated value of £60000 100,000 or more but below Procurement
Threshold values applicable at the time shall be made unless the procedures below are
undertaken:
7.3.1

At least fourteen (14) days public notice should be given on The Chest and Contracts Finder
using the Council’s standard documentation or a variation of such, and stating:-



the nature and purpose of the contract;



inviting tenders for its execution;



details of the award criterion; and



the last date for when tenders will be accepted.
Framework agreement

7.3.2

In accordance with Rule 4
Pre-Qualification (Selection Questionaire)
7.3.3 Where application has been invited by Public Notice in accordance with the Rules above,
the invitation may require a pre-tender assessment (Selection Questionnaire, previously known
as a Pre- Qualification Questionnaire) to be undertaken and for the invitation to submit a tender
to be limited to those persons who satisfactorily meet the requirements of that assessment.

7.3.4

Where this applies the public notice must clearly and unambiguously state this fact.
7.3.5 The relevant Director shall select not less than 5 contractors from the list who have
satisfactorily met the pre-qualification criteria to submit a tender. Where less than 5 have
satisfactorily met the pre-qualification criteria the maximum number of suitable contractors must
be invited to submit a tender.
7.3.6 A two stage procurement process including pre-qualification should not be used as standard
practice but instead when the procurement and contract process is considered high risk.
7.3.7 The Council shall only enter into a contract with a potential supplier if it is satisfied
as to the suppliers’:7.3.7.1

eligibility that he/she is not disbarred from tendering;

7.3.7.2 financial standing; and
7.3.7.3 overall technical ability.
Tenders above Procurement threshold values
7.4 All supplies, services or works having an estimated contract value in excess of the values stipulated
in the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 shall be undertaken strictly in accordance with the
requirements of that legislation.
7.5 All public notices for such contracts must be in the prescribed form, electronically transmitted via the
e-tendering portal, The Chest and on Contracts Finder.
7.6 Placement of additional local/national or other public notices must only be made after the
date of despatch.
7.7 The advice and assistance of the Procurement & Contracts Manager must be sought
prior to the despatch of any Notice.

Page 86

11

8

11/10/2021

SECTION 3: CONDUCTING PROCUREMENT AND DISPOSAL
FINANCIAL LIMITS AND THRESHOLDS

8.1 All requests for quotations, tendering and contracting, other than detailed in Rule 3 Exemptions,
shall be subject to the thresholds shown in Section 7 (Tender Procedure) above on SharePoint.
8.2 The Council acting as an ‘Accountable Body’ may be subject to lower financial thresholds than
specified in Appendix 1 as stipulated by the funding body
8.3 The Council will regularly review and if appropriate revise the Financial thresholds listed on
SharePoint.
9

AWARD CRITERIA
9.1 The basis of tender acceptance and award must be made clear in the tender documentation.
Either:-



Most Economically Advantageous Tender; or



Lowest Price where payment is to be made by the Council; or
 Highest Price if payment is to be received. As more fully described here under

9.2 Contracts shall primarily be awarded on the basis of the Most Economically Advantageous Tender
which is most likely to offer ‘Value for Money’ by a robust assessment of cost and quality. Setting
evaluation criteria based solely on lowest prices should be done with extreme caution.
9.3 For contracts having a value in excess of £100,000, or identified as likely to have significant
environmental impacts(s) the evaluation of cost and quality shall include an assessment of ‘Whole
Life Costs’ proportional to the value of the relevant goods, works or services.
9.4 Unless there are exceptional reasons, the weighting given to price shall be between 60% and
85%. A lower figure than 60% will require the written approval of the Chief Finance Officer.
9.5 An award on the basis of lowest price should be reserved for sectors where it is possible to
precisely specify the goods or supplies to be procured or the items are otherwise identical. (For
example basic gas and electricity supply prices but not where an element of the supply is to be
from renewable or carbon neutral processes)
9.6 The award criteria must be established before publication of Invitation to Tender (ITT) and must
be included in the documentation issued to potential suppliers as part of the tender process. In
the case of contracts that are estimated to be over the procurement thresholds it is encouraged
that the evaluation criteria is also published in the initial notice and is required to be included at
the SQ stage.
9.7 Award Criteria must not include:

non-Commercial Considerations;

•

matters which discriminate against suppliers from the European Economic Area or signatories to
the Government Procurement Agreement; or

•

criteria used in selection and award - criteria should be distinguished separately at all times in the
tendering process.

Page 87

10 QUOTATIONS

12
11/10/2021

10.1
All Requests for Quotations (RFQs) must include a specification that describes the Council’s
requirements in sufficient detail to enable the submission of competitive offers
10.2
The Officer must define Award Criteria that are appropriate to the Procurement and designed
to secure an outcome giving value for money for the Council.
10.3

All Quotations must specify the terms and conditions of contract that will apply.

10.4
The Request for Quotation must state that the Council is not bound to accept the lowest or any
Quote, and reserves the right not to award the Contract at all.
10.5
All Candidates invited to quote must be issued with the same information at the same time and
subject to the same conditions via The Chest. Any supplementary information must be given on the
same basis.
10.6
Quotations must be returned electronically via the Chest, or where an alternative procedure is
adopted via email or in writing addressed impersonally to the relevant Director.
10.7
The Operational or Specialist Lead may accept the most advantageous Quotations received in
respect of proposed contracts, provided they have been sought and evaluated fully in accordance
with these Contract Procedure Rules.
10.8
The authority in 18.7 the preceding paragraph may be subject to delegation for quotations
under £10,000. However, the decision on acceptance must be taken by an Officer of appropriate
seniority and experience and must be formally recorded.
11 INVITATION TO TENDER
11.1
Any Invitation to Tender issued by the Council shall include details of the Council’s
requirements for that particular contract including:11.1.1 A description of the supplies, services or works being procured;
11.1.2 The procurement timetable including tender return date and time. Such date must allow a reasonable
period for potential suppliers to prepare and submit their tender;
11.1.3 A specification and instructions on whether variants are permissible;
11.1.4 The Council’s standard terms and conditions of contract, or other suitably prepared T&Cs with the
agreement of Legal Services;
11.1.5 A statement on the Council’s Anti-Bribery, Fraud and Corruption Policy including reference to the
Whistle-blowing Policy (Confidential Reporting Code) and the Bribery Act 2010;
11.1.6 The evaluation criteria and any weightings considered appropriate;
11.1.7 The pricing mechanism and instructions for completion;
11.1.8 The form and content of any method statements etc. to be submitted;
11.1.9 A statement that the Council does not bind itself to accept the lowest or any tender;
11.1.10 A statement that late tenders, incomplete tenders, tenders returned not using the means indicated,
or where applicable, not returned in the envelope provided or bearing distinguishing marks that
would identify the sender, or those containing an unauthorised alteration will be disqualified;
11.1.11 Whether the Council is of the view that the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment)
Regulations 2006 may apply;
11.1.12 A list of documents to be returned, and the rules for their submission;
11.1.13 Any further information that will inform and assist those invited to tender to prepare and submit
tenders;
11.1.14 A Non-Collusive Tendering Certificate for completion and return by the tenderer; and
11.1.15 A statement that “The Council does not bind itself to accept the lowest (highest), or any tender”
11.2
Tenders invited in pursuance of Rule 22(1) of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015
shall be returned electronically where the process has taken place via the e-tendering
portal.
11.3
Where submissions are required in other formats to support the process on The Chest they
shall be addressed impersonally to the relevant Director.
11.4
Tender return envelopes/labels shall be a plain colour. They shall bear the word ‘Tender’
followed by the tender subject, and clearly state the deadline for receipt of tenders in the top left

Page 88

13
11/10/2021
hand corner.
12 SUBMISSION AND RECEIPT OF TENDERS/QUOTATIONS
12.1
Candidates must be given an adequate period in which to prepare and submit a proper
Tender/Quotation, consistent with the complexity of the contract requirement. The procurement
Procedure lays down specific time periods which are required by law and must be adhered to.
12.2
Electronic tenders must only be opened after expiry of the closing date in accordance with the
provisions of Clause 13 (“Opening of Tenders/Quotations”) below. Any opening of tenders prior to
the tender return deadline will render the tender exercise invalid
12.3 All tender responses shall be returned via the portal where they will be sealed until after the
deadline for return has passed when only an appointed verifier can release them.
12.4 Where a paper-based exercise is followed for quotations under £10,000, quotation envelopes
on their return shall be date stamped, the time of their return inserted and initialed by the staff who
first receives them. They will be forwarded to the relevant Director who will store them in a secure
locked place where they will remain unopened until after the deadline for return has passed.
13 OPENING OF TENDERS/QUOTATIONS
13.1

Tenders and Quotations shall be opened at a single time.

13.2
Where the preferred method of the approved e-tendering portal is followed all quotations shall
be returned via the portal where they will remain locked until after the final deadline for receipt of
tenders when only an appointed verifier can release them.
13.3
The relevant Director and a designated member of his/her staff or two designated members of
his/her staff shall open written quotations received under any other procedure or in the case of using
the e- tendering portal an appointed verifier can release them.
13.4
Where a paper-based exercise has been followed for quotations under £10,000 the Form of
Tender/Quotation, Non-collusive certificates, form of bond and any priced documents submitted by
the potential supplier shall be date stamped and those persons present shall insert their initials within
the stamp.
13.5
Any Tender/Quotation received after the appointed time for receipt of tenders/quotations for a
particular contract shall be disqualified, other than under exceptional circumstances, and shall not
be opened save to ascertain the name of the tenderer/potential supplier to whom it shall be returned
immediately. The Monitoring Officer must agree if special circumstances apply. The circumstances
must be recorded on the procurement file and reported to the Procurement Lead.
13.6
Where this is carried out as a paper-based activity the Tender and Quotation return envelopes,
or photocopies thereof indicating the date and time of receipt shall be retained as part of the tender
file.

Page 89

14
11/10/2021
14 CLARIFICATION PROCEDURES
General
14.1
Providing clarification of an Invitation to Tender (ITT) to potential or actual Candidates or
seeking clarification of a Tender is permitted only via The Chest.
14.2
The Council may seek clarification via The Chest from potential suppliers in respect of
their offer where appropriate. However the same opportunity must be afforded to all potential
suppliers to ensure a transparent, non-discriminatory process that affords equality of
opportunity.
14.3 Any question points of clarification must be raised by potential suppliers via The Chest.
Questions shall be answered promptly and only via The Chest. The same information must also
be communicated in writing to all other potential tenderers to ensure transparency and equality.
Consideration must be given to extending the timescales for submission if material clarifications
are sought, particularly if clarifications are issued within 6 days of the submission deadline.
Post Tender
14.4 Discussions with Tenderers after submission of a Tender and before the award of a contract
with a view to obtaining adjustments in price, delivery or content must be the exception rather than
the rule and be within the scope of the contract.
14.5 Post tender discussions may only be conducted in circumstances which do not put other
tenderers at a disadvantage, distort competition or affect adversely the integrity of the competitive
tendering process.
14.6 Where during the tender evaluation process, examination of the most favourable tender or
quotation reveals errors or discrepancies, which affect the tender/quotation figure the following
process shall be followed:14.6.1 If the errors or discrepancies are of an arithmetic nature that results in the tender figure being
reduced from that submitted, the tenderer etc. will be informed of the errors or discrepancies
involved and that the Council intends to treat the tender figure as reduced to reflect the true
arithmetic value of the tender/quotation;
14.6.2

If the errors or discrepancies are of an arithmetic nature that results in the tender figure being
increased from that submitted, the tenderer etc. will be informed of the errors or discrepancies
involved and afforded the opportunity to confirm the tender/quotation figure at the original
submitted price or to withdraw the tender/quotation offer;

14.6.3

In all other circumstances, the tenderer etc. is to be given details of the errors or discrepancies
and afforded the opportunity to confirm the tender/quotation figure or withdraw the offer.

14.6.4 A reviewed tender price cannot be submitted by the tenderer at this stage unless the competitive
procedure with negotiation procedure is being followed.
14.6.5 If a tenderer etc. withdraws an offer as a result of 15.6.2 or 15.6.3 above the next most favourable
tender shall be examined and treated in the same manner.
14.7
Where post-tender discussions result in a fundamental change to the specification, scope or
contract terms, the contract must not be awarded, but re-tendered.
15 EVALUATION
15.1
Evaluation means assessment of tenders submitted against published selection and award
criteria. Evaluation must only be against the published criteria, any other assessment which has
not been stated on commencement of the procurement is against the principles of fairness and
transparency.
15.2
Apart from any debriefing required or permitted by these Contract Procedure Rules, the
confidentiality of Quotations, Tenders and the identity of Candidates must be preserved at all
times and information about one Candidate’s response must not be given to another Candidate.
This is subject to the requirements of legislation, for example the Freedom of Information Act
2000.
15.3 Evaluation of the tenders must be carried out by a minimum of two officers of sufficient
seniority, skill, knowledge and experience. The evaluation must be carried out collectively and fully
documented.

Page 90

15

11/10/2021

15.4 The arithmetic in compliant Tenders must be checked. If arithmetical errors are found they
should be corrected and notified to the Tenderer, who should be requested to confirm whether
they wish their Tender to be evaluated with the amended amount or whether they wish to withdraw
their Tender.
15.5 Where no tenders are fully compliant with the specification, the advice of the Procurement
Team must be sought.
16 AWARD
16.1
The most favourable tender or quotation may only be accepted where there is adequate
provision in the Revenue estimates approved by the Council or an approved Capital Estimate.
16.2
The most advantageous Quotations and Tenders received in respect of proposed contracts
may only be accepted provided they have been sought and evaluated fully in accordance with
these Contract Procedure Rules.
16.3
Where tenders are to be accepted these must be done in accordance with the financial
thresholds information, see Appendix 1 held on SharePoint.
16.4
Where the most favourable tender received is unacceptable, exceeds the budget provision,
despite any adjustments that may be permitted under the Invitation to Tender and these Rules, a
report on all tenders for that particular contract, and the options available shall be made to the
Cabinet or relevant Council Committee for consideration and decision.
16.5 Where the most favourable quotation received is unacceptable, exceeds the budget
provision, despite any adjustments that may be permitted under the Request for Quotation and
these Rules, a report on all quotations and the options available shall be prepared by the Assistant
Director Lead/Operational Specialist for consideration and decision by the relevant Director.
16.6 Where a payment is proposed to be made to the Council, and the most favourable
tender/quotation is unacceptable, or it is proposed to accept other than the most favourable
tender/quotation a report shall be made on all tenders or quotation as described in 25.4 and 25.5
respectively.
16.7 At the conclusion of the tender exercise, having an estimated value above procurement
threshold values, and prior to any award being made, there shall be a minimum 10-day standstill
period during which unsuccessful suppliers shall be debriefed in writing. No information, other than
the following, should be given without taking the advice of the Monitoring Officer:


The criteria and weightings



The score of the bidder, the score of the winning bidder and the score of the other bidders
which must be kept anonymous



The name of the winning bidder



The reasons for the decision, including the characteristics and relative advantages of the
winning tender

16.8
If formal objections to the intended award are raised the Officer shall not award the
contract and immediately consult the Monitoring Officer and the Procurement & Contracts
Manager.
16.9 For below procurement threshold procurement exercises suppliers shall be debriefed as to
the outcome of the exercise taking into account the same principles of openness and
transparency.
16.10 Acceptance of other than the most economic advantageous Tender must be authorised as follows:
 Up to Tender Threshold
By the Operational or Specialist Lead. This authority will not be subject to delegation. Full details of
the reasons for the decision must be recorded, signed by the Service Director and forwarded to
the Procurement Team to be held on file.
 Tender Threshold to Procurement Threshold
By the Delegated Executive Decision, based on the formal recommendation of the Director. Full
details of the reasons for the decision must be recorded and held on file.

Page 91

16

11/10/2021

 Over Procurement Threshold
By the Cabinet, based on a formal detailed report submitted by the relevant Director.
 Where the tender is covered by the Public Contract Regulations Procurement Directives, then
acceptance must comply with these.
17 EXEMPTIONS
17.1 Subject to compliance with applicable legislation, Nothing in these Rules shall require written
quotations or tenders to be invited if:(a) the contract is with professional persons for the provision of services where the personal skill of
those persons is of primary importance; or
(b) for other reasons certified by the relevant Director there would be no genuine competition; or
(c) the contract is for the execution of work, the supply of goods, or services certified by the relevant
Director as being required so urgently as not to permit the invitation of quotations or tenders; or
(d) the works to be executed or the goods, works or services fall within the scope of the existing contract;
an extension of an existing contract as stated in the initial contract agreement; or
(e) the works to be executed or the goods, works or services fall within the scope of an existing contract
where there is a genuinely justifiable case to use the existing contract to maintain continuity of
supply. Extensions will not be considered where to do so would breach applicable legislation
Procurement legislation and UK legislation; or
(f) the goods, services or works are proprietary or of such a specialised nature that they can only be
obtained from one particular supplier; or are sold only at a fixed price and no reasonably satisfactory
alternative is available; or
Exceptions
(g) the purchase is through an alternative contract or Framework Agreement or Dynamic Purchasing
Systems available to the Council and which has been put together as a result of a lawfully tendered
competition; or
(h) the total estimated value is less than £10,000 although obtaining quotes to ensure best value is
encouraged. Where quotations have been sought they should be retained in a format agreed by the
Procurement Lead specialist. These contracts should be in the standard terms and conditions that
have been approved by Legal services; or
(i) the contract is for a Disabled Facilities grant and Rule 23 (“Disabled Facilities’ Grants”) is followed;
or
(j) the prices of the goods or materials are wholly controlled by trade organisations or Government
Order and no reasonably satisfactory alternative is available; or
(k) a purchase is to be made at a public auction, provided that the person bidding is satisfied that the
cost of the purchase is reasonable compared to the cost of alternative methods of purchase; or that
such procurements that fall under the control of specific legislation such as the Disabled Facilities
Grant (DFG) and Apprenticeship schemes. That the procurement of such service is controlled by
the relevant legislation
17.2

Rule 3.6 applies in relation to decision making for exemptions.

17.3
The Procurement Specialist, Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance Officer must be
consulted before an exemption or exception is agreed by the relevant Director under clause 17s.
These exemptions and exceptions will be included in the Procurement Schedule and , will be
reported to Cabinet by the relevant Director as part of the Corporate Financial Monitoring process
to the next available meeting. Exception can be implemented by Administrative DDecision,
exemptions and waivers can be implemented dependent on the financial threshold in accordance
with 3.6.. These exemptions and exceptions must be obtained prior to the agreement of any
contractual agreement with a supplier.
18 Waiving the Rules
18.1
Any waiving of the of these R rules must be completed and authorised prior to the
commencement of agreeing any contractual agreement with any supplier
Subject to UK applicable law any of these Rules may be waived in consultation with the
18.2
Procurement Specialist and the Chief Finance Officer. Waivers should be included in the
Procurement Schedule to be approved by Council as part of the budget setting process.

Page 92

17

11/10/2021

18.3
In the event of waivers being obtained and not included in the Procurement Schedule then
these waivers must be reported to the first available Cabinet detailing the reasoning why obtained
by the relevant officer
18.4
If this is not possible, waivers shall be approved by the Monitoring Officer where they are
satisfied that to do so is justified in special circumstances and those special circumstances and the
advantages and disadvantages of the alternative options are identified.
18.5
Waivers should be reported to the next meeting of the Cabinet or relevant Committee of the
Council if over £10,000 or above, or by the relevant Director as part of the Corporate Financial
Monitoring process if less than £10,000.
18.6
Waivers relating to insurance claims where the procurement requirements of the insurer have
been followed will only need to be reported as part of the Corporate Financial Monitoring process
even if over £100,000.
18.7

All waivers will be recoded centrally in a format agreed by the Procurement Specialist.

19 FRAMEWORK AGREEMENTS
19.1 The Council authority has access to numerous frameworks that we can call on for the delivery of
services.
19.2 The frameworks are both external and internal. The framework can be accessed by the authority.
19.3 The use of Frameworks must be approved by the Procurement specialist in conjunction with Legal
Sservices to ensure that the objectives and use of the framework is suitable for the council to
adopt
19.4 There are one or more suitable suppliers who are party to the framework;
19.5 An options appraisal proportionate to the contract value has been conducted to ensure the council
is obtaining best value;
19.6 The duration of any call off contract that results is calculated to take account of the nature and
volatility of the market for the goods, works or services that are being procured;
19.7 All framework instructions are complied with, such as those relating to:

which organisations can access the framework;



use of direct award or mini competition;



terms and conditions; and



contract duration;

19.8
The use of the Framework Agreement is recorded in the electronic Contract Register. This
should include framework reference numbers, lot numbers and the name and company
registration number (where appropriate) of the supplier.
20 CONSORTIA
20.1 Where the Council joins one or more bodies/contracting authorities in a consortium or
partnership and the contract is being tendered and awarded by that consortium or partnership,
the Council shall not be required to invite further tenders, provided that these Rules have been
followed to the extent that they are not inconsistent with the procedure(s) adopted by that
consortium or partnership for awarding contracts.
21 COLLABORATIVE CONTRACTS (EXCLUDING FRAMEWORK AGREEMENTS)
21.1
In order to secure Value for Money, the Council may enter into collaborative procurement
arrangements. This may be with or through another local authority, government department,
statutory undertaker or public service purchasing consortium.
21.2
The views of the relevant Portfolio Holder shall be sought before any decision is made as to
whether to enter into collaborative procurement arrangements.
21.3
Before undertaking a collaborative agreement, Officers should obtain advice from the Legal
Specialist and the contact the Procurement Specialist. Fundamentally it is the responsibility of the
lead authority putting in place a collaborative procurement process or framework agreement to
ensure the process is fully compliant with all relevant procurement legislation. However, the Council
has a clear responsibility not to utilise any contractual agreement which is not fully compliant and
can be held accountable should they do so.
21.4

Where collaborative agreements are entered into the Officer must:-

Page 93

18

11/10/2021



clarify who is the contracting authority;



ensure there is a legal agreement that protects the interests of the Council, which may include
the use of a memorandum of agreement;



ensure that where the overall contract values are above Procurement Thresholds the
contract was let in accordance with procurement procedures and that any procurement
activity below the Pprocurement Thresholds is conducted with due regard to the procurement
based principles; and



ensure that the duration of any call off contract is calculated to take account of the nature
and volatility of market for the goods, works or services being procured.

22 PARTNERSHIPS
22.1 Whenever the Council enters into a formal partnership the Council will ensure
gGovernance arrangements are agreed in writing and include tendering responsibilities
and arrangements.
22.2 Where the Council acts as Lead Authority in the partnership these Contract Procedure Rules
shall whenever practicable be followed.
22.3 Before entering into contracts, written agreements shall be made with funding partners regarding
the level of and conditions attached to any funding.
22.4 Where the Council is not the lead Authority partner, the tendering procedure rules agreed by
the partnership shall be followed.
23 DISABLED FACILITIES’ GRANTS (“DFGsS”)
23.1
DFGs help to fund adaptations to enable people to stay living in their home increased
independence – safety and minimising the effects of disability, enabling the carer to continue to
care and prevention of admission to more institutional care. Adaptations can include but are not
limited to stair lifts, wet floor level access shower areas and access ramps etc.
23.2
Contracts for DFGs must be entered into in line with the Council’s DFG Policy and DFG
Procedure as updated from time to time. The DFG Policy states that the Council will complete the
paperwork with the contractor on behalf of, and as the agent for, the applicant in accordance with
the DFG Procedure. This means that even though the Council signs the paperwork with the
contractor, and in most cases makes payment to the contractor on the client’s applicant’s behalf,
the contract agreement is between the applicant and contractor, and that the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015 (as amended) do not apply to these contracts, because the Council is not a
party to the contract acting in its own capacity.

23.3

As at the date of the introduction of this Rule 23 into these Contract Procedure Rules:

23.3.1 in accordance with Housing Grants, Construction and Regeneration Act 1996 (as amended)
an application for a grant must contain at least two estimates from different contractors of the
cost of carrying out the relevant works, unless the Council as the local housing authority
otherwise directs in any particular case;

23.3.2 the Council’s position is that at least two estimates from different contractors shall be obtained
for the relevant works in all cases, irrespective of the value or the anticipated value of the
relevant works;

23.3.3 the DFG Policy sets out the Council’s requirements for obtaining quotes, which will usually be
under a framework. Where quotes are being obtained under a framework the rules of the
framework must be followed. Where works are not covered by the framework quotes must be
obtained through the Council’s tendering portal (the Chest) seeking at least two competitive
tenders.

23.3.4 Where the applicant seeks their own contractor to carry out works required – the applicant is
to source at least two comparable quotes.
23.4
These Contract Procedure Rules shall be updated in line with any changes to the legislation
or government guidance applicable to DFGs.
24 ACCOUNTABLE BODY
24.1 Tendering arrangements must conform with this Council’s and any appointed partner(s)
Contract Procedure Rules, and be capable of providing evidence of this to the Council, its
agents and auditors.
N.B. Failure to follow the funding body’s tendering rule is likely to result in funds being clawed
back, leading to a potential budget deficit to be financed by the Council

Page 94

19

11/10/2021

25 E-PROCUREMENT
25.1 The use of e-procurement technology does not negate the requirement to comply with all
elements of these Contract Procedure Rules, particularly those relating to competition and Value
for Money.
26 RELEVANT CONTRACTS
26.1 All Relevant Contracts must comply with these Contract Procedure Rules. A Relevant
Contract is any arrangement made by, or on behalf of, the Council, other than those in 10.2
above.below.
26.2 Relevant Contracts do not include:

26.3



contracts of employment which make an individual a direct employee of the Council, or



agreements regarding the acquisition, disposal, or transfer of land (for which the
Financial Framework shall apply).
Providing Services to External Organisations

26.4 The Monitoring Officer, the Chief Finance Officer, Directors as appropriate, Financial
Services (insurance) and the Procurement Specialist must be consulted where contracts to
work for organisations other than the Council are contemplated.
SECTION 4: CONTRACT AND OTHER FORMALITIES
27 CONTRACT FORMALITIES
27.1 All contracts having an estimated total value of £25,00010,000 and above, and any other case
where the Monitoring Officer so decides shall be in writing.
27.2 Every such contract entered into on behalf of the Council shall be in a form approved by the
Monitoring Officer and shall be signed by two duly authorised officers of the Council or the
Monitoring Officer or made under the common seal of the Council attested by at least one officer
in accordance with the Council’s Constitution. The Monitoring Officer will specify when electronic
signatures are appropriate.
27.3 Contract formalities must be carried out and completed to the satisfaction of the Monitoring
Officer before the contractor commences any work under the contract.
27.4

Every such contract shall include:-

27.4.1 The supplies, services or works to be furnished/delivered, had or done [including appropriate
technical specification];
27.4.2 The price to be paid with a statement of any discounts or other deductions;
27.4.3 Payment terms which should normally state payment in arrears. However where payment in
advance is necessary the rationale for this should be fully documented, and where payments in
advance exceed £10,000 a documented risk assessment must be approved by the relevant
Operational or Specialist Lead unless the supply relates to computer software.
27.4.4 The time or times within which the contract is to be performed/undertaken;
27.4.5 Valid copies of the minimum appropriate insurance to be held by the contractor at the
commencement of the contract and on each subsequent anniversary;
27.4.6 Clauses(s) for the way in which any arbitration is to proceed under the contract;
27.4.7 A clause prohibiting the contractor from transferring, assigning (directly or indirectly) to any person
whatsoever, any portion of the contract without the prior written permission of the Council, or from
subletting any portion of the contract without such permission other than may be customary in the
trade concerned;
27.4.8 In every contract for the execution of works or the supply of goods and materials and in every
contract where the estimated value exceeds £60,000 (except where the contract is entered into
under partnering arrangements) there shall be a consideration of the need for liquidated damages.
Where it is considered that provision should be made for liquidated damages, the requirement and
amount of such provision shall be determined in consultation with the Chief Finance Officer who
shall consider the nature of the contract and its associated risks. The calculation shall be recorded
and filed with the contract documents;
27.4.9 A clause stating the retention of any appropriate amount determined following consultation with the
Monitoring Officer that will be withheld until clearance of the Final Account.
27.4.10 That all goods, materials and workmanship must be at least to the standard specified having regard

Page 95

20

11/10/2021

to the relevant European, British or equivalent body, and must otherwise be fit for purpose;
27.4.11 A clause empowering the Council to cancel the contract and to recover from the contractor the
amount of any loss resulting from such cancellation, if the contractor shall have offered or given or
agreed to give any person any gift, consideration or any kind of inducement or reward for doing or
forbearing to do or to have done any action in relation to obtaining or execution of the contract with
the Council;
27.4.12 A clause empowering the Council to cancel the contract and recover from the contractor the amount
of any loss resulting from such cancellation if the contractor or any person employed by him/her or
acting on his behalf shall have committed any offence under the Bribery Act 2010 or shall have given
any fee or reward, the receipt of which is an offence under Section 117(2) of the Local Government
Act 1972.
27.4.13 A clause prohibiting the Contractor from transferring or assigning, directly or indirectly, any portion
of the contract to any person or organisation without the express written consent of the Council.
27.4.14 A clause that the contractor, his staff, agents and any sub-contractors are required to comply with
the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption, Modern Slavery, Safeguarding, Prevent, GDPR procedures
and the Whistle-blowing Policy (Confidential Reporting Code) or equivalent for reporting any such
events. A copy of the Whistle-blowing policy currently applicable shall be included in the schedule of
documents of the Invitation to Tender under clauses The Policies will be available on the Chest along
with the Invitation to Tender documents.
27.5

A clause that the contractor will comply with the provisions of:



The Council’s Equality and Diversity Policy including requirements of the Equality Act 2010;



All obligations of the Council under the Human Rights legislations;



All restrictions and requirements of the Council under Data Protection legislation;



All restrictions and requirements that may be imposed on the Council under the Freedom
of Information Act 2000; and



The Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 and any other legislation made thereunder or relevant
to the health and safety of employees.



The TUPE requirements (where applicable).

27.6
Where a formal contract is not required the Director or relevant officer will notify acceptance
in writing to the successful contractor and place the necessary order. This must include the
Council’s relevant standard terms and conditions.
27.7 Where the annual amount spent with any one contractor or on any one specific type of
goods, works or services exceeds £25,000 and outside an existing contractual agreement, a
review must be carried out to assess the procurement method and a formal contractual agreement
put in place.
Sub Contractors
27.8
Where any sub-contractor or supplier is to be nominated to a main contractor/supplier for
the execution of a contract with the Council, these Contract Procedure Rules shall apply as if
the Council was entering into a direct contract with the sub-contractor or supplier.
27.9

Details of contracts must be entered on the Council’s contracts register

28 SAFEGUARDS FOR DUE PERFORMANCE
Liquidated Damages
28.1
Every written contract must, where appropriate, provide for the payment of liquidated
damages by the contractor in the event of his default.
28.2
The level of damages required will be determined by the relevant Director, in consultation
with the Chief Finance Officer.
Failure to Deliver
28.3
In every contract for the execution of work, supply of goods, materials or services where
appropriate having an estimated value of £25,000 and above a clause shall be inserted to secure
that, should the contractor fail to deliver the goods, materials or execute the service or works or
any part or portion thereof within the time or times specified in the contract, the Council, may without
prejudice to any other remedy for breach of contract, either wholly or in part, or to the extent of
such default, and to provide for the execution of the work or service by other means, or to purchase
other goods or materials, as the case may be make good


Such default; or

Page 96

21


11/10/2021

In the event of the contracts being wholly determined, the unexecuted work or service or the
goods or materials to be delivered

28.4
The clause shall further secure that the amount by which the cost of providing for the execution
of the work or service by other means, or the purchasing of other goods or materials, exceeds the
amount which would have been payable to the contractor had he executed the contract, or portion
thereof, within the time or times specified therein, shall be payable by the contractor.
Performance Bonds
28.5
The use of and level of, retentions on other contracts shall be agreed with the Chief Finance
Officer prior to the publication of the proposed terms and conditions within the tender documents.
Performance Bonds will normally only be applied to building and facilities contracts.
28.6
The Council shall require and take sufficient security for the due performance of all contracts
exceeding £60,000 where appropriate. For works contracts the amount of security shall be the
retention of 10% of the contract sum during the life of the contract, such retention to be released
on issue of the certificate of practical completion of the contract.
28.7 In any particular contract or class of contract the Chief Finance Officer may decide that the
Council’s interest in the proper performance of the contract can be appropriately protected by
specifying and taking a different form of security
29 PREVENTION OF CURRUPTION
29.1
The Officer must comply with the Code of Conduct and must not invite or accept any gift or
reward in respect of the award or performance of any contract. High standards of conduct are
obligatory. It will be for the Officer to prove that anything received was not received corruptly.
Corrupt behaviour is a crime under the statutes referred to in this Rule 27.2 below and is likely to
lead to disciplinary action.
29.2
The following clause must be put in every written Council contract (excluding framework calloffs):“The Council may terminate this contract and recover all its loss if the Contractor/Supplier, its
employees or anyone acting on the Contractor/Supplier’s behalf do any of the following things:
29.2.1
offer, give or agree to give to anyone any inducement or reward in respect of this or
any other Council contract (even if the Contractor / Supplier does not know what has been
done); or
29.2.2
commit an offence under Section 117(2) of the Local Government Act 1972 or the Bribery
Act 2010; or
29.2.3
commit any fraud in connection with this or any other Council order or contract whether
alone or in conjunction with Council Members, contractors, suppliers, or employees.
27.4

27.3 Any clause limiting the Contractor’s liability shall not apply to this clause.”
Where a supplier’s standard terms and conditions are being used they must contain the equivalent
of this clause.

30 DECLARATION OF INTEREST
30.1
Every Officer and Member of the Council has a responsibility to declare any links or
personal interests that they may have with purchasers, suppliers and /or contractors if they are
engaged in contractual or purchasing decisions on behalf of the Council, in accordance with the
applicable Codes of Conduct.
SECTION 5: CONTRACT MANAGEMENT
31 MANAGING CONTRACTS
Freedom of information
31.1 The Council shall fulfil its obligations under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (as
amended) in respect of any application made under the Act in relation to the contracts it has
entered into and the manner in which the contract was procured.
Statistics
31.2 The Procurement Specialist or such other officer nominated by the Chief Finance Officer
shall be responsible for ensuring the Council meets its reporting requirements Rules required
by the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government Department for Levelling Up,
Housing and Communities or others.
31.3 Directors and Operational and Specialist Leads shall upon request of the nominated

Page 97

22

11/10/2021

officer provide the details and any information necessary to complete these returns with the
minimum of delay.
Extensions
31.4
A contract for goods, services or works shall only be extended where the contract terms
and conditions expressly provide for an option for extension. Requests for extensions should
consider both the cumulative contract value and the period of the contract.
31.5

Any such extension shall be considered where the contract:-

31.5.1
has been successful in demonstrating performance targets identified in the original
contract were met;
31.5.2

will demonstrate Service Improvement or innovative service delivery processes;

31.5.3

is able to demonstrate that such extension will deliver Value for Money; or

31.5.4
where there is a genuinely justifiable case to extend to maintain continuity of
supply or site experience.
31.6

Any such extension shall be subject to: -



adequate budget provision;



the extension being priced at the original contract rates subject to any adjustment mechanism set
out in the contract;



the agreement of the supplier; and



compliance with Procurement legislation.

31.7

Any proposed contract extension shall be approved by the Chief Finance Officer.

Consultants
31.8 It shall be a condition of the appointment and engagement of the services of any consultant,
not being an officer of the Council, who is to be responsible to the Council for the supervision
of a contract, or design of any scheme etc. on behalf of the Council that: -the appointment will
be undertaken in accordance with these Rules which includes the use of appropriate framework
agreements;


consideration will be given to any requirement for vetting, data protection, intellectual property
rights etc.;



consideration will be given to the most appropriate form of payment, including based on
inputs (usually time) or output based;



the consultant will be prohibited from bidding for the work, service etc. and any subsequent
stage unless this was the specific purpose of their appointment;



that in supervising any contract on behalf of the Council the Consultant shall comply with these
Rules as though he/she was a Director of the Council, subject to the modification that the
procedure to be followed in inviting and opening tenders shall be approved in advance by the
relevant Director;



at any time during the period of carrying out the contract procedure during his/her appointment,
the Consultant shall produce to the Chief Finance Officer or authorised representative, on
request, all the records maintained by him/her in relation to the contract; and



On completion of the appointment/contract he/she shall without delay transmit all records in
relation to any contract to the relevant Director.

32 RISK ASSESSMENT AND CONTINGENCY PLANNING
32.1 For all contracts, contract managers must:

maintain a risk register during the contract period;



undertake appropriate risk assessments; and



ensure contingency measures are in place for identified risks

33 CONTRACT MONITORING, EVALUATION AND REVIEW
33.1
Each Director responsible for the awarding of contracts, which provide for payment to be
made by instalments, shall arrange for the keeping of a register, to the satisfaction of the Chief

Page 98

23

11/10/2021

Finance Officer, to show the state of account on each contract between the Council and a
contractor, together with any other payments and related professional fees.
33.2
Payments to contractors on account of contracts shall be made only on a certificate
issued by the relevant person.
33.3
Subject to the provision of the contract in each case, every variation shall be authorised
in writing by the relevant person. Each variation shall include an estimate of the increase or
reduction in cost arising from that variation of the contract. Any variations must be within the
scope of the contract.
33.4
When the net effect of such variations exceeds the following limits, this shall be reported
as soon as possible to the Cabinet or relevant Committee of the Council:
33.5
for contracts up to £100,000 (in amount or budgetary provision) – 3% of the contract
sum or budgetary provision (but not less than £1,000)
33.6
for contracts in excess of £100,000 (in amount or budgetary provision) - £3,000 + 1.5%
of the excess of the contract sum or budgetary provision over £100,000.
33.7
Provided that it shall not be necessary to report such net effect in the case of contracts
undertaken under agency or contractual arrangements on behalf of another local or public
authority where that authority has approved the cost of the variation.
33.8
Where the relevant person issues a certificate and the amount to be paid on that
certificate, when added to amounts previously certified for payment, would result in the
contract sum or budgetary provision being exceeded, then the certificate shall be
accompanied by a report fully explaining the position from the relevant person to the Chief
Finance Officer.
33.9
The final certificate of completion of any contract shall not be issued until the relevant
person has produced to the Chief Finance Officer a detailed final statement of account and all
relevant documents, if required. The Chief Finance Officer shall, to the extent that is
considered necessary, examine final accounts for contracts and shall be entitled to make all
such enquiries and receive such information and explanations as may be required in order to
be satisfied as to the accuracy of the accounts.
33.10
Every works contract and every other contract which is estimated to exceed £60,000 in
value or amount shall, where appropriate, include provision for liquidated damages, except
where the contract is a partnering contract entered into under the Council’s procurement
policy. Where there has been a delay in the completion of a contract and an extension of time
is not appropriate to be authorised, the relevant person shall impose the liquidated damages
clause in all instances, unless, after consultation with the Monitoring Officer, it is decided it is
inappropriate to do so.
33.11
A report as to final costs under each contract shall, after agreement of the final account,
be incorporated into the Post Implementation Review submitted to the Senior Management
Team, Cabinet or relevant Committee by the appropriate Director after consultation with the
Chief Finance Officer.
33.12
Claims from contractors in respect of matters not clearly within the term of any existing
contract shall be referred to the Monitoring Officer for consideration of the Council’s legal
liability and, where necessary, to the Chief Finance Officer for financial consideration, before a
settlement is reached.
33.13
Where a contractor enters into liquidation or receivers are appointed or the contractor
makes arrangement or composition with his/her creditors, the relevant person shall report the
full circumstances in writing to the Cabinet or relevant Committee of the Council as soon as
they are known to him/her.

Page 99

24
11/10/2021

34 GLOSSARY
Procurement Schedule

A plan identifying the projects and contracts that are expected to be procured during the financial
year. Where possible the Procurement Schedule should also identify the lead officer and an outline
timetable. This should be signed-off by the relevant Operational and Specialist Lead, Directors and
Council at the beginning of each financial year.
Contract Period
The period over which a contract is delivered. The period determined must comply with European
and National legislation, allow for continuous improvement, enable appropriate exit strategies, and
enable the contract to be packaged to encourage delivery in the most cost effective manner
Contracts Register
The register held by the Council containing of all written contracts entered into by the Council.
E-Procurement / e-tendering
An electronic procurement process using proprietary software or media to enable the
tender/quotation process to be undertaken electronically. It provides all the controls applicable to
manual tendering as required by these rules.
Procurement Regulations
The Legislation setting out the defined mandatory procurement procedures that must be followed
when procuring supplies, services or works above the pre-determined threshold values in force for
the time being that are.
Statutory-based Principles
The principles which impact on all procurement regardless of value. These must be adhered to
and include principles of equality, non-discrimination, transparency, mutual recognition and
proportionality.
Framework Agreement
Contracts awarded following a compliant tender exercise that provides for the ‘call-off’ of supplies,
services or works against a supplier. The Framework provides a non-binding offer without
obligation; a binding contract coming into effect once the Council initiates a ‘call-off’
ITT
Invitation to Tender
OJEU
Official Journal of the European Union. The advertising medium for tenders above procurement
threshold values or the UK equivalent
Officers
Shall include, Directors, Lead Specialists and Specialists
Directors shall mean the Director of Customers and Commercial Services and / or the Director of
Innovation and Resources,
Performance Bond
Applicable to contracts over £60,000 in value where there are potentially high levels of risk. The
Council seeks security to mitigate such risk, and this is normally in the form of a parent company
guarantee or a Performance Bond. The use of, and level of, retentions on other contracts shall be
agreed with the Chief Finance Officer prior to the publication of the proposed terms and conditions
within the tender documents. Performance Bonds will normally only be applied to building and
facilities contracts.
Procurement
The mechanism and processes by which the Council acquires the supplies (goods), services and
works necessary to achieve delivery of its objectives. It will include all associated performance
measurement, monitoring and other controls necessary to complete such delivery.
Procurement Cards
Approved purchasing cards generally used as a mechanism for ordering and invoicing low value
goods and services. Purchasing Cards are not credit cards.

Page 100

25

11/10/2021

Procurement Thresholds
The thresholds that apply for the purposes of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015, Utilities
Contracts Regulations 2016, Concession Contracts Regulations 2016 and the Defence and
Security Public Procurement Regulations 2011.
Regulations/PCR2015
The UK regulations implementing the EU public procurement directives, currently the Public
Contract Regulations 2015.
RFQ
Request for Quotation
Risk Management
Risks associated with procurement exercises shall be identified, assessed and managed
Supplier
Any person, firm, organisation or body providing or potentially providing supplies (goods) services
or works to the Council.
Value for Money
The optimum combination of quality and cost taking into account ‘whole life costs’.
Whole Life Costs
The costs associated with a procurement from the initial definition of need to the actual
procurement of the supplies services or works their delivery and operation through to the end
of the useful life and/or disposal.
THE COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH A PROCUREMENT FORM THE INITIAL DEFINITION OF
NEED, TO THE ACTUAL PROCUREMENT OF THE SUPPLIES, SERVICES OR WORKS, THEIR
DELIVERY AND OPERATION THROUGH TO THE END OF THE USEFUL LIFE AND/OR
DISPOSAL.

Page 101

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 102

Appendix 2
Procurement and Contract Requirements
Standard Procurement Requirements:
Contract Value
from (excluding
Contract Value from
VAT)
(excluding VAT)
£0
£10,000
(Above) 10000
£25,000
(Above )£25,000
£60,000
(Above ) £60,000
£100,000
(Above ) £100,000
£250,000
(Above ) £250,000

All Procurements should be oon the Procurement Schedule and on the Forward Plan ( if applicable in advance of the approval oThe date for the Cabinet decision should be inserted on the FP

Procurment Requirement
Quotes
Written quotations
Written quotations
Written quotations
Tender
Tender

Contract Requirement
Purchase Order
Purchase Order
Written contract
Sealed contract
Sealed contract
Sealed contract

Forward Plan ‐ Single Ward
Not needed
Procurement Schedule Only
Procurement Schedule Only
Procurement Schedule Only
Individual item on Forward Plan
Individual item on Forward Plan

Forward Plan ‐ 2 or more Wards
Not needed
Individual item on Forward Plan
Individual item on Forward Plan
Individual item on Forward Plan
Individual item on Forward Plan
Individual item on Forward Plan

Acceptance
Admin Decision : Lead Specialist
Admin Decision: Lead Specialist
Admin Decision: Director
Delegated Executive Decision: Director only
Delegated Executive Decision: Portfolio Holder
Cabinet ( then implemented by Admin decision )

Contract Retention
3 years or lifetime of contract
3 years or lifetime of contract
3 years or lifetime of contract
6 years from expiry of contract
6 years from expiry of contract
6 years from expiry of contract

Other

Include liquidated damages where appropriate
Include liquidated damages where appropriate
Include liquidated damages where appropriate

Matter s not listed on the Procurement Schedule will require consideration by the Director/ MO/ s151 as outlined below
Matters Considered by Director / MO / S151 to be obligatory for all procurement concerning:
Matters outside the normal pattern of contracting or service
New partnerships
Matters not listed on the Procurement Schedule
to consider the appropriate approval requirements.
Exemptions: written quotations or tenders are not required if:
(a) the total estimated value is less than £10,000 although obtaining quotes to ensure best value is encouraged. Where quotations have been sought they should be retained in a format agreed by the Procurement Specialist; or
(b) the goods, services or works are proprietary or of such a specialised nature that they can only be obtained from one particular supplier; or are sold only at a fixed price and no reasonably satisfactory alternative is available; or
(c) the prices of the goods or materials are wholly controlled by trade organisations or Government Order and no reasonably satisfactory alternative is available; or
(d) a purchase is to be made at a public auction, provided that the person bidding is satisfied that the cost of the purchase is reasonable compared to the cost of alternative methods of purchase; or
(e) the purchase is through an alternative contract or Framework Agreement available to the Council and which has been put together as a result of a lawfully tendered competition; or
(f) the contract is with professional persons for the provision of services where the personal skill of those persons is of primary importance; or
(g) for other reasons certified by the relevant Director there would be no genuine competition; or
(h) the contract is for the execution of work, the supply of goods, or services certified by the relevant Director as being required so urgently as not to permit the invitation of quotations or tenders; or
(i) the works to be executed or the goods, works or services fall within the scope of the existing contract; an extension of an existing contract as stated in the initial contract agreement; or
(j) the works to be executed or the goods, works or services fall within the scope of an existing contract where there is a genuinely justifiable case to use the existing contract to maintain continuity of supply. Extensions will not be considered where to do so would breach procurement or other legislation.

Page 103

Waiving the Rules
Subject to UK law any of these rules may be waived Waivers should be included in the Procurement Schedule to be approved by Council as part of the budget setting process. If this is not possible, waivers shall be approved where to do so is justified in special circumstances and those special circumstances and the advantages and
disadvantages of the alternative options are identified.
Waivers relating to insurance claims where the procurement requirements of the insurer have been followed will only need to be reported as part of the Corporate Financial Monitoring process even if over £100,000
Waivers and Exemptions must follow these requirements:
Contract Value
from (excluding Standard Procurment
Contract Value from
VAT)
Requirement
(excluding VAT)
£0
£10,000
Quotes
£10,000
£25,000
Written quotations
£25,000
£60,000
Written quotations
£60,000
£100,000
Written quotations
£100,000
£250,000
Tender
£250,000
Tender

Standard Contract
Requirement
Purchase Order
Purchase Order
Written contract
Sealed contract
Sealed contract
Sealed contract

Forward Plan ‐ Single Ward
Not needed
Procurement Schedule Only
Procurement Schedule Only
Procurement Schedule Only
Individual item on Forward Plan
Individual item on Forward Plan

Forward Plan ‐ 2 or more Wards
Not needed
Individual item on Forward Plan
Individual item on Forward Plan
Individual item on Forward Plan
Individual item on Forward Plan
Individual item on Forward Plan

Consultation / agreement of
N/a
Procurement Specialist / Specialist Legal
Procurement Specialist / Specialist Legal
Procurement Specialist / S151 Officer / Monitoring Officer
Procurement Specialist / S151 Officer / Monitoring Officer
Procurement Specialist / S151 Officer / Monitoring Officer

*Use the Public Contracting thresholds as set out for Other Contracting Authorities and the "Supply, Service and Design contracts" thresholds will be applied to all SLDC contracts, regardless of type, for the purposes of this process (i.e. £189,300 for works)
The Public Contracting Thresholds for 2021/22 are (excluding VAT):
Supply, Service and
Social and other specific
Design contracts
Works contracts
services
Central Government
£122,976
£4,733,252
£663,540
Other Contracting
Authorities
£189,330
£4,733,252
£663,540
Small Lots
£70,778
£884,720
N/A
The thresholds are not round figures (as in £4,500,000) as they are based on the historic exchange rate against the Euro. They are also excluding VAT.

Approval of Waiver or Exemption:
Admin Decision: Lead Specialist
Admin Decision: Lead Specialist
Admin Decision: Director
Delegated Executive Decision: Director only
Delegated Exectutive Decision: Portfolio Holder
Cabinet then implemented by Admin decision

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 104

Item No.10
South Lakeland District Council
Council
Thursday, 11 November 2021

Planning Committee Membership
Portfolio:

Housing Portfolio Holder

Report from:

Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources

Report Author:

Linda Fisher – Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist
(Monitoring Officer)

Wards:

(All Wards);

Forward Plan:

Not applicable

Links to Council Plan Priorities: Ensuring that the Planning Committee operates in an
efficient and effective manner, delivering decisions based on sound planning grounds, assist
in meeting the vision, priorities and values of the Council Plan.

1.0

Expected Outcome and Measures of Success

1.1

The purpose of the report is to review the reduction in size of the Membership of the
Planning Committee following the 12 month trial period which commenced in
September 2020.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that
(1)

the report be noted; and

(2)

the reduction in size of the Membership of the Planning Committee from
18 to 14, as approved by Council at C/32 (2020/21), be reconfirmed.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

Council, at its meeting on 28 July 2020, considered a detailed report proposing
changes to the Membership of the Planning Committee from 18 to 14 (C/32 (2020/21)
refers). The report took into consideration, amongst other things, recommendations of
a Peer Review carried out by the Local Government Association Planning Advisory
Service in 2015 (Minute No.P/104 (205/16) refers) and Planning Committee
attendance statistics for the previous three municipal years.

3.2

At the meeting, Members had approved the reduction in size of the Committee for a
trial period of 12 months, including the appointment of three named substitutes from
the political groups represented on the Council, those substitutes to receive an
allowance of £250.

3.3

Attendance statistics for the past four Municipal Years, including those for meetings of
the Planning Committee with reduced Membership between September 2020 and
September 2021, are attached as Appendix 1 to the report. These statistics
demonstrate that, out of a total of 12 scheduled meetings, four of which were cancelled,
there was an average attendance of 13 Members, an average of two apologies and
attendance by one Substitute Member per meeting. It is felt that the arrangements

Page 105

have not resulted in any negative impact on the work of the Committee and, in fact,
that the reduced Membership has facilitated better focussed debate and the ability to
conduct business more efficiently and effectively, with more consistent decisionmaking in accordance with legislation and policies.
3.4

Members are, therefore, being asked to reconfirm the decision taken at C/32
(2020/21).

4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Planning Committee meetings attendance statistics

5.0

Consultation

5.1

Planning Committee Chair; Portfolio Holder; Leaders of all parties.

6.0

Alternative Options

6.1

Council could choose to revert to the previous Membership of 18 or to alter the
Membership to a different number.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

The reduction in Membership of the Planning Committee in September 2020 from 18
to 14 has resulted in a saving of £250.

Human Resources
7.2

None.

Legal
7.3

The Planning Committee must operate within the bounds of Planning and Local
Government Law and in accordance with the Council’s Constitution.

7.4

Part 4 (Rules of Procedure) of the Council’s Constitution states under paragraph
1.2(b) that the Council will decide the size and terms of reference of committees.

Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment
7.4

Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment? No

7.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: A
Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact is not required

Equality and Diversity
7.7

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No

7.8

If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons: There
are no equality impacts relating to this matter

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

Political balance implications.

Some smaller political
parties may not be
represented on the
Committee.

Planning is a non-political
decision making body.

Committee is not quorate.

Cancelled meetings.

The quorum for a
Committee of 14 is four,

Page 106

Risk

Consequence

Controls required
and this is considered to
be manageable. Together
with the substitutes this
mitigates the risk.

Contact Officers
Linda Fisher, Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer), 01539
793370, linda.fisher@southlakeland.gov.uk
Background Documents Available
Name of Background document

Where it is available

Council Minute No.C/448 (2002/03)

Council minutes of meeting held on 15 October 2002

Report to Planning Committee on
25 February 2016

Planning Committee Agenda for meeting on 25
February 2016

Planning Committee Minute No.
P/104 (2015/16)

Planning Committee minutes of meeting held on 25
February 2016

Report to Council on 28 July 2020

Council Agenda for meeting on 28 July 2020

Council Minute No. C/32 (2020/21)

Council minutes of meeting held on 28 July 2020

Tracking Information
Signed off by
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
CMT

Date sent
27 September 2021
21 September 2021
23 September 2021

Circulated to
Lead Specialist
Human Resources Lead Specialist
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
Report Author
N/A
N/A
22 September 2021
22 September 2021
22 September 2021
N/A
N/A
N/A
5 October 2021

Page 107

Date Signed off
04 October 2021
21 September 2021
23 September 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 108

Appendix 1
PLANNING COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE 2 JUNE 2017 TO 19 DECEMBER 2019
DATE
02/06/17
29/06/17
20/07/17
27/07/17
31/08/17
28/09/17
26/10/17
30/11/17
05/12/17
04/01/18
25/01/18
22/02/18
22/03/18
26/04/18
07/06/18
28/06/18
02/08/18
27/09/18
02/11/18
29/11/18
09/01/19
07/02/19
04/03/19
21/03/19
25/04/19
06/06/19
27/06/19
29/08/19
26/09/19
31/10/19
19/12/19
30/01/20
27/02/20
28/05/20
11/06/20
25/06/20
16/07/20
30/07/20

ATTENDED
13
13
12
13
11
13
15
13
12
12
15
12
12
13
12
15
16
11
13
15
14
15
13
13
17
15
14
15
14
16
14
14
11
15
16
16
15
16
Average = 14
(13.69)

APOLOGIES
3
5
5
5
7
4
3
3
5
5
2
4
4
3
4
2
1
7
5
3
4
3
3
4
1
3
4
3
4
2
3
3
5
2
2
2
2
1

Page 109

ABSENT
2
0
1
0
0
1
0
2
1
1
1
2
2
2
2
1
1
0
0
0
0
0
2
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
2
1
0
0
1
1

Appendix 1
PLANNING COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE 16 JULY 2020 TO PRESENT




Please note Councillor Dave Khan was granted an authorised absence from Council and
Council Committee Meetings at the 15 December 2020 Council meeting. See covering
report here.
Councillor Philip Dixon agreed to take his place as the agreed substitute for the Liberal
Democrats on Planning Committee. See decision details here.
DATE
24/09/20
22/10/20
26/11/20
17/12/20
28/01/21
25/02/21
25/03/21
29/04/21
02/06/21
24/06/21
29/07/21
26/08/21
Average

ATTENDED
13
14
12
13
14
14

13
11
13

APOLOGIES
ABSENT
2
0
Meeting Cancelled
1
0
3
0
2
0
1
0
1
0
Meeting Cancelled
Meeting Cancelled
Meeting Cancelled
1
0
4
0
1.88
0

Page 110

Substitute Used
1
1
1
1
1
1

0
1
1

Item No.11
South Lakeland District Council
11th November 2021 Council
Local Government Reorganisation
Structural Changes Order
Portfolio:

Leader of the Council

Report from:

Chief Executive

Report Author:

Linda Fisher Lead Specialist Legal Governance and Democracy

Wards:

(All Wards);

Forward Plan:

Key Decision

Links to Council Plan Priorities: The Structural Changes will impact upon the Council and all its
priorities. Working across boundaries /Delivering a balanced community/A fairer South Lakeland /
Addressing the climate emergency

1.0

Expected Outcome and Measures of Success

1.1

To update Members with regards to the structural changes order for Local Government
Reorganisation.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that Council
(1)

Receive and note the update; and

(2)

Note the contents of the Member briefing session on the 10 November 2021.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

Following the decision of the Secretary of State to implement two new Unitary Councils on an
East-West geography for the whole of the administrative county of Cumbria work has been
ongoing with Cumbrian colleagues on implementation and the draft Structure Changes Order.
The Secretary of State now intends as part of the legal process to seek Parliamentary approval
for the necessary secondary legislation to implement this proposal. It is intended that a draft
Structural Changes Order will be laid in Parliament around the turn of the year and that it will
include provision for the appropriate transitional arrangements, including addressing the timing
of elections District and Parish and Town Council elections, and for the transfer of the full range
of local authority responsibilities on 1 April 2023 to the two new Unitary Councils.

3.2

Council resolved at its meeting in July 2021 to note the Secretary of State’s decision with
regards to Local Government Reorganisation as it impacts this Council. Council authorised
the Chief Executive and appropriate officers, in consultation with the Leader and Deputy
Leader, to commence work with Cumbrian authorities in readiness for the implementation of
reorganisation; and noted that further reports would be brought to Cabinet and/or Council,
and all Members once there is further detail on the Order and how reorganisation is to be
implemented. The Cabinet resolved at its meeting in September 2021 to endorse the Leaders
proposal to allocate executive decision making work with the Cumbria Authorities in readiness
for the implementation of Local Government Reorganisation to the Leader in consultation with
the Chief Executive and noted that further reports would be brought to Cabinet and/or Council
and all members as appropriate once there is further detail on the Structural Changes Order
and how reorganisation is to be implemented.

Page 111

3.3

At the date of writing this report we are still awaiting details from the Secretary of State of their
intentions for the Order.

3.4

Members will be updated at the meeting as to any further information received and further
decisions that may be needed and are asked to note that arrangements will be made for an all
Member briefing once the draft content has been received.

3.5

Next Steps

3.5.1.

It is expected that the Order will be laid before Parliament at the turn of the year and brought
into force in March 2022.

4.0

Appendices (None )

5.0

Consultation

5.1

The Council awaits information from the Secretary of State.

6.0

Alternative Options

6.1

There are no alternative options recommended.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

There are no costs associated with this report.

Human Resources
7.2

At the time of writing the report we have not seen the detail so cannot comment further on the
Human Resources implications.

Legal
7.3

The Structural Change Order is made by the Secretary of State in the exercise of the powers
conferred by sections, 7,11,12 and 13 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in
Health Act 2007 (a) (“the 2007 Act”). A draft of the order would be laid before, and need to be
approved by a resolution of, each of House of Parliament in accordance with section 240 (6) of
the 2007 Act.

Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment
7.4

Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment? No

7.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: It is not
considered that an Impact Assessment is required to be carried out by the Council.

Page 112

7.6

Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts
Positive

Environment
and Health

Neutral

Greenhouse gases
emissions

x

Air Quality

x

Biodiversity

x

Impacts of Climate Change

x

Negative

Unknown

Reduced or zero
requirement for energy,
building space, materials or
travel

Economy
and Culture

Housing and
Communities

Active Travel

x

Inclusive and sustainable
development

x

Jobs and levels of pay

x

Healthier high streets

x

Culture, creativity and
heritage

x

Standard of housing

x

Access to housing

x

Crime

x

Social connectedness

x

Equality and Diversity
7.7
7.8
7.9

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No
If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons: It is not
considered that an Equality Impact Assessment is required at this stage.
Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X”
Age

0

Disability

0

Gender reassignment (transgender)

0

Marriage & civil partnership

0

Pregnancy & maternity

0

Race/ethnicity

0

Religion or belief

0

Sex/gender

0

Sexual orientation

0

Armed forces families

0

Rurality

0

Socio-economic disadvantage

0

Page 113

Risk Management

Consequence

Controls required

The primary risk to this Council
associated with the drafting of
the SCO is that the Secretary of
State overrides local preferences
for some of the content.

The
Secretary
of
State
overrides or does not take into
account local preferences and
position’s

Delegation
of
authority
as
recommended will enable speedy
responses to any queries and
enable the local perspective to be
strongly argued.

Risks will be reassessed on
receipt of the structural changes
order.

Contact Officers linda.fisher@southlakeland.gov.uk
Background Documents Available
Name of Background document

Where it is available

Cabinet Minute 1st September 2021

https://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.a
spx?CId=121&MId=5119&Ver=4

Council Minute 27th July 2021

https://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.a
spx?CId=120&MId=5113&Ver=4

Tracking Information
Signed off by
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
CMT

Date sent
01/11/2021
Report author
01/11/2021

Circulated to
Lead Specialist
Human Resources Lead Specialist
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
N/A
N/A
N/A
01/11/2021
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
10/11/2021
N/A

Page 114

Date Signed off
01/11/2021
01/11/2021

Council – 11 November 2021
URGENT DECISIONS
Reference
No.
CEX/28
(2021/22)

Details of Decision
CEX/28 CUMBRIA CHOICE BASED LETTING RUN
CONTRACT AND PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT
Decision
RESOLVED – That
(1) delegated authority to enter into the run contract with
the selected provider be given to the Housing Portfolio
Holder, the Director of Customer and Commercial
Services and the Legal, Governance and Democracy
Lead Specialist; and

Page 115

(2) delegated authority to enter into a new partnering
agreement with the partners in light of the new contracts
be given to the Housing Portfolio Holder, Director of
Customer and Commercial Services and the Legal,
Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist.

Decision
Taker
Cabinet

Date of
Decision
21/07/21

Reason for Urgency

Agreed by

Due to the aim of the Board
and its partners to enter into
the new contract on 30 July
2021 with a communication
plan delivered and ready for
a go live date of September
2021.

The proposal met the
definition of a key decision
in the Council’s
Constitution. In accordance
with paragraph 15 of the
Access to Information
Procedure Rules in Part 4
of the Constitution, the
Chairman of the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee
had been informed that the
taking of the decision was
urgent and could not
reasonably deferred.

Item No.16

In accordance with
paragraph 16(j) of the
Overview and Scrutiny
Procedure Rules in the
Constitution, the Chairman
of the Council had been
consulted and had agreed
that the decision proposed
was reasonable in all the
circumstances and for it to
be treated as a matter of
urgency and that the call-in
process should be waived.

Reference
No.
DEX/002
(2021/22)

Details of Decision
PROCUREMENT EXEMPTION REQUESTS AND
CONTRACT AWARD KENDAL COLLEGE AND GINGER
DOG OD LTD

Decision
Taker
Delegated
Executive
Decision

Date of
Decision
26/08/21

Reason for Urgency

Agreed by

Due to the timescales
required.

Delegated
Executive
Decision

21/10/21

Due to need for the contract
for training services to be
signed by close of business
on 21 October 2021 or the
training would need to be
postponed.

In accordance with
paragraph 16(j) of the
Overview and Scrutiny
Procedure Rules in the
Constitution, the Chairman
of the Council had been
consulted and had agreed
that the decision proposed
was reasonable in all the
circumstances and for it to
be treated as a matter of
urgency and that the call-in
process should be waived.
In accordance with
paragraph 16(j) of the
Overview and Scrutiny
Procedure Rules in the
Constitution, the ViceChairman of the Council
had been consulted and
had agreed that the
decision proposed was
reasonable in all the
circumstances and for it to
be treated as a matter of
urgency and that the call-in
process should be waived.

Decision
The exemptions for Kendal College and Ginger Dog Ltd
and contract awards be approved and the terms and
signing of the contracts delegated to the Lead Specialist,
Legal, Governance and Democracy.

DEX/008
(2021/22)

USE OF APPRENTICESHIP LEVY FOR APPRENTICESHIP
TRAINING WITH CHARTERED INSTITUTE OF HOUSING

Page 116

Decision
Approval is given for the use of the Apprenticeship Levy
funding for one Level 3 Housing Apprenticeship
Standard training with the Chartered Institute of
Housing.

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 117

Item No.17

This page is intentionally left blank

